
 
 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF COUNCIL MEETING 
 

You are summoned to attend a meeting of Gateshead Metropolitan Borough Council to be 
held in the Council Chamber, Gateshead Civic Centre, at 2.30 pm on Thursday, 13 

October 2022 to transact the following business:- 
  
1 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held 21 July 2022 (Pages 3 - 8) 

 
  

2 Official Announcements  
 
(announcements may be made by the Mayor, Leader of the Council or the Chief 
Executive) 
 
  

3 Petitions  
 
(to receive petitions submitted under Council Procedure Rule 10) 
 
  

4 Questions from Members of the Public (Pages 9 - 10) 
 
(to consider any questions submitted under Council Procedure Rule 7) 
 
  

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM CABINET  
 
  
5 Annual Report of the Audit and Standards Committee 2021/22 (Pages 11 - 

24) 
  

All Members of the Council My Ref: LCS-DLDS-DS-C-022 
 Your Ref:  
   
 Contact Roz Patterson 
 Tel: 0191 4332088 
   
 Date: Wednesday,  

5 October 2022 

Public Document Pack



 

6 Review of the Constitution (Pages 25 - 36) 
 
 
  

7 Tenancy Strategy and Allocations Policy (Pages 37 - 136) 
 
 
  

8 Appointment of Public Analysts (Pages 137 - 142) 
 
 
  

9 Physical Activity Strategy 2022 - 2032 (Pages 143 - 204) 
 
 
  

MOTIONS AND QUESTIONS  
 
(to consider any notices of motion submitted in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 9.1) 
 
  
10a Notice of Motion - Fair Tax (Pages 205 - 206) 

 
 
  

10b Notice of Motion - Proportional Representation (Pages 207 - 208) 
 
 
  

11 Questions  
 
(to deal with any questions submitted in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 8.1) 
 
 

 

 
Sheena Ramsey 
Chief Executive 

 



 

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

Thursday, 21 July 2022 
 

 
PRESENT: THE MAYOR COUNCILLOR D BURNETT (CHAIR) 
  
 Councillors: J Adams, V Anderson, R Beadle, M Brain, C Buckley, 

P Burns, L Caffrey, B Clelland, P Craig, W Dick, S Dickie, P Diston, 
C Donovan, A Douglas, D Duggan, J Eagle, S Gallagher, 
M Gannon, A Geddes, F Geddes, J Gibson, B Goldsworthy, 
M Goldsworthy, T Graham, J Green, L Green, S Green, G Haley, 
M Hall, H Kelly, L Kirton, P Maughan, K McCartney, J McCoid, 
J McElroy, E McMaster, P McNally, M McNestry, L Moir, R Mullen, 
B Oliphant, A Ord, C Ord, M Ord, I Patterson, S Potts, J Reay, 
D Robson, S Ronchetti, J Simpson, J Turnbull, J Turner, J Wallace, 
R Waugh, D Weatherley and H Weatherley 

  
APOLOGIES: Councillors: D Bradford, C Davison, K Dodds, S Hawkins, H Haran, 

J Mohammed, D Welsh, A Wintcher and K Wood 
  
A minute's silence was observed following the death of Alderman Brian Coates  
  
CL20   TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 26 MAY 2022  

 
 COUNCIL RESOLVED          -      That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 May  

2022 be approved as a correct record. 
  

CL21   OFFICIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

 Council agreed that Councillor Jim Turnbull be taken off Planning and Development 
Committee and put on to the Appeals Committee and Councillor Tom Graham be 
taken off the Appeals Committee and put on to the Planning and Development 
Committee. 
  

CL22   PETITIONS  
 

 Lead petitioner, Marie Walton, submitted a petition on behalf of residents living near 
Vigo Lane regarding the speed limit on the road. 
  

CL23   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 

 There were no questions submitted by members of the public. 
  

CL24   APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD MEMBERS  
 

 Consideration was given to a report seeking approval to appoint three independent 
members to Gateshead Strategic Housing Board. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

  
COUNCIL RESOLVED          -      That the three candidates named in the report  

be appointed to the independent member 
positions on the Gateshead Strategic Housing 
Board for the terms of office indicated with effect 
from 21 July 2022. 

  
CL25   OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES - WORK PROGRAMMES 2022/23  

 
 Consideration was given to a report seeking approval of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees provisional work programmes for 2022/23. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED          -      That the provisional work programmes for the  

Overview and Scrutiny Committees for 2022/23 be 
approved. 

  
CL26   INTRODUCTION OF A SHARED OWNERSHIP POLICY  

 
 Consideration was given to a report seeking approval for the introduction of a 

Shared Ownership Policy. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED          -        That the Shared Ownership Policy be approved. 
  

CL27   CAPITAL PROGRAMME AND PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2021/22 – YEAR END 
OUTTURN  
 

 Consideration was given to a report on the 2021/22 Capital Programme outturn and 
performance against the statutory Prudential Indicators. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED           -           (i) That the Capital Programme Outturn  

for 2021/22 be noted. 
  
                                                            (ii) That the financing of the Capital  

Programme be approved. 
  

      (iii)That it be noted that none of the approved 
Prudential Indicators set for 2021/22 have 
been breached. 

  
CL28   PROVISIONAL REVENUE OUTTURN 2021/22  

 
 Consideration was given to a report setting out the outturn position on the 2021/22 

revenue budget. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED          -      That the appropriations to and from reserves be  

approved. 
  

CL29   REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION  
 

 Consideration was given to a report seeking approval for a number of amendments 

Page 4



 

to the Constitution. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED           -     That the proposed changes to the Council’s  

Constitution be approved, subject to the proposal 
relating to the ‘Common Seal of the Council’ being 
deferred. 

  
CL30   TREASURY ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22  

 
 Consideration was given to a report seeking approval of the Treasury Annual Report 

2021/22. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED          -      That the Treasury Annual Report for 2021/22 be  

approved. 
  

CL31   CAPITAL PROGRAMME AND PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2022/23 - FIRST 
QUARTER REVIEW  
 

 Consideration was given to a report on the latest position on the 2022/23 Capital 
Programme and Prudential Indicators at the end of the first quarter. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED           -           (i) That all variations to the 2022/23 Capital  

Programme be approved. 
  
                                                            (ii) That the financing of the revised  

programme be approved. 
  

      (iii) That it be noted that Cabinet confirms that 
the capital expenditure and financing 
requirements have been revised in line with 
the amended budget and that none of the 
approved Prudential Indicators set for 
2022/23 have been breached. 

  
CL32   NOTICE OF MOTION - COST OF LIVING EMERGENCY  

 
 Councillor V Anderson moved the following motion: 

  
“This Council notes that: 
  

        On 1 April 2022, Ofgem increased the energy price cap by 54 per cent. 
        In light of the increase energy price cap, the average standard tariff energy 

bill will increase by £693 per year. The average pre-pay meter energy bill will 
increase by £708 per year (Ofgem, 2022). 

        On 6 April 2022, the Government increase National Insurance by 1.25 
percentage points, which is projected to cost the average family in Gateshead 
an additional £600 a year. 

        The Government has suspended the pensions ‘triple lock’ for 2022/3, 
meaning Gateshead’s pensioners will see a rise of 3.1 per cent this year 
(instead of 8.3 percent under the triple lock formula). This year, this will cost 

Page 5



 

pensioners in Gateshead hundreds of pounds. 
        Between April 2020 and March 2022 Gateshead Foodbanks distributed 

17,972 food parcels (Trussell Trust, 2022) 
  
This Council therefore declares a ‘Cost of Living Emergency’ and calls on the 
Government to: 
  

        Immediately reduce the standard rate of VAT from 20 per cent to 17.5 per 
cent for one year, saving the average household in Gateshead a further £600 
this year. 

        Immediately re-introduce the pensions triple lock to support Gateshead’s 
pensioners. 

        Immediately restore the Universal Credit supplement of £20, which was 
cancelled by the Government in September 2021. 

  
Council instructs the Chief Executive to write to the Secretary of State for Work and 
Pensions to express the Council’s demands for VAT to be cut to 17.5%, for the re-
introduction of the pensions triple-lock and for the £20 Universal Credit supplement 
to be restored. 
  
Finally, Council calls for a local Cost-of-Living Emergency Summit, with 
stakeholders, including Citizen’s Advice, Food Banks, Local Trade Unions, and 
Chambers of Commerce and will invite local MPs to attend this hybrid meeting.” 
  
In accordance with Council procedure, paragraph 17.6 of the Constitution, Council 
consented to the moving of the following amendment: 
  
Insert the following bullet points at the start of paragraph 1. 
  

        Inflation is running at its highest level for over 40 years (OBR). 
        Two in five children living in Gateshead live in poverty, more than half of 

these children are in working families (North East Child Poverty commission). 
        Between April 2020 and March 2022 Gateshead Foodbanks distributed 

17,972 food parcels (Trussell Trust). 
  
Delete from “This Council therefore declares…” 
  
Replace with the following: 
  
“This Council recognises that all this constitutes an emergency for many, and we 
already have a great record of responding to the needs of the whole community 
through existing strategies and structures, such as the Thrive Agenda, the Poverty 
Strategy and Board and the Health and Well-being Strategy and Board. 
  
However, we believe there is more the Government can do to address these issues: 
  

        Introduce a windfall tax on energy companies. 
        Reverse the national insurance increases. 
        Cut VAT. 

Page 6



 

        Re-introduce the pensions triple lock to support Gateshead’s pensioners. 
        Increase Universal Credit. 
        End the cap on Child Benefit which is only paid for two children in a family. 
        Extend free school meals entitlement to all children whose families are on 

state benefits, whether working or not. 
  
We call on the Chief Executive of the Council to ensure that Government are aware 
of our views and that the Gateshead MPs are asked for their support. 
  
  
The amendment was accepted by the mover of the original motion and therefore put 
as the substantive motion and duly carried. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED           - 
  
This Council notes that: 
  

        Inflation is running at its highest level for over 40 years (OBR). 
        Two in five children living in Gateshead live in poverty, more than half of 

these children are in working families (North East Child Poverty commission). 
        Between April 2020 and March 2022 Gateshead Foodbanks distributed 

17,972 food parcels (Trussell Trust). 
        On 1 April 2022, Ofgem increased the energy price cap by 54 per cent. 
        In light of the increase energy price cap, the average standard tariff energy 

bill will increase by £693 per year. The average pre-pay meter energy bill will 
increase by £708 per year (Ofgem, 2022). 

        On 6 April 2022, the Government increase National Insurance by 1.25 
percentage points, which is projected to cost the average family in Gateshead 
an additional £600 a year. 

        The Government has suspended the pensions ‘triple lock’ for 2022/3, 
meaning Gateshead’s pensioners will see a rise of 3.1 per cent this year 
(instead of 8.3 percent under the triple lock formula). This year, this will cost 
pensioners in Gateshead hundreds of pounds. 

  
This Council recognises that all this constitutes an emergency for many, and we 
already have a great record of responding to the needs of the whole community 
through existing strategies and structures, such as the Thrive Agenda, the Poverty 
Strategy and Board and the Health and Well-being Strategy and Board. 
  
However, we believe there is more the Government can do to address these issues: 
  

        Introduce a windfall tax on energy companies. 
        Reverse the national insurance increases. 
        Cut VAT. 
        Re-introduce the pensions triple lock to support Gateshead’s pensioners. 
        Increase Universal Credit. 
        End the cap on Child Benefit which is only paid for two children in a family. 
        Extend free school meals entitlement to all children whose families are on 

state benefits, whether working or not. 

Page 7



 

  
We call on the Chief Executive of the Council to ensure that Government are aware 
of our views and that the Gateshead MPs are asked for their support. 
  
  

CL33   QUESTIONS  
 

 There were no questions submitted. 
  

CL34   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 COUNCIL RESOLVED           -     That the press and public be excluded from the  
meeting during consideration of the following items 
in accordance with Paragraphs 3 and 4 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. 

  
CL35   ANNUAL LEAVE  

 
 Consideration was given to a report seeking approval to increase annual leave 

entitlement for new entrants and those achieving 5 years’ service. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED          -      That the implementation of the annual leave  

proposal be approved. 
  

CL36   JOINT LOCAL AGREEMENT (CONSTRUCTION SERVICES TRADE 
OPERATIVES) REVIEW  
 

 Consideration was given to a report seeking approval of a revised Joint Local 
Agreement with Construction Services Trade Operatives. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED          -      That the revised Joint Local Agreement with  

Construction Services Trade Operatives be 
approved. 

 
 
 
 

Mayor…………………………………… 
 
 

Page 8



  COUNCIL MEETING 

13 October 2022 

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 

QUESTION FROM MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC 

Mr Tony Dowling will ask the following question: 

I speak on behalf of “Keep Our NHS Public North East”. 

Further to the deeply flawed Health and Care Act 2022, you will be aware that “North 
East and North Cumbria Integrated Care System” is now responsible for 
commissioning all healthcare for Gateshead from 1st July this year. 

There are potentially a number of problematic areas associated with the new 
Integrated Care System, and some of these difficulties may be addressed and 
remedied locally through attention to the wording of the Constitution of the new 
“North East and North Cumbria Integrated Care Board”. 

Issues that need to be clearly stated within the Constitution include: 

- the ICS commitment to maintain a comprehensive health service, free at the 
point of need, and accessible to all residing in the area 

- the need to exclude representatives from private sector organisations on any 
ICS board or committee; this issue is noted in the Constitution, but there is a 
“let-out” clause which allows private sector involvement 

- a commitment that NHS providers are the default providers of health services 
- vigorous scrutiny, transparency and accountability with all new contracts 
- a commitment that anyone who needs emergency care while present in 

Gateshead will receive the necessary treatment, whether or not they are 
registered with a GP in the county 

- a commitment that the Integrated Care Board will include a Councillor from 
each local authority; the current Constitution identifies one elected member to 
represent 14 local authorities covering a population of 3 million. Locally, three 
additional Council officers are identified for the Board, but these are not 
elected members. There also need to be representatives from the range of 
health professionals and patient groups. This presence will uphold local 
democracy and transparency 

- a commitment to hold all meetings of Boards and Committees in public, 
making papers available, and welcoming questions from the public 

- the requirement for the full assessment of health and care needs, and 
availability of social supports, prior to patients discharge from hospital 

- the need for all NHS providers within the area to adhere to nationally agreed 
pay, terms and conditions, as negotiated with NHS staff Unions 

I would be grateful if you would please outline what Gateshead Council is doing with 
regard to each of these issues when in contact with officers of the Integrated Care 
System, and please confirm the Council’s stance is to support the principle that the 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



NHS must be comprehensive, universal and free at the point of use and based on 
the clinical needs of patients – not on the new Integrated Care Boards’ financial 
considerations.  

Page 10



 

 
  COUNCIL MEETING 

13 October 2022 
 

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 2021/22 

 
 

Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1. The purpose of this report is to consider the Audit and Standards Committee 

Annual Report for 2021/22. 
 

2. The report for 2021/22 was agreed by the Audit and Standards Committee on 
26 July 2022. 
 

3. The Cabinet has considered the facts and issues arising from the report 
including alternative options and took all relevant advice before formulating 
their recommendation. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
4. It is recommended that Council approves the Annual Report of the Audit and 

Standards Committee for 2021/22. 
 
 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



         
 
      
TITLE OF REPORT:  Annual Report of the Audit and Standards 

Committee 2021/22 
                                
REPORT OF:             Darren Collins, Strategic Director, Resources 

and Digital   
 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 
1. To ask Cabinet to consider the Audit and Standards Committee Annual 

Report for 2021/22 and agree that this report is submitted to Council. 
 

Background 
 
2 In line with best practice the Audit and Standards Committee is required 

to report to Cabinet and Council on the Committee’s activity each year. 
The report for 2021/22 was agreed by the Audit and Standards 
Committee on 26 July 2022. 

    
Proposal 

 
3 Cabinet is asked to consider the Audit and Standards Committee’s Annual 

Report at Appendix 2 and agree to submit it to Council.  The Report 
provides an overview on the work of the Audit and Standards Committee 
during 2021/22 and describes how it has had a positive impact on 
governance, financial reporting and audit issues across the Council, as 
well as providing challenge and independent assurance on the risk 
management framework and associated internal control environment. 

 
Recommendation 

 
4 It is recommended that Cabinet endorse the Annual Report of the Audit 

and Standards Committee for 2021/22 and agree that it is submitted to 
Council.   

 
For the following reason: 

 
To strengthen the Council’s arrangements for oversight by councillors of 
governance, audit, risk management, the internal control framework, 
value for money and efficiency. 

 
 

 

Contact name:  Craig Oakes Ext. - 3711 

REPORT TO CABINET
11 October 2022

Page 13



Appendix 1 
 

Policy Context  
 
1. The proposal supports the Council’s policy, service planning and 

performance management framework, which aims to ensure that all 
resources are directed towards delivery of the Council’s strategic 
approach, Making Gateshead a Place Where Everyone Thrives. 

 
Background 

 
2. In line with best practice, the Audit and Standards Committee is required 

to submit an annual report to Cabinet and Council, and also any further 
reports and recommendations as it sees fit.  The areas of activity of the 
Audit and Standards Committee during 2021/22 are set out in the Annual 
Report. 

 
Contents of the Report 

 
3. Appendix 2 outlines the activity which the Audit and Standards Committee 

has covered over the last year. 
 
4. The Audit and Standards Committee has received reports in the following 

areas: 
 

• Internal Audit planning, performance and activity;  
• External Audit planning, performance and activity; 
• Corporate Risk Management and Resilience activity; 
• Counter Fraud Updates; 
• Standards Updates; 
• Annual Governance Statement Assurance Framework; 
• The Annual Governance Statement and supporting evidence; 
• Achievement of Going Concern Status; 
• Audit Completion Report and Council’s Statement of Accounts; 
• Treasury Management Policy & Strategy and mid-year update;  
• Local Code of Governance Update; 
• Review of Internal Audit Charter;  
• External Auditor Appointments Beyond 1 April 2023; and 
• Grant of Dispensations 

 
5. There were no reports in year which were specific to Standards issues. 

No complaints have been received under the Member’s Code of Conduct, 
that required investigation, nor was there any guidance or best practice 
issued during the year that warranted a report. The Monitoring Officer is 
responsible for maintaining and promoting high standards within the 
Council and he and his staff have contributed to the Audit work on good 
governance particularly those matters relating to the Corporate Risk 
Management activity and the Annual Governance Statement. 
 

Page 14



6. Based on the evidence presented during the year and at the meeting of 
the Audit and Standards Committee on 28 June 2022 it was concluded 
that the Council’s system of internal control and governance framework is 
effective.  This was demonstrated through the approval of the Annual 
Governance Statement for 2021/22, which accompanies the Statement of 
Accounts.   

  
Consultation 

 
7. The Audit and Standards Committee considered and agreed the contents 

of this report at their meeting of 26 July 2022. 
 

Alternative Options 
 
8. There are no alternative options. 
 
 Implications of Recommended Option  
 
9. Resources: 
 

a) Financial Implications - The Strategic Director, Resources and 
Digital confirms that there are no financial implications arising from 
this report. 

 
b) Human Resources Implications – There are no human resources 

implications arising from this report. 
 

c)  Property Implications –. There are no property implications arising 
from this report. 

 
10. Risk Management Implications - The Audit and Standards Committee 

receives quarterly reports on risk management. 
 
11. Equality and Diversity Implications – there are no equality and diversity 

implications arising from this report.  
 
12. Crime and Disorder Implications – There are no crime and disorder 

implications arising from this report.  
 
13. Health Implications – There are no health implications arising from this 

report. 
 
14. Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications – There are no 

climate emergency and sustainability implications arising from this report. 
 
15. Human Rights Implications – There are no human rights implications 

arising from this report. 
 
16. Ward Implications – There are no ward implications arising from this 

report. 
 

Page 15



17. Background Information – Report of the Audit and Standards 
Committee meeting on 26 July 2022. 

 

Page 16



Appendix 2 
 
 

Contents of the Report to Cabinet and Council – 2021/22 
 
1. The areas of activity considered by the Audit and Standards Committee 

during 2021/22 are set out below. 
 

Internal Audit planning, performance and activity 
 
2. As at 31 March 2022 87% of the Internal Audit Plan was completed, 

which resulted in 73 audit reports. Of these reports 64 (88%) found 
systems to be operating well or satisfactory, with 9 (12%) reporting 
systems having significant weaknesses, of which one was in relation to 
schools. 

  
3. All recommendations are followed-up as part of the Internal Audit 

process and the Audit and Standards Committee will monitor the 
outcomes.   

 
4. Based on this evidence arising from Internal Audit activity during 

2021/22, the Council’s internal control systems and governance and risk 
management arrangements are considered to be effective. 

 
5. The Internal Audit Service has also co-ordinated the Council’s National 

Fraud Initiative (NFI) work and has supported Council managers with 
irregularity, e-mail, internet and other disciplinary investigations on an 
ongoing basis during 2021/22, with quarterly updates to Audit and 
Standards Committee. 

 
6. The Audit and Standards Committee also approved the Audit Strategy 

and Plan and will continue to monitor Internal Audit’s progress on a 
quarterly basis against the 2022/23 Audit Plan.  

 
External Audit planning, performance and activity 

 
7. The following external audit report has been reviewed over the year: 
 

• Audit Strategy Memorandum Year Ending 31 March 2022.   
 
8. The Committee was also asked to consider how it exercises oversight of 

certain key management processes in relation to some specific areas of 
governance with a potential to impact upon the financial statements 
during 2021/22. This was a requirement to satisfy the external auditors 
that such oversight was in place in order to comply with International 
Auditing Standards.  The Committee agreed that an effective level of 
oversight was in place. 

 
 
 
 

Page 17



Corporate Risk Management and Resilience activity 
 
9. The Committee received quarterly reports on the assurance derived from 

risk management. These reports make Councillors aware of the 
arrangements that exist within the Council for managing risk, the impact 
that these have had and the plans for further development of risk 
management arrangements.   

 
Counter Fraud Update 

 
10. The Committee received a report every six months updating on activity 

undertaken in relation to the work of the Corporate Fraud Team 
summarising performance against the Counter Fraud and Corruption 
Strategy and the effectiveness of the Strategy.  Conclusions also form 
part of the Annual Governance Statement. 

 
Standards Update 

 
11. The Committee received quarterly reports which highlighted national and 

local standards issues, raised Member awareness of national reviews 
and consultations which may be relevant to their role and identified 
whether further Member training was required.  

 
Annual Governance Statement Assurance Framework 
 

12. The Committee received a report providing an overview of the work to be 
undertaken to produce the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 
2021/22 which demonstrates the level of assurance that can be given by 
the Council’s control systems and governance arrangements, the 
Assurance Framework. 

 
The Annual Governance Statement and supporting evidence 
  

13. The Annual Governance Statement for 2021/22 concluded that the 
Council’s system of internal control, risk management and governance 
framework is effective.   

 
14. The Audit and Standards Committee approved the Annual Governance 

Statement for 2021/22 at its meeting on 28 June 2022, following a 
review of the evidence detailed below in paragraphs 15-32, and 
evidence seen by the Committee during the year. 

 
Cabinet Members 

 
15. Assurance was sought from Members of the Cabinet on the 

effectiveness they felt could be placed on the Council’s corporate 
governance arrangements. They concluded that effective governance 
arrangements are in place. 
 
 
 

Page 18



Senior Managers 
 

16. Service Directors completed self-assessment assurance statements 
detailing the level of assurance obtained from their key control 
processes.  The conclusion of this exercise found that senior managers 
agreed that effective control systems were in place overall.  These areas 
will be examined as part of the 2022/23 Audit Plan and the outcomes 
reported to the Audit and Standards Committee in October 2022.   

Internal Audit 

17. The Internal Audit Service has undertaken audit work throughout the 
year based on the risk-based audit plan. In addition, the Council has a 
framework of assurance available to satisfy it that risks have been 
properly identified and are being managed by controls that are 
adequately designed and effective in operation. This includes assurance 
from a variety of sources other than the Internal Audit Service.  These 
other audit systems have been assessed, as part of the Audit Plan.   

18. Based on this audit activity the overall opinion of the Chief Internal 
Auditor for the year 2021/22 was that internal control systems and risk 
management and governance arrangements are effective. 

 
Risk Management  

19. Risk management is embedded in the Council through a Corporate Risk 
Management Policy which includes the requirement to identify strategic 
and operational risks, assess those risks for likelihood and impact, 
identify mitigating controls and allocate responsibility for those controls.  
The Council maintains and reviews a register of its business risks, 
linking them to strategic business objectives and assigning ownership for 
each risk.   

20. The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital reported that risk 
management arrangements during the year were effective. 

Counter Fraud 
 

21. The Council has a zero-tolerance approach to fraud and corruption.  A 
counter fraud communications and awareness plan is in place to enable 
and evidence communication requirements to promote and raise 
awareness of the Council’s counter fraud arrangements, including the 
publicising of any proven fraud cases and media handling.  The plan 
details the key stakeholders and the methods and frequency of any 
communications during the year.  The plan also details how the 
outcomes of any successful prosecutions would be handled.  

 
22. The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital reported that counter fraud 

arrangements during the year were effective. 
 
 

 

Page 19



Performance Management and Data Quality 
 
23. The Council has a corporate suite of strategic performance indicator to 

enable effective monitoring of the Council’s strategic approach through 
which quality of service is measured via strategic outcome indicators.  
The monitoring of performance takes place at key performance points as 
identified in the framework including quarterly performance reported to 
Group Management Teams and Corporate Senior Officer meetings. 

24. In addition, performance is also monitored, measured, challenged and 
scrutinised on a six-monthly basis at Cabinet and respective Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees.  

25. The Corporate Data Management Group is overseeing the development 
of an approach to improving how the performance information is 
presented so that this is accessible to all stakeholders. Performance 
reports to Overview and Scrutiny are published on the Council’s website 

26. Based on evidence arising from the performance management 
framework process for 2021/22, effective controls are in place.  

Views of the External Auditor and other External Inspectors 

27. Mazars, the Council’s external auditor, issued an Annual Report 
covering the financial year 2020/21, which was presented to the 
Committee in March 2022.  This comprised of two elements: the audit of 
the Council’s financial statements and an assessment of the Council’s 
arrangements to achieve value for money in its use of resources.  An 
unqualified opinion was given on the financial statements, and no 
significant weaknesses were identified in the Value for Money 
arrangements. 

 
28. Other external inspectorates’ reports have been issued from time to time 

on management and governance arrangements to the Council.   

The Legal and Regulatory Framework  

29. Assurance has been obtained from the Strategic Director, Corporate 
Services and Governance as the Monitoring Officer who has a legal duty 
to ensure the lawfulness and fairness of decision-making within the 
Council.  The Council has a Constitution in place and compliance with 
established policies, procedures, laws and regulations is ensured by the 
requirement to give the Strategic Director, Corporate Services and 
Governance the opportunity to comment on every report submitted to a 
decision-making body.   

  
Financial Controls 

 
30. Assurance has been obtained from the Strategic Director, Resources 

and Digital, who is designated as the responsible officer for the 
administration of the Council’s financial affairs under Section 151 of the 
Local Government Act 1972, that financial controls are effective. 

Page 20



Systems in place include Financial Regulations, the opportunity to 
comment on the financial implications of committee reports, monitoring 
meetings and evidence from internal and external audit. 

 
Partnerships 

 
31. Service Directors review partnerships within their service plans on an 

annual basis. As partners are key to the delivery of the Council’s 
objectives assurance of their control and governance systems is 
required. Service Directors have also been required to provide 
assurance on governance arrangements through their self-assessment 
statements and all Services are required to identify, through their 
business plans, where delivery of activity could impact on partnership 
working. 

 
32. Based on evidence arising from partnerships for 2021/22 effective 

controls are in place. 
 

Other Reports  
 

Achievement of Going Concern Status 

33. The Committee received a report considering the Council’s status as a 
going concern.   

34. Authorities are required by Section 32 of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992 to set a balanced budget. However, financial pressures within 
the local government sector mean that there continues to be a risk that 
the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 officer) may need to consider 
whether action is required under Section 114 of the 1988 Act, where the 
Section 151 officer must report, following consultation with the council’s 
monitoring officer, to all authority’s members if they believe expenditure 
is likely to exceed incoming resources in the current or in any future 
year. 

35. The report outlined the assessment of the Council’s status as a going 
concern as this is now considered best practice in the current 
challenging local government financial climate. 

36. Based on the assessment undertaken, the Council’s Chief Finance 
Officer (Section 151 officer) view was that the Council is fully aware of 
the challenges it faces and is prepared to deliver its services in the future 
taking account of the future known risks and therefore the Council is a 
going concern and the 2020/21 Statement of Accounts should be 
prepared on that basis. 

Audit Completion Report and Council’s Statement of Accounts 

37. The outcome and findings of the audit of the Council’s Statement of 
Accounts 2020/21 by the Council’s external auditor, Mazars, along with 
the audited Statement of Accounts, were reported to the Audit and 
Standards Committee 27 September 2021.  At the time of issuing the 

Page 21



report, and subject to satisfactory conclusion of the remaining audit 
work, Mazars anticipated issuing an unqualified opinion on the financial 
statements, and no significant weaknesses in arrangements to report in 
relation to the arrangements that the Council has in place to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  The 
Committee noted the contents of the report and any update reports and 
that the Accounts Committee be advised that they had no issues to raise 
on the outcomes and findings of the Council’s Statement of Accounts 
2020/21 by Mazars. 

Treasury Management Policy & Strategy and Six-Monthly Update  

38. In line with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management the 
Annual Treasury Policy and Strategy are reviewed by the Audit and 
Standards Committee prior to being reported to Cabinet and Council.  A 
six-monthly position is also reported through the Audit and Standards 
Committee to highlight progress on investment performance and 
borrowing. 

Local Code of Governance Update 

39. The Council has a local code of governance which was originally 
presented to the Audit Committee in April 2007. In line with good 
practice the document should be reviewed regularly, and the Audit and 
Standards Committee were asked to consider and approve an updated 
version on 31 January 2022, based on the CIPFA Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government: Framework.  The Code defines how 
the Council complies with the principles of good governance laid down 
by the Independent Commission on Good Governance in Public 
Services and forms an integral part of the Councils’ Annual Governance 
Statement, which is a legal requirement to demonstrate the level of 
assurance that can be given by the Council’s control systems and 
governance arrangements.   

 Review of Internal Audit Charter 

40. The Internal Audit Charter is reviewed annually, and the outcome is 
reported to the Audit and Standards Committee to seek comments and 
approval in line with Best Practice.  The Chief Internal Auditor carried out 
the annual review and confirmed that it continues to reflect best practice 
and no amendments were required.  

 External Auditor Appointments Beyond 1 April 2023 

41. A report was presented to the Committee of the optional arrangements 
for the appointment of external auditors for the financial year beginning 
on 1 April 2023, and sought agreement to accept the PSAA invitation to 
opt into the national sector-led option for the appointment of external 
auditors for five years commencing 1 April 2023, and submit any 
comments to Cabinet. 

 

Page 22



 Grant of Dispensations 

42. A report was presented to the Committee asking for dispensations to be 
granted to all Councillors who: 

• May have a prejudicial interest in any matter arising from 
consideration of reports dealing with outside bodies of which they 
are a member through appointment by the Council; 

• May have a prejudicial interest in any matter arising from 
consideration at Cabinet or Council, of reports dealing with: 

o The budget, including council tax precepts;  
o Fees and charges; 
o Capital and revenue monitoring; and 
o The medium term financial strategy. 

 
43. In accordance with the Localism Act 2011 and the Council’s Code for 

Conduct for Members, Councillors who have a registrable or non-
registrable interest in a matter arising at a meeting which is ‘prejudicial’ 
must declare the interest, not participate in a debate or vote, and leave 
the room while the matter is discussed. 

44. The Act allows councils to grant dispensations for specified period, not 
exceeding four years, in certain circumstances.  On 31 May 2012 the 
Council delegated power to grant dispensations under the following 
grounds to the Audit and Standards Committee: 

• The granting of a dispensation is in the interests of persons living in 
the Authority; and 

• It is otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation. 

45. The Committee has previously granted dispensations to all Councillors 
as set out above in paragraph 40 for a period of four years until 17 June 
2022, and agreed the recommendation to extend the dispensations for a 
four year period from 17 June 2022 to allow Councillors to participate in 
making decisions in the best interests of the people of Gateshead. 

 

 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
  COUNCIL MEETING 

13 October 2022 
 

REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL’S CONSTITUTION 
 
 

Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1. The purpose of this report is to seek approval for a number of amendments to 

the Constitution. 
 

2. The Cabinet has considered the facts and issues arising from the report  
including alternative options and took all relevant advice before formulating 
their recommendation. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
3. It is recommended that Council approves the proposed changes to the 

Council’s Constitution as set out in Appendix 2 of the attached report. 
 
 

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

     REPORT TO CABINET 
        11 October 2022 

 
TITLE OF REPORT: 
 

Review of the Council’s Constitution 

REPORT OF: Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services and 
Governance 

  
 
 Purpose of the Report  
 
1. This report asks the Cabinet to recommend the Council to approve a number of 

amendments to the Constitution. 
 

 Background  
 
2. The Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer are required to review the 

Constitution to ensure that its aims and principles are given full effect.  A number 
of areas have been identified where some amendment is necessary.  
 

 Proposal  
 
3. It is proposed to amend the Constitution as set out in Appendix 2.   

 
Recommendations 

 
4. It is recommended that the Cabinet ask the Council to agree the proposed 

changes to the Council’s Constitution as set out in Appendix 2. 
 
For the following reason: 
 
To ensure that the Constitution remains fit for purpose and that its aims and 
principles are given effect.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTACT: Mike Aynsley extension 2128  

 

Page 27



 

APPENDIX 1 
 
Policy Context  
 

1.  The Council is required by law (Local Government Act 2000) to prepare and   
 maintain a constitution.  Article 16.01 of the Council’s Constitution requires the 
 Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer to review the Constitution to ensure that 
 its aims and principles are given full effect. 

 
 Background 
 

2.  A number of amendments have been drafted which will maintain the effective 
 operation of the constitution, clarify certain aspects and keep it up to date.   
 

3. The proposed amended sections of the constitution are set out in Appendix 2. 
 

 Consultation 
 

4.  No external consultation has been carried out. 
 
 Alternative Options 
  

5.  No alternative options were considered as the Local Government Act 2000 
requires the Council to keep its constitution up to date. 

 
 Implications of Recommended Option  
 

6.  Resources 
a. Financial Implications - The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital 

confirms that there are no direct financial implications resulting from this 
report. 

b. Human Resources Implications – There are no human resources 
implications arising from this report. 

c. Property Implications – There are no property implications arising from 
this report. 

 
7.  Risk Management Implication - There are no risk management implications 

 arising from the recommended option. 
 

8.  Equality and Diversity Implications - There are no equality and diversity 
 implications arising from the recommended option. 

 
9.  Crime and Disorder Implications - There are no crime and disorder 

 implications arising from the recommended option. 
 

10.  Health Implications – There are no health implications arising from the 
 recommended option. 

 
11.  Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications - There are no climate 

emergency or sustainability implications arising from the recommended option. 
 

12.  Human Rights Implications - The Constitution already emphasises that the 
 Council will promote equal opportunities in carrying out its functions 

 Page 28



 

13.  Ward Implications - There are no specific ward implications arising from the 
recommended option. 

 
14.  Background Information - The current version of the Constitution.  

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION 
 
Page Previous Wording Amended Wording Reason 

Article 11 – Health and Wellbeing Board 

28 11.02 Composition and Procedure 
 
a) Membership 
 
Strategic Director, Children, Adults and Families 
 
 

11.02 Composition and Procedure 
 
a) Membership 
 
Strategic Director, Integrated Adults and Social 
Care Services 
Strategic Director, Children’s Social Care and 
Lifelong Learning 
 

 
 
 
 
To reflect the Council’s 
current structure 

Article 13 – Employees of the Council 

 
 
38 
 
 
 
 
40 

Functions and Areas of Responsibility 
 
Strategic Director, Housing Environment and 
Healthy Communities 
 

• Resilience and major incident planning 
 
Director of Health  
 

• Events 
 
N/A 

Functions and Areas of Responsibility 
 
Transfer the function and responsibility to the 
Director of Health and Wellbeing 
 
 
 
Transfer the function and responsibility to the 
Strategic Director, Resources and Digital 
 
 
Add allotments to the functions and responsibilities 
of the Strategic Director, Housing, Environment and 
Healthy Communities 
 
 
 

 
 
To reflect the current 
responsibilities 
 
 
 
To reflect the current 
responsibilities 
 
 
To reflect the current 
responsibilities 

P
age 31



Schedule 2 – Non-Executive Functions – Delegations to Managers 

73 Part 1 – Delegations to Individual Managers 
 
2. Strategic Director, Corporate Services and 
Governance 
 
(19)  To agree the re-structure of a service at 

 below service director level, following 
 consultation with the Leader of the Council 
 and the Strategic Director, Resources and 
 Digital. 

Part 1 – Delegations to Individual Managers 
 
2. Strategic Director, Corporate Services and 
Governance 
 
(19)  To agree the re-structure of a service at 

 below strategic director level, following 
 consultation with the Leader of the Council 
 and the Strategic Director, Resources and 
 Digital. 

 
 
 
 
 
To make the process 
more effective and 
efficient ensuring 
restructures are 
undertaken in a timely 
manner. 
 

73 3. Strategic Director, Resources and 
Governance 
 
(6) To approve all “administrative” virements, up 
 to a value of £250,000, in consultation with 
 the relevant Service Director or Service 
 Directors if the virement is across service 
 responsibility areas.  Administrative can be 
 defined as those virements where there are 
 no changes to service delivery or Council 
 policy.  An example may include a service 
 restructure or where responsibility for a 
 service delivery area is moving but 
 essentially the same service is still being 
 delivered. 
 
 

3. Strategic Director, Resources and 
Governance 
 
(6) To approve all “administrative” virements, up 
 to a value of £500,000, in consultation with 
 the relevant Service Director or Service 
 Directors if the virement is across service 
 responsibility areas.  Administrative can be 
 defined as those virements where there are 
 no changes to service delivery or Council 
 policy.  An example may include a service 
 restructure or where responsibility for a 
 service delivery area is moving but 
 essentially the same service is still being 
 delivered. 
 
 

 
 
 
To align the value with 
the key decision 
threshold. 

Part 5 – Codes and Protocols 

130 Budget and Policy Framework Rules 
 

Budget and Policy Framework Rules 
 

 
 

P
age 32



Virement 
 
6.1 Approval of virement shall be in accordance 

with the following provisions: 
 

• All “administrative” virements up to a 
value of £250,000 shall be approved by 
the Strategic Director, Resources and 
Digital in consultation with the relevant 
Service Directors under Non Executive 
delegations.  Administrative can be 
defined as those virements where there 
are no changes to service delivery or 
Council policy.  An example may include 
a service re-structure or where 
responsibility for a service delivery area is 
moving but essentially the same service 
is still being delivered. 
 

• All administrative virements above 
£250,000 are a significant decision and 
will require Cabinet approval. 
 

Virement 
 
6.2 Approval of virement shall be in accordance 

with the following provisions: 
 

• All “administrative” virements up to a 
value of £500,000 shall be approved by 
the Strategic Director, Resources and 
Digital in consultation with the relevant 
Service Directors under Non Executive 
delegations.  Administrative can be 
defined as those virements where there 
are no changes to service delivery or 
Council policy.  An example may include 
a service re-structure or where 
responsibility for a service delivery area is 
moving but essentially the same service is 
still being delivered. 
 

• All administrative virements above 
£500,000 are a significant decision and 
will require Cabinet approval. 
 

 
 

 
 
To align the value with 
the key decision 
threshold. 
 
 
 
 

Part 5 – Codes and Protocols  

 
 
 
261 
 
 
 
 

Protocol – The Role of the Director of Public 
Health  
 
2. Role and Functions of the Director of Public 
Health 
 
2.1 The Director is jointly appointed by the Council 
and the Secretary of State acting by Public Health 

Protocol – The Role of the Director of Public 
Health  
 
2. Role of the Director of Public Health 
 
2.1The Director is jointly appointed by the Council 
and the Secretary of State acting by the Office for 
Health Improvement and Disparities. (The Office for 

 
 
 
 
 
To reflect the current 
name of the body. 
 

P
age 33



 
 
 
 
 
263 
 
 
 
 
 
264 
 

England. (Public Health England will also continue 
to monitor the professional and technical 
competence of the Director throughout their term of 
office.) 
 
2.3 Health Protection 
 
• Receiving information on all health protection 

incidents and taking appropriate action with 
Public Health England and the NHS; 

 
3. Promoting public health across the Council 

and support to the Director of Public Health 
 
3.1 In order to discharge his/her responsibility to the 

Council and deliver real improvements to local 
public health, the Director must have an 
overview of the Council’s activity and the 
necessary degree of influence over it. 

 
This is achieved through: 
 
• Inclusion in the Council’s Corporate 

Management Team for consideration of all 
public health issues (including regular 
attendance on a monthly basis), and in the 
Care, Wellbeing and Learning Management 
Team generally, and at other service groups’ 
management teams where appropriate; 

 
• Having full access to papers considered by 

the Council’s corporate management team 
(via the CBS Management Team’s access 
systems), IT-based information systems, and 

Health Improvement and Disparities will also 
continue to monitor the professional and technical 
competence of the Director throughout their term of 
office.) 
 
2.3 Health Protection 
 
• Receiving information on all health protection 

incidents and taking appropriate action with the 
Office for Health Improvement and Disparities; 

 
3. Promoting public health across the Council 

and support to the Director of Public Health 
 
3.1 In order to discharge his/her responsibility to the 

Council and deliver real improvements to local 
public health, the Director must have an 
overview of the Council’s activity and the 
necessary degree of influence over it. 

 
This is achieved through: 
 
• Inclusion in the Council’s Corporate 

Management Team for consideration of all 
public health issues (including regular 
attendance on a monthly basis), and in the 
Integrated Adults and Social Care Services 
and Children’s Social Care and Lifelong 
Learning Teams generally, and at other 
service groups’ management teams where 
appropriate; 

• Having full access to papers considered by 
the Council’s corporate management team 
(via access to the systems of Integrated 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To reflect the current 
name of the body. 
 
 
 
 
 
To reflect the Council’s 
current structure 
 

P
age 34



other information needed to inform and 
support the delivery of all his/her functions; 

 
• Having day to day control of, and 

accountability for, the Council’s ring-fenced 
Public Health budget (such accountability 
being directly to the Council’s Chief 
Executive) as determined by the Council 
each budget year; 

 

Adults and Social Care Services and 
Children’s Social Care and Lifelong 
Learning), IT-based information systems, and 
other information needed to inform and 
support the delivery of all his/her functions; 

 
• Having day to day control of, and 

accountability for, the Council’s ring-fenced 
Public Health budget (such accountability 
being directly to the Council’s Chief 
Executive and the Secretary of State) as 
determined by the Council each budget year; 

 
Part 7 – Management Structure 
291 Public Health and Wellbeing 

 
Responsibilities of Group - Allotments 

 
 
Transfer this responsibility to the Strategic Director, 
Housing, Environment and Healthy Communities 

 
 
To reflect the current 
responsibilities 
 

 

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
  COUNCIL MEETING 

13 October 2022 
 

TENANCY STRATEGY AND ALLOCATIONS POLICY 
 
 

Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1.  The purpose of this report is to approve a new Tenancy Strategy and 

 Allocations Policy as part of the Council’s policy framework.  
 

2.  The Cabinet has considered the facts and issues arising from the report 
 including alternative options and took all relevant advice before formulating 
 their recommendation. 

 
3.  The Strategic Housing Board endorsed the proposed changes to both 

 documents at its meeting on 1 September 2022. Implementation of the 
 Tenancy Strategy and Allocations Policy will be monitored through the Board.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
4.  It is recommended that Council approves the Tenancy Strategy and 

 Allocations Policy. 
 
 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 of 8  
 

 

    REPORT TO CABINET  
       11 October 2022 

    
 
 

TITLE OF REPORT: Tenancy Strategy and Allocations Policy 
 
REPORT OF: Colin Huntington – Deputy Chief Executive 
 
 
Purpose of the Report  
 
1. To seek Cabinet endorsement of a new Tenancy Strategy and Allocations Policy and 

to recommend that Council approve these documents, as part of the Council’s policy 
framework.  

 
Background  
 
2. In 2021, the Council undertook an Allocations and Tenancy Review, which resulted in 

a detailed report containing the following key findings and recommendations: 
 

• Gateshead should create its own ‘Gateshead Housing Model’ – including 
Registered Providers (RP’s), Support Commissioners and Private Landlords. 

• Our allocation policies and processes should be focused on delivering solely to 
meet the needs of Gateshead 

• There should be a digital marketplace that enables self-service and a coordinated 
approach to assessing housing and support needs. 

• There should be improved formalised partnership working through a new 
Tenancy Strategy  

• We should aim for a single allocations scheme/policy with registered providers 
working with us collaboratively 

 
3. With the support of consultancy firm Campbell Tickell, we have been working on 

developing a new Tenancy Strategy and Allocations Policy over recent months. Draft 
documents were endorsed by the Strategic Housing Board, on 1st September 2022 
and can be found as follows: 

 
Appendix 2: Tenancy Strategy 
Appendix 3: Allocations Policy 
 

4. To develop and inform the proposed documents, consultation has taken place with 
internal officers (including cross council representatives), and elected members (via 
four workshops with members of the Strategic Housing Board). The Health and 
Wellbeing Board were also consulted on 15th July and Housing Portfolio members 
were consulted on 3rd August. We have also undertaken formal stakeholder 
consultation, over several months and held a final additional workshop with Tenants 
prior to the Strategic Housing Board on 1st September. Confirmation of the 
consultation and its outcomes can be found as follows: 

Page 39



 2 of 8  
 

 
Appendix 4: Formal Stakeholder Consultation Report 

 
5. Integrated Impact Assessments on the proposed changes have also been completed 

and can be found as follows: 
 

Appendix 5: Integrated Impact Assessment – Tenancy Strategy 
Appendix 6: Integrated Impact Assessment – Allocations Policy 

 
Proposal  
 
6. Copies of the proposed new Tenancy Strategy and proposed new Allocations Policy 

have been provided. A summary of the key changes and requirements for both 
documents are outlined for reference, within Appendix 1. The Strategic Housing 
Board endorsed the proposed changes at its meeting on 1st September 2022. 
 

7. Implementation of the Tenancy Strategy and Allocations Policy will be monitored 
through the Strategic Housing Board.  

 
8. A key next step, subject to approval of the proposed Tenancy Strategy and 

Allocations Policy will be to consider at a subsequent Cabinet meeting, a potential 
new integrated delivery model, that will aim to achieve our strategic housing priorities, 
(including the Council’s Thrive ambition), as well as more efficient and effective ways 
of working. 

 
Recommendations 
 
9. Cabinet is asked to recommend to Council that the Tenancy Strategy and Allocations 

Policy are approved and are included as part of the Councils policy framework. 
 
For the following reasons: 
 

(i) To ensure we are meeting all related statutory and regulatory requirements. 
 

(ii) To deliver on our related strategies, including our Housing Strategy, 
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy and Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
CONTACT:    Vicky Sibson               extension:  3013  
                       Kevin Scarlett             extension:  5306 

Page 40



 3 of 8  
 

 
          APPENDIX 1 
 
 Policy Context  
 
1. Gateshead’s strategic approach is set out in ‘Making Gateshead a place where 

everyone thrives’. Within this strategy, the Council has pledged to put people and 
families at the heart of everything we do and to tackle inequality, so people have a 
fair chance. 
 

2. Our Housing Strategy sets out key aims to improve Standards, Supply and Support. 
The Tenancy Strategy and Allocations Policy will help us to deliver on all three of 
these strategic aims.  
 

3. Our Health and Wellbeing Strategy ‘Good jobs, homes, health and friends’ also 
aims to reduce inequalities and improve health and wellbeing, for people living in 
our communities. This Tenancy Strategy and Allocations Policy will aim to deliver 
on all of the aims set out in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, but particularly the 
aim to ‘create and develop sustainable places and communities’.  

 
4. The Housing Regulatory Standards require us to let our properties in a fair, 

transparent and efficient way, make best use of our stock, reduce the amount of 
time properties are empty, address under occupation and overcrowding and to meet 
our strategic housing needs, including homelessness. This policy and strategy are 
therefore essential to ensuring both regulatory and statutory compliance.  

 
 Background 
 
5. In 2021 the Council undertook an Allocations and Tenancy Review, which resulted 

in a detailed report, which was shared with Cabinet members, containing the 
following findings and recommendations: 

 
i. Gateshead should create its own ‘Gateshead Housing Model’ – including 

Registered Providers (RP’s), Support Commissioners and Private Landlords. 
ii. Our allocation policies and processes should be focused on delivering solely to 

meet the needs of Gateshead 
iii. There should be a digital marketplace that enables self-service and a 

coordinated approach to assessing housing and support needs. 
iv. There should be improved formalised partnership working through a new 

Tenancy Strategy  
v. We should aim for a single allocations scheme/policy with registered providers 

working with us collaboratively 
 
6. With the support of consultancy firm Campbell Tickell, we have been working on 

developing a new Tenancy Strategy and Allocations Policy over recent months. 
Draft documents were endorsed by the Strategic Housing Board, on 1st September 
2022 and can be found as follows: 
 
Appendix 2: Tenancy Strategy 
Appendix 3: Allocations Policy 

 
 

Page 41



 4 of 8  
 

7. An overview of each document, with any key changes/requirements, is included 
below.  
 

8. Proposed new Allocations Policy (currently our Lettings Policy) – this sets out the 
rules by which we allocate homes, including how people qualify and how we 
prioritise applicants based on need and waiting time. The Housing Regulator states 
that we must be fair, transparent and efficient when allocating homes. The key 
proposed changes are: 

 
• Armed Forces – we wish to disregard whether the applicant was honorably or 

dishonorably discharged and remove the 5-year rule. 
• Financial Exclusion - we will exclude applicants who have savings, equity, 

income, or investments above a certain threshold as we deem them able to 
solve their housing situation. We will, however, make exceptions where 
someone is vulnerable or needs specialist accommodation such as that which is 
for older people. 

• Exclusion from the Housing Register- we are proposing to slightly modify the 
current policy on exclusions. Exclusion will be rare and only where all other 
viable options have been considered. A decision process will be introduced, and 
this will take into consideration high risk cases which require a greater degree of 
management. 

• Demotions - we are proposing to continue to treat applicants under reduced 
preference. We propose, however, that instead of demoting an applicant to the 
end of the whole list, they will be demoted to the end of their band. If they are 
willing to enter an arrangement to address the reasons for the demotion and 
complete that to our satisfaction, the demotion will be removed. We are also 
proposing not to demote applicants who qualify for the critical band 1 or the 
urgent band 2. 

• Homeless Priority Need – the proposals have adjusted existing priority banding 
levels to reduce the time spent in bed & breakfast or temporary accommodation. 
We have also recognised all intentionally homeless and those with no priority 
need. They now sit in the bands as follows: 

 
i. Critical: Statutorily homeless and those we have to place in bed & breakfast 

or temporary accommodation. (Owed a Relief or Main Homelessness Duty) 
ii. Urgent: Those threatened with homelessness. (Owed a Prevention 

Homelessness Duty) 
iii. Substantial: Intentionally Homeless Cases and Non-Priority Cases (This 

will only apply at main homelessness duty stage for non-priority cases) 
 

• Overcrowding – we are proposing that if an applicant needs 1 bedspace they 
will get a substantial priority, 2 bedspaces an urgent priority and 3 or more a 
critical priority.  

• Out of borough applicants – we have strengthened the local connection in line 
with legislation and industry practice. Currently out of borough applicants may 
join the register in band 4 and those with a local connection sit above those 
without one in the band. Following feedback within consultation sessions and 
with the Strategic Housing Board, it was recommended we continue with this 
approach within the proposed new policy. It was, however, also agreed that we 
will continue to explore the numbers joining the housing register without a local 
connection and present these findings at a later date to the Strategic Housing 

Page 42



 5 of 8  
 

Board, so it is able to review whether we should consider closing the list to 
include only those with a local connection.  

• Change of Tenancy - this whole section has been removed with the proposed 
changes. Instead, we will refer applicants to their own landlord’s tenancy 
management policy. If an applicant is a Council tenant and we have agreed to 
rehouse them under our succession rules, we will award urgent priority. 

• Tenancy Determination - we have proposed a section on granting tenancies as 
follows: 

i. Anyone who does not hold a lifetime tenancy will be issued an introductory 
tenancy for 12 months which converts to a secure tenancy. 

ii. Anyone on a lifetime tenancy will be issued another lifetime tenancy. 
iii. Flexible tenancies will be granted in adapted properties usually for 5 years, 

when the need for an adapted property will be assessed again. If an 
applicant needs something different or no longer needs the adaptations, 
they will be rehoused. 

iv. Flexible tenancies may be granted for some homeless applicants, usually 
for 3 years and if all goes well, they will be granted a secure tenancy once 
this expires. 

 
9. The proposed revisions to the Allocations Policy also ensure the document is up to 

date in terms of relevant legislation, such as the Homelessness Reduction Act and 
meets the regulatory requirements of the Housing Regulator. This includes ensuring 
fairness and transparency, an example of which is seen in the changes regarding 
how and when we allocate via a direct let and usage of assisted bidding. We have 
also reviewed the priority banding based on levels of risk and pressures to health 
and social care, consulting with colleagues in both Adult and Children’s Social Care. 
We have also consulted social care colleagues to ensure we are fully embedding 
mental health within the policy, when considering applicants medical needs. 
 

10. A proposed new Tenancy Strategy – this sets the Councils position on all tenancy 
related matters and clarifies our expectations from Registered Providers (RP’s). We 
are aiming to strengthen our relationships with the Registered Providers that 
operate in the borough, particularly as we come to establish a new Gateshead 
model for allocating homes, over the coming year.  
 

11. The Tenancy Strategy provides the foundation for stronger partnerships, so we can 
all work together to deliver on our Thrive and Health and Wellbeing ambitions. The 
delivery of the strategy will be through the Gateshead Providers Partnership. Some 
of the key points/requirements outlined include:  

 
• Increasing the supply of affordable Social Rented Homes. The strategy 

confirms that affordable homes should be no more than 80% of Market Rent and 
to be truly affordable rents should be no more than 30% of ‘take home’ pay. The 
strategy also requests that RP’s have a more flexible approach to new tenants, 
who may not have savings to pay rent upfront, enabling them to instead build 
credit over time.  

• The Council will work together with RP’s to ensure we have a clear picture 
of stock levels within the borough to inform strategic decisions. This would 
include disposals and any sales through Right to Buy/Right to Acquire and there 
are specific accommodation types the Council asks are exempt from purchase 
i.e. specialist and supported.  

Page 43



 6 of 8  
 

• There is an expectation set out that RP’s will maintain their homes to decent 
homes standard or higher.  

• The strategy proposes that the Council will discharge its homelessness duty 
via the private sector, where there is suitable accommodation at the right 
cost. This may include the use of incentives and grants for Private Landlords, 
where there is the budget to do so, to help improve properties and maintain safe 
standards.  

• The strategy sets out our position on the granting of tenancies, which includes 
our strategic objective to provide residents with long term, genuinely affordable 
homes. Lifetime tenancies are the preferred tenancy type in most 
circumstances and in our view, this should be the default offer to tenants.  

• To meet the requirements of the Domestic Abuse Act 2021, victims of 
domestic abuse will always be reissued a lifetime tenancy, where they 
have left one.  

• The strategy clarifies that we expect lifetime tenancies to be issued to 
vulnerable tenants with long term support or care needs. This may include 
those with enduring mental health needs, a learning disability, some types of 
physical disability, older people in supported accommodation/specialist housing 
and those needing specialist care 

• The strategy also supports the use of flexible tenancies, which are for less 
than 5 years, in limited circumstances – including for some types of 
supported housing, where there is a link to employment or for properties which 
have been purpose built or adapted for disabled applicants.  

• The Council wants to support tenants to maintain their tenancy and our 
expectation is that RP’s do the same. This may include targeted visits, 
rehousing to prevent further financial hardship, an available housing support 
service and support to tackle anti-social behaviour and problematic tenants.  

• The strategy also includes our support for Safe Surrender Agreements to 
enable a coordinated approach to Homelessness Prevention, which reduces the 
likelihood of someone being intentionally homeless.  

• Tenant Mobility – The Council needs family sized accommodation and expects 
all landlords to provide incentives and assistance to any tenants who wish 
to move to a smaller property. They should be encouraged to join the housing 
register and their application will be awarded a priority that reflects the demand 
for larger properties. It is also important for tenants who wish to move for 
employment, or for support and welfare reasons, to be able to do so easily. 
Applicants on the housing register wishing to transfer for these reasons will be 
awarded suitable priority.  

 
12. The Tenancy Strategy will be subject to a light touch review once the Gateshead 

Allocations Model and Marketplace is established in March 2023.  
 

13. Integrated Impact Assessments. An Integrated Impact Assessment on the 
proposed changes has been completed for both the Tenancy Strategy and 
Allocations Policy, to to ensure we are not discriminating against anyone and 
promoting equality of opportunity. These can be found as follows and each 
assessment contains a number of further actions to take forward: 
 
Appendix 5: Integrated Impact Assessment – Tenancy Strategy 
Appendix 6: Integrated Impact Assessment – Allocations Policy 
 
 

Page 44



 7 of 8  
 

Consultation 
 
14. A report containing a full overview of all consultation undertaken, for both our 

proposed Tenancy Strategy and proposed Allocations Policy can be found as 
follows: 
 
Appendix 4: Formal Stakeholder Consultation Report  
 

15. The report outlines that consultation took place with the following: 
• Elected Members (via four workshops with members of the Strategic 

Housing Board).  
• Housing Register Applicants (via a survey) 
• Gateshead Residents (public consultation via the Councils consultation 

portal) 
• Registered Providers (contacted individually as well as via our Providers 

Partnership Meeting’s) 
• Internal Stakeholders (Internal Working Groups and Project Meetings) 
• External Stakeholders (contacted individually) 
• Tenants (via a Tenants Workshop) 
• The Residents Influence Panel  
• Housing Portfolio Members  
• The Health and Wellbeing Board 

 
16. The report also provides greater detail on the consultation activity which has been 

completed, including: 
• Methodology. 
• Timeline. 
• Analysis of results. 
• The direction provided/taken from each relevant consultation activity 
• Confirmation of which proposed changes were adopted and any further 

amendments/changes made as a result of the feedback received.  
  

17. On the 1st September 2022 the Strategic Housing Board were consulted on the 
proposed new Tenancy Strategy and Allocations Policy and endorsed the proposed 
new documents.  
 

18. It should be noted that this consultation report also contains details of the 
consultation completed for the Tenancy Management Policy that was approved by 
Strategic Housing Board on 1st September, which does not require approval by 
Cabinet. 
 

 Alternative Options 
 
19. There are no alternative options. An Allocations Policy and a Tenancy Strategy are 

both required to ensure we are meeting our regulatory and statutory requirements.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



 8 of 8  
 

Implications of Recommended Option  
 
20. Resources: 
 

a) Financial Implications – The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital 
confirms there are no financial implications directly arising from this report.  

 
b) Human Resources Implications – There are no human resource implications 

directly arising from this report.  
 
c) Property Implications - We are aiming to have a broad impact on improving 

our communities and neighbourhoods, through greater partnership working with 
others, to deliver our strategic housing aims.  

 
21. Risk Management Implications – Integrated Impact Assessments have been 

completed for both the Tenancy Strategy and Allocations Policy, with any mitigatory 
actions required included.  

 
22. Equality and Diversity Implications – The Tenancy Strategy and Allocations 

Policy will aim to reduce inequalities within Gateshead. Integrated Impact 
Assessments have been carried out to identify potential implications and impacts 
related to protected characteristics identified in the Equality Act 2010.  

 
23. Crime and Disorder Implications – The Tenancy Strategy and Allocations Policy 

will contribute to the achievement of reducing crime and disorder in Gateshead.  
 
24. Health Implications - The Tenancy Strategy and Allocations Policy will contribute 

to the achievement of improving health and wellbeing outcomes for local people 
and aim to reduce inequalities within Gateshead. 
 

25. Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications – The Tenancy Strategy and 
Allocations Policy will contribute to the achievement of having sustainable 
communities and neighbourhoods within Gateshead.  

 
26. Human Rights Implications - there are no Human Rights implications relating to 

this report. 
 

27. Ward Implications - all wards within the borough are covered by the Tenancy 
Strategy and Allocations Policy.  

 
 

 

Page 46



Tenancy Strategy 
2022 - 2027 

Appendix 2

Page 47



 

Page 2 of 18         Tenancy Strategy 2022 – 2027 v4 

 

Contents 

1. Introduction 3 

2. Strategic Aims 4 

3. Population demographics within Gateshead 5 

4. Social Housing in Gateshead 6 

5. Rent Levels and Affordability 9 

6. Discharge of Homelessness Duty 11 

7. Granting of Tenancies 12 

8. Tenancy Sustainment 14 

9. Succession 15 

10. Tenant Mobility 15 

11. Purchasing a socially rented Home 16 

12. Measuring the impact of the Tenancy Strategy 17 

13. Equalities 17 

14. Implementation of the Strategy 17 

 

  

Page 48



 

Page 3 of 18         Tenancy Strategy 2022 – 2027 v4 

 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The Localism Act 2011 places an obligation on each local authority to have a 
tenancy strategy which is drafted in consultation with the housing providers. It 
sets our expectations and of registered providers in the borough and provides 
guidance on our preferred approach to tenure and affordability with specific 
consideration on:  

 the types of tenancies they will grant 

 the circumstances under which different types of tenancies will be granted 

 when they grant fixed-term tenancies, the length of the fixed term and 
whether they grant a further tenancy when the fixed term expires. 

 
1.2 Gateshead Council has a strategic vision to ‘make Gateshead a place where 

everyone thrives,’ the principles of which are: 
 put people and families at the heart of everything we do 
 tackle inequality so people have a fair chance 
 support our communities to support themselves and each other 
 invest in our economy to provide opportunities for employment, innovation 

and growth 
 work together and fight for a better future for Gateshead 

 
1.3 We value the rights of households some of whom are in the direst need, to be 

housed in the most suitable accommodation, and to receive the right kind of 
support in a tenancy which is aimed at providing them with a home which will 
promote their health and wellbeing. We value the need to listen to our tenants 
when identifying the support required and the delivery of housing services and 
we also value the need to identify and delivery long term housing solutions. 

1.4 We have recently introduced a new homelessness and rough sleepers strategy 
and homelessness charter following a review in 2021. The main conclusions 
were: 

 The need to develop youth homelessness joint working protocols with 
colleagues in social care for 16/17-year-olds and care leavers 

 Early intervention and greater homelessness prevention focus for victims 
of domestic abuse i.e. home security and outreach support 

 To undertake further needs analysis (Domestic Abuse, Young People and 
those with Multiple and Complex Needs) and review/remodel supported 
accommodation and floating support to better match need/demand. This 
includes 24/7 access to accommodation to prevent rough sleeping/use of 
bed and breakfast accommodation.  

 To develop a new homelessness pathway where referrals are 
made/coordinated via a central ‘Gateway’ with ‘trusted assessments,’ a 
performance monitoring framework and a better understanding of 
needs/demand.  

 To work with registered providers and private landlords to increase 
housing options for those who are homeless, or at risk of homelessness.  

Page 49



 

Page 4 of 18         Tenancy Strategy 2022 – 2027 v4 

 

 To implement a changing futures programme for those with multiple and 
complex needs, to inform learning and system change in Gateshead as 
well as regionally and nationally. 
 

1.5 In 2021 we also undertook a comprehensive review of allocations and tenancy 
management within Council stock. The review identified the need to introduce a 
new Gateshead Housing Model which will encompass: 

 A whole system response – that includes support commissioners, 
registered providers and private landlords. 

 Policies and processes focused on delivering solely to meet the needs of 
Gateshead. 

 Consolidated ‘pool’ of specialist and general housing. 

 A digital marketplace, which enables self-service. 

 A coordinated approach to assessing housing and support needs, 
commissioning and allocating solution, with oversight of the customer 
journey. 

 Improved formalised partnership working with accommodation registered 
providers through a new Tenancy Strategy. 

 A single allocations scheme/policy with registered providers working with 
us collaboratively. 

1.6 The Social Housing Green Paper, published in 2018, proposed a new deal for 
social housing. In November 2020. The Government published its White Paper, 
The Charter for Social Housing Residents, which affirms social rented homes as 
places where residents can put down roots and build communities. It also 
recognises that the COVID-19 pandemic has reinforced the importance of 
people’s homes, communities and neighbourhoods. 

1.7 Gateshead wants those allocated social housing to see their homes as genuine 
places to settle, not as temporary welfare provision. Residents should have 
control over their lives and homes as this can help to build thriving, cohesive 
communities. Offering lifetime tenancies at social rent levels best supports this in 
most cases.  

2. Strategic Aims 

In introducing this Tenancy Strategy we intend to deliver a number of aims: 
 

Aim 1: To set out our expectations for our partner registered providers 
when formulating their own housing policies. 

Aim 2: To provide a clear development mandate across the borough and 
specifically with areas subjected to local plans. 

Aim 3: To assist affordable housing developers to understand what the 
council requires of social housing landlords who own, let and 
manage stock  

Page 50



 

Page 5 of 18         Tenancy Strategy 2022 – 2027 v4 

 

Aim 4: To ensure that the supply of affordable housing is genuinely 
affordable and built to a good standard to meet the needs of local 
residents, specifically of those on low income. The development of 
this supply will be linked to the aims set out in the housing strategy 
in response to climate and net zero. 

Aim 5: To support communities to thrive through the creation of 
sustainable social housing offers. 

Aim 6: To meet housing need, whilst recognising that need changes and 
evolves and the service needs to be able to flex with that evolution. 

3. Population demographics within Gateshead 

3.1 The borough of Gateshead is in the metropolitan county of Tyne and Wear, North 
East England. It includes Gateshead, Rowlands Gill, Whickham, Blaydon, Ryton, 
Felling, Pelaw, Dunston and Low Fell. The borough forms part of the Tyneside 
conurbation, centred on Newcastle upon Tyne. It is bordered by the local 
authorities areas of Newcastle upon Tyne to the north, Northumberland to the 
west, County Durham to the south, the City of Sunderland to the south-east, and 
South Tyneside to the east. 

3.2 In 2021, Gateshead recorded a population of 202,823 people. The table below 
shows the population of Gateshead and the North East of England together with 
predictions until 2027. 

  Gateshead North East 
2021 202,823 2,681,149 
2022 (prediction) 202,807 2,687,238 
2023 (prediction) 202,782 2,693,063 
2024 (prediction) 202,750 2,698,668 
2025 (prediction) 202,696 2,704,000 
2026 (prediction) 202,630 2,709,320 
2027 (prediction) 202,589 2,714,451 

*Office of National Statistics 2021 

 

The prediction for population growth is a diminishing which is contrast with the 
North East a whole which expects rises between 3,000 to 5,000. 

 
3.3 When we look at the age of the population in Gateshead, we can those falling 

between 20 – 49 years old are slightly higher in proportion to the region, whereas 
50 – 64-year-olds are same across the region and those in 0-19 and above 65 
are slightly lower than for the region. 
 

Page 51



 

Page 6 of 18         Tenancy Strategy 2022 – 2027 v4 

 

 
*Office of National Statistics 2021 

 

3.4 The 2011 census shows that 95% of the population was white British and less 
than 10% of the population is made up of people from other ethnic groups. The 
North East of England shows a similar position. The 2021 census data is 
imminent, and we will capture these figures once this has been published. 

3.5 Properties in Gateshead had an overall average price of £149,949 over the last year. 
The majority of sales were semi-detached properties, selling for an average price of 
£164,130. Terraced properties sold for an average of £147,439, with flats fetching 
£101,290. Overall, prices were 2% down on the previous year and 1% up on the 
2018 peak of £148,008. 

3.6 Average earnings in the borough were £468 per week with the North East as a region 
being £528 which shows that many in Gateshead earn 11% lower than others in the 
region. Purchasing a property on these weekly averages will prove problematic for 
many residents in the borough. 

4. Social Housing in Gateshead 

4.1 We can demonstrate through a series of ward maps the properties density for 
council stock, registered providers, private sector rented and owner occupier. 

4.2 Council properties by ward are shown in the map below and we can see that they 
are fairly evenly distributed across the borough with the exception of the west. 
The darkest blue wards show the highest property density for council stock. 

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

0-19 20-49 50-64 65+

Gateshead and North East Age Breakdown

Gateshead % North East %

Page 52



 

Page 7 of 18         Tenancy Strategy 2022 – 2027 v4 

 

 

4.3 The map of registered properties by ward shown below, demonstrates that these 
properties only significantly appear in the north east and then primarily in two 
wards. There are no wards where registered providers properties exceed 20% 
density. 

 

 

4.4 Seen below the map of private rented properties by ward shows that there a high 
presence of this type of accommodation with much of the borough showing 
density levels of 30% and some wards as high as 50%. There are no wards 
below 10%.  

 

 

4.5 The final map (below) shows the owner occupiers by ward. We can see that that 
the east and south of the borough where social rented properties are fewest in 
number are heavily populated with significantly high numbers of owner-occupied 
properties; the density levels often exceeding 60%. 

Page 53



 

Page 8 of 18         Tenancy Strategy 2022 – 2027 v4 

 

 

 

4.6 We will work with our landlords and community-led housing developers to 
maximise the opportunities to deliver affordable properties including social rented 
properties and will seek to leverage funding through Homes England funding 
regimes to support this where scheme viability is an issue. The priority, driven by 
the severe affordability issues in areas within our borough, is to protect and 
increase the supply of social housing in Gateshead alongside the provision of 
other affordable housing options. 

4.7 We are working to deliver the aims and objectives of the Core Strategy and 
Urban Core Plan which is located on our website: Core Strategy and Urban Core 
Plan for Gateshead and Newcastle 2010-2030 - Gateshead Council. This is 
targeting the delivery of family homes which are in high demand. We are 
balancing this with the need to  protect our green spaces and even replace what 
is lost by development all of which is captured in part 3 of the strategy; Making 
Spaces for Growing Places:  Making Spaces for Growing Places - Gateshead 
Council 

4.8 There is currently a pipeline of sites identified for development which incorporate 
affordable housing. Of those under development it is anticipated that over 400 
affordable units will be built including 286 for affordable rent. The range of 
affordable tenures will allow some people to get onto the property ladder and 
include 72 units for shared ownership and another 15 for discounted market 
sales. 

4.9 Of the affordable units under construction, a range of property types will be 
provided. These will primarily be 2 and 3 bed houses and 1 bed flats. The 
Council works proactively with registered providers and developers to influence 
property type; this is informed by the housing register. 

 

Page 54



 

Page 9 of 18         Tenancy Strategy 2022 – 2027 v4 

 

4.10 We also recognise that our registered providers may have to dispose of stock 
where it is not cost effective to maintain it to the Decent Homes Standard, or it is 
hard to let, either because of the type of accommodation or area in which it is 
located. Where this becomes necessary, particularly where a property has been 
given in trust, or where Gateshead or Homes England have invested in the 
property, the full gain (less any transaction and ancillary costs) from disposal 
should be reinvested back into the borough. 

4.11 Social housing may be repurposed where disposal is not the most effective 
solutions, and the Council will work with the relevant landlord to obtain the best 
possible outcome. 

4.12 The partnership between the Council and landlord ensures that adequate notice 
is given of any proposed  disposal, thereby allowing the Council to consider the 
variety of options available to it. 

4.13 To avoid property disposals as a result of poor property standards, we expect all 
social landlords to maintain their property portfolios to the Decent Homes 
Standard or equivalent or higher standard. This will also promote the benefits of 
better health and wellbeing. 

4.14 There is growing evidence that by joining up planning for housing with planning for 
health and wellbeing, significant benefits both to individuals and communities can 
be seen, helping people to thrive. This is one of the Council’s priorities, and our 
commitment together with registered providers is to: 

 Deliver social homes to the Decent Homes Standard or higher. 

 Build genuinely affordable places to live where residents can settle and 
develop a commitment to their local community. 

5. Rent Levels and Affordability 

5.1 The government promotes work to reduce dependency on benefits, so it is 
important that rent levels in Gateshead are affordable and do not deter the tenant 
from entering employment. 

5.2 Our Housing Strategy developed with planning sets out the delivery aims for an 
affordable housing programme that has the right mix of social housing products 
and sets out the measures that we employ to achieve the desired outcomes. We 
recognise a coordinated approach with registered providers is essential to deliver 
those outcomes.  

5.3 Each scheme that is considered will aim for the most affordable rent level. A 
social rent comparison will be undertaken in order to determine whether the rents 
will be formula rents or affordable rents set at 80% market rent level. We have to 
consider scheme viability and the cost to the tenant overall in terms of rent and 
service charge when considering the rent level. 

5.4 If we look at rent levels now it gives an indication of where we are and the need to 
keep a downward pressure on rent levels when we take into consideration the 
average weekly income. Rents for social housing should be based on social rent 
levels and ideally should be no more than 30% of a household ‘take home’ pay 
where this is viable and achievable. Higher than this and it will prove a barrier to 
those on low incomes including people on apprenticeships, key workers. 

Page 55



 

Page 10 of 18         Tenancy Strategy 2022 – 2027 v4 

 

 
 1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 4 bed 

Council £75 £84 £91 £96 

Register Provider £77 £81 £89 NA 

Private – 30th percentile £97 £115 £137 £207 

Private – 80% median £82 £101 £120 £188 

Private – Median £103 £126 £150 £235 

Private -  Upper Quartile £126 £150 £173 £300 

 

The Council also has larger units with average weekly rents of: 
 5 bed £106 
 6 bed £109 
 7 bed £123 
 8 bed  £118 

 

5.5 We can also look at shared ownership weekly rents in terms of affordability. The 
percentages represent the equity owned by the tenant. The tenant pays rent based 
on the equity they own and their mortgage. 

 

 Lower Quartile Median 

 25% 50% 75% 25% 50% 75% 

1 bed flat £44 £52 £63 £51 £62 £73 

2 bed flat £50 £61 £72 £57 £70 £82 

3 bed house £81 £98 £115 £106 £128 £151 

 

Figures are derived from median house prices and do not include ground rent or 
service charges. Rents are assumed at 2.75% and mortgages payments are derived 
from average bank and building society rates. Loan-to-value is assumed at 90% in all 
cases i.e. it is assumed that the buyer has made a 10% deposit on the portion of the 
property they have bought. Homebuy assumes a 75% purchase with a 25% equity 
loan on which no payments are made. 

 

 

 

 

Page 56



 

Page 11 of 18         Tenancy Strategy 2022 – 2027 v4 

 

5.6 In order to put affordability into context we may review the diagram below. 

 

 

This chart shows the number of households in different household income bands in 
the area (bars) compared to the lower quartile price for different property types in 
the same area (horizontal lines). The diagonal lines rising from left to right show the 
value of property that can be afforded at different income multiples by a first-time 
buyer and former owner occupier. The affordability calculations are based on a 
multiple of the average household income adjusted by the average loan to value for 
the different types of buyer. The house price data is based on data from the 
Hometrack Automated Valuation Model and the incomes data is supplied by CACI. 

 

5.7 New tenants are unlikely to have sufficient savings to secure a deposit or pay 
rent in advance. We ask that registered providers reflect the payment of rent in 
advance at sign up in their policies and have a flexible payment approach to 
allow the tenant to build the sufficient level of credit over time. 

6. Discharge of Homelessness Duty 

6.1 Since the introduction of the Localism Act 2011, local authorities can discharge 
their homelessness duties through an offer of suitable accommodation in the 
private rented sector. Where properties of a suitable standard can be found at the 
right cost, Gateshead will undertake a suitability check and if successful, will 
make an offer of private sector accommodation in line with the Homelessness 
Code of Guidance for Local Authorities and the Homelessness (Suitability of 
Accommodation) (England) Order 2012.  

Page 57



 

Page 12 of 18         Tenancy Strategy 2022 – 2027 v4 

 

6.2 We are working to understand the numbers of private sector landlords in Gateshead 
in order to secure a supply of good quality properties. Where budgets allow, we offer 
incentives and grants to private sector landlords to help them improve their properties 
and maintain them to safe standards appropriate for letting. We seek to establish 
affordable rents within the private sector with capping at the Local Housing 
Allowance. This is an area of work we would like to make strides on developing over 
the next few years. 

6.3 Over the next 12 months we are seeking to build a partnership framework with 
registered providers which will enable us to work together to discharge our homeless 
duty in both council and register provider stock. As we develop the partnership 
agreement, we will scope the arrangements around how refugees are housed and 
the allocation and letting of homes from the housing register. It is intended that 
registered providers will be able to advertise their property on the Gateshead choice-
based lettings system which is due for completion by April 2023. 

7. Granting of Tenancies 

Rights and Responsibilities 

7.1 All tenants need to be able to make informed choices about their housing options. We 
will work with our registered providers to make the process of offering tenancies as 
clear and transparent as possible. It is essential that applicants understand what they 
are being offered. All registered providers understand the need to explain the rights 
and responsibilities in a pre-tenancy session usually called a sign up or tenancy 
determination. 

Licence to Occupy 

7.2 Tenants in our temporary accommodation are signed up on non-secure tenancies, 
usually a licence to occupy. The home is not permanent and only available to the 
household whilst the Council assesses their duty under the Homelessness 
legislation. 

 

Introductory or Starter Tenancies  

7.3 Starter or Introductory tenancies are usually offered to someone who has never 
held a social tenancy before or someone who requires support during the initial 
period of their tenancy.  

7.4 The initial period is for 12 months, after which it will convert to a lifetime tenancy 
unless the relevant notices have been served to extend the introductory/starter 
period for a further 6 months. This may be done where the tenant would benefit 
from further support or intensive management. 

7.5 The landlord must hold regular reviews with the tenant and provide them with 
every assistance and support to sustain the tenancy including signposting them 
to external agencies where necessary. 

7.6 Where the initial 12 months has been extended or a decision has been made to 
commence possession proceedings, the tenant has a statutory right of appeal, 
and the landlord must invest in the resources to undertake these effectively. 

 

Page 58



 

Page 13 of 18         Tenancy Strategy 2022 – 2027 v4 

 

Lifetime Tenancies 

7.7 Social rented homes support our strategic objective to provide residents with long 
term, genuinely affordable homes. Lifetime tenancies are the preferred tenancy 
type in most circumstances and in our view, this should be the default offer to 
tenants. 

7.8 Landlords are asked to offer assured (non-shorthold) tenancies (as defined by 
the Housing Act 1988). These can only be ended if the tenant breaches the 
tenancy conditions, and the landlord obtains possession through the Court. 

7.9 Social housing tenants with lifetime tenancies that were issued before 01 April 
2012, and who have remained social housing tenants, have their security of 
tenure protected by law. The Localism Act 2011 s.154 and regulatory framework 
for social housing require all landlords to offer lifetime tenancies when these 
tenants move to another social rented home. This includes mutual exchanges, 
transfers, or moves as a result of major works or regeneration. Where a social 
housing tenant has been given a lifetime tenancy on or after 01 April 2012, and 
they swap their home with a social housing tenant who has a fixed term tenancy, 
they will lose their lifetime tenancy. 

7.10 The Domestic Abuse Act 2021 requires in cases of domestic abuse, that 
landlords issue new lifetime tenancies, where a tenant previously had a lifetime 
tenancy. We expect this to be undertaken by their own landlord. but where this is 
not possible or they need emergency rehousing, this will be assessed under the 
homelessness legislation by the local authority. 

7.11 We expect lifetime tenancies to be issued to vulnerable tenants with long term 
support or care needs. This may include the following:  

 those with enduring mental health needs 

 those with a learning disability 

 some types of physical disability 

 older people in supported accommodation (but not adapted properties)  

 older people moving into specialist, sheltered or extra care housing, 
particularly those giving up a larger home and a lifetime tenancy 

 those needing specialist care 

 

Flexible Tenancies  

7.12 Most Registered Providers, but not all, offer fixed term tenancies, particularly 
when letting at Affordable Rent or the property is adapted. The Regulator of 
Social Housing expects that fixed term tenancies should be for a minimum of five 
years or no later than the 19th birthday of the oldest child wherever sooner. They 
may also be granted a fixed term tenancy for a minimum of two years where the 
initial 12 months of an introductory tenancy has been concluded.  

7.13 Landlords who issue fixed term tenancies must have a policy supported by an 
Equalities and Communities Impact Assessment, stating clearly under what 
circumstances they will be granted. 

 

Page 59



 

Page 14 of 18         Tenancy Strategy 2022 – 2027 v4 

 

7.14 Fixed term tenancies which are less than five years are used exceptionally in 
some of the following cases: 

 for short term supported housing designated as move-on; 

 where it is linked to employment or educational opportunities such key 
worker accommodation, where the renewal of tenancies should take place 
at the renewal of an employment contract subject to suitability of the 
accommodation. 

7.15 We support the use of fixed term tenancies in properties that have been purpose 
built or substantially adapted for disabled occupants. Such adaptations can be 
expensive, and it is important that adapted homes are made available and let to 
those who need them. We would expect that the tenancy is automatically 
renewed if there have been no changes in the household circumstances. 
However, if there has been a change, and the adaptations are no longer needed, 
the household should be re-housed by their landlord.  

7.16 Fixed term tenancies; at nine and six months before the tenancy end date. At 
nine months they should be given an indication as to whether there tenancy will 
be renewed. They must receive notice by six months if their tenancy is not going 
to renewed and the reasons should be explained clearly together with an 
alternative housing solution plan; one of the avenues being, a referral to the 
Council in line with the provision made by the Homelessness Reduction Act 
2017. 

7.17 Exceptional circumstances where a tenancy is not renewed may include:  

 where a tenant wishes to end their own tenancy 

 where the home has been adapted but those adaptations are no longer 
required, and the home would meet the needs of another household on 
the housing register 

 where the behaviour of the tenant is prohibitive, and the landlord has 
exhausted all measures to provide tenancy support. 

8. Tenancy Sustainment 

8.1 We are committed to helping tenants to maintain their tenancy in both temporary 
accommodation, private rented and council accommodation. The council’s 
tenancy management policy sets our remit in relation to tenancy sustainment, 
and we have the same expectation of our landlords in relation to: 

 a range of targeted visits during the lifespan of a tenancy 
 rehousing where financial hardship would lead to tenancy failure 
 a housing support service, covering a range of advice and assistance 
 tenant orientated employment opportunities 
 tackling anti-social behaviour through a range of measures 
 making it easier for tenants to manage their own homes. 

 
8.2 The aim whether delivered by the Council or one of its partner landlords, is to 

provide the right aid at the right time and at times this may be bespoke to a 
household. Tenants who have been allocated a general needs property may 
need supported housing and this will be assessed as one of the measures. 

Page 60



 

Page 15 of 18         Tenancy Strategy 2022 – 2027 v4 

 

8.3 Where a tenancy is failing but has not yet met the threshold for eviction, we may 
consider a safe surrender agreement if rehousing is the only way to assist the 
tenant and the landlord has exhausted all other ways to keep them safely in their 
home. The agreement would be between the landlord, the homeless service and 
the tenant who surrenders their tenancy on a voluntarily basis thereby allowing 
the Council to pick them up under a prevention duty rather than an intentionally 
homeless. 

8.4 Safe surrender agreements and possession of a property should be a last resort 
and every effort should be made to sustain the tenancy where possible. We 
recognise that may not be possible where the housing needs of the individual 
may be complex and not suited to the accommodation. We will work with 
registered landlords and private landlords to find a way to keep tenants in their 
home and where this is not possible to identify a satisfactory solution. 

8.5 Where domestic abuse is identified, a solution that looks at the best outcome for 
the survivors including children will be sought. Where relocation of the 
perpetrator would provide the best remedy, this may be considered as an option 
on a case-by-case basis.  

9. Succession 

9.1 Legislation has a provision for statutory succession rights for secure and assured 
tenants. There is one right to succeed. The law does not grant a further 
succession right if the successor then dies. 

9.2 Historically, there were significant differences between the succession rights of 
assured and secure tenants. The Localism Act 2011 introduced changes to 
harmonise succession between the two, however there remains significant 
differences, the Localism Act changes affect tenancies granted from April 2012 
onwards, but not those granted before that date. 

9.3 Some landlords offer more generous succession rights than the statutory legal 
minimum, allowing tenancy rights to be passed on a second time or to be 
conferred in circumstances when the tenant would not normally qualify for a 
statutory succession. The rights may contractual, i.e. written into their tenancy 
agreement or discretionary and assessed on a case-by-case basis.  

9.4 The Tenancy Standard governed by the Regulator of Social Housing, requires 
social landlords to have a succession policy which explains all the succession 
rights that apply to their tenants. 

10. Tenant Mobility 

Downsizing  

10.1 The Council needs family sized accommodation and expects all landlords to 
provide incentives and assistance to any of its tenants who wish to move to a 
smaller property. They should be encouraged to join the housing register and 
their application will be awarded a priority that reflect the demand for larger 
properties. 

 

Page 61



 

Page 16 of 18         Tenancy Strategy 2022 – 2027 v4 

 

10.2 Residents who claim benefits in under occupied units are subject to the Spare 
Room Subsidy (also known as bedroom tax), which can have a negative impact, 
making affordability an issue and having a detrimental effect on health and 
wellbeing. Anyone who is a permanent part of the household but not living with 
them at the time of the application will be taken into account before moving them 
to a smaller property. 

10.3 We will work with landlords to aid in this activity and promote the available 
funding options to facilitate small works or adaptations to meet identified needs. 

 
Moving for employment, social or welfare reasons 

10.4 It is important for tenants who wish to move for employment, or for support and 
welfare reasons, to be able to do so easily. Applicants on the housing register 
wishing to transfer for these reasons will be awarded suitable priority.  

10.5 Registered providers should enable suitable moves to support the recruitment 
and retention of essential key workers, health and support workers in the 
borough. 

10.6 Consideration and support should be given to the priority awards set out in the 
Council’s Allocation Policy.  

11. Purchasing a socially rented Home 

11.1 As a local authority, we are supportive of creating new opportunities for those 
who wish to own their own home. However, we are also acutely aware of the 
need to maintain the availability of genuinely affordable rented accommodation. 

11.2 Tenants who are eligible will be able to purchase their home from their landlord 
provided it is not exempt.  

 Council tenants will have a Right to Buy.  

 Registered provider tenants may be able to purchase through the 
voluntary Right to Buy or the Right to Acquire schemes. 

11.3 Registered providers will keep the Council informed of any purchases through 
these schemes in order for us to maintain the data of available social rented 
stock in the borough. 

11.4 As part of our working relationship with registered providers, we ask that the 
following properties be exempt from purchase:  

 properties in rural locations, where the number of available properties are 
low, and the aim is to preserve current community stability 

 designated accommodation for Older People; where this accommodation 
is in short supply 

 specialist or supported housing 
 disabled adapted properties secured through planning obligations 
 shared accommodation. 

 
 
 

Page 62



 

Page 17 of 18         Tenancy Strategy 2022 – 2027 v4 

 

12. Measuring the impact of the Tenancy Strategy 

12.1 Gateshead will monitor the delivery of this strategy via: 

 Discussions with residents of the borough 
 Tenancy sustainment reviews by Registered Providers. 
 Feedback from the Private Rented Sector 

Annual appraisals with Registered Providers and the effectiveness of their 
own tenancy policies. 
 

12.2 In addition to the above, the Council has regular Registered Provider partnership 
meetings throughout the year. The effectiveness of the strategy will be discussed 
at prescribed intervals at these meetings. 

12.3 This strategy will be reviewed every 5 years – unless legislation, business or 
sector developments require otherwise – to ensure that it continues to meet the 
stated objectives and takes account of good practice developments. 

12.4 We aim to mitigate any risk associated with the delivery of this strategy and its 
implementation by landlord tenancy policies through discussion and negotiation. 

12.5 Rent levels and affordability on new and existing properties will be subject to 
scrutiny and aligned with the housing strategy. 

12.6 The action identified by the homeless review will be planned and executed to 
achieve the highest possible outcome. Equally Gateshead will take the necessary 
measures to embed the new Housing Model. 

13. Equalities 

Under the Equality Act 2010 and in particular section 149 of the Public Sector 
Equality Duty, Councils are required to give due regard to eliminate discrimination, 
advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between those who 
share a protected characteristic and those who do not, when exercising a public 
function such as a landlord. The protected characteristics are age, disability, 
gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.  
 
This strategy complies with the Council’s Equal Opportunities policy 
Equal_Opportunities_Policy1.pdf (gateshead.gov.uk) which sets out our 
commitments to ensuring in equality in service delivery. It was subjected to an 
Integrated Impact Assessment (IiA) before it has being adopted. The impact will 
continue to be monitored throughout the administration of the strategy. 

14. Implementation of the Strategy 

We will produce a delivery plan with our partners, using the aims and the actions 
identified within the strategy. We have a shared commitment across our key 
partners and stakeholders to support the delivery of this strategy, as the 
achievement of our vision is dependent upon their contribution. The Strategic 
Housing Board and the Health and Wellbeing Board will have oversight of the 
implementation of the strategy and will monitor and review progress.  

Page 63



 

Page 18 of 18         Tenancy Strategy 2022 – 2027 v4 

 

Gateshead Council and the Housing Providers Partnership will jointly own the 
strategy. The intention is to establish a formal partnership to be responsible for 
delivery and it will include other partners. A project team will be established to 
drive the changes and lead partners will be identified for the delivery of specific 
actions. 

Page 64



Page 1 of 51 Allocations Policy v10 

Allocations Policy 

October 2022 

Appendix 3

Page 65



 

Page 2 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

Table of Contents 

Part 1: Introduction ........................................................................................................... 5 

1.1 Allocations and Lettings in Gateshead ................................................................. 5 

1.2 The Legal Framework.......................................................................................... 5 

1.3 Allocation of a Tenancy ....................................................................................... 6 

1.4 Right to Move ...................................................................................................... 6 

1.5 Statement of Choice ............................................................................................ 6 

1.6 Data Protection.................................................................................................... 6 

1.7 Equalities, Access and Monitoring ....................................................................... 7 

1.8 Force Majeure ..................................................................................................... 7 

1.9 Changes to the Allocations Policy ....................................................................... 7 

Part 2: Allocations Delivery Model .................................................................................. 8 

Part 3: Nationwide rules on Eligibility ............................................................................. 9 

3.1 Eligibility .............................................................................................................. 9 

3.1.1 Special arrangements for 16 – 18-year-olds .................................................... 9 

3.1.2 Persons from Abroad ....................................................................................... 9 

3.2 Refugees and Asylum Seekers ......................................................................... 10 

3.3 Gypsies and Travellers ...................................................................................... 10 

3.4 The Armed Forces Covenant ............................................................................. 10 

Part 4: Registration for the Gateshead Housing Register............................................ 11 

4.1 Help and Assistance .......................................................................................... 11 

4.2 Qualification Rules ............................................................................................ 11 

4.3 Non-Qualification Rules (Exclusions) ................................................................. 12 

4.3.1 Financial Exclusion ............................................................................................ 12 

4.4 Applicants Demoted under Reduced Preference ............................................... 13 

4.5 Exceptional Circumstances ............................................................................... 14 

4.6 Making an Application ....................................................................................... 14 

4.7 Verification Checks and References .................................................................. 14 

4.8 Household Splits ............................................................................................... 15 

4.9 False Information ............................................................................................... 15 

4.10 Change in Circumstances ................................................................................. 16 

4.11 Cancellation of Applications............................................................................... 16 

4.12 Deliberate or Worsening Circumstances............................................................ 16 

4.13 Elected Members & Employees (incl: close relatives) ........................................ 17 

Part 5: Assessment of an Application ........................................................................... 18 

5.1 Allocation by Household Type and Property Size ........................................... 18 

5.1.1 Size Allowance .............................................................................................. 18 

Page 66



 

Page 3 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

5.1.2 Property Allocation Table ............................................................................... 19 

5.2 Assessment of Housing Need ........................................................................ 20 

5.3 Housing Need Categories .............................................................................. 20 

5.3.1 Homelessness ............................................................................................... 20 

5.3.2 Witness Protection ......................................................................................... 21 

5.3.3 Public Protection ............................................................................................ 21 

5.3.4 Property Condition ......................................................................................... 22 

5.3.5 Medical Priority .............................................................................................. 22 

5.3.6 People with Carers......................................................................................... 25 

5.3.7 Anti – Social Behaviour .................................................................................. 25 

5.3.8 Decants ......................................................................................................... 26 

5.3.9 Overcrowding................................................................................................. 26 

5.3.10 Foster Carers and Safeguarding Children ...................................................... 27 

5.3.11 Young People and Care Leavers (age 16 + extended to age 24 if in further 
education) .................................................................................................................... 27 

5.3.12 Financial Hardship ......................................................................................... 28 

5.3.13 Under Occupation .......................................................................................... 28 

5.3.14 Releasing or Needing a Specialist (adapted) Property ................................... 28 

5.3.15 Service Accommodation ................................................................................ 28 

5.3.16 Succession .................................................................................................... 29 

5.3.17 Children in blocks with lifts ............................................................................. 29 

5.3.18 Move On Agencies and Key Worker Schemes ............................................... 29 

5.4 Housing Priority Bands .................................................................................. 30 

5.5 Placement in the Band ................................................................................... 31 

5.6 Determination of Effective Band Date ............................................................ 31 

5.7 Notification of your Assessment ........................................................................ 31 

Part 6: Advertising and Lettings .................................................................................... 32 

6.1 Choice Based Lettings (Advertised Properties).................................................. 32 

6.2 Direct Lets Protocol ........................................................................................... 32 

6.3 How will you know which properties are available? ........................................... 32 

6.4 How will you know which properties you can express an interest in? ................. 33 

6.4.1 Assisted Bidding ............................................................................................ 33 

6.4.2 Auto Bidding .................................................................................................. 33 

6.4.3 Grouped Bids ................................................................................................. 33 

6.4.4 Retrospective Bids ......................................................................................... 33 

6.4.5 Failure to Bid.................................................................................................. 34 

6.5 How are applicants’ bids ranked? ...................................................................... 34 

6.6 How will you know if your expression of interest has been successful? ............. 34 

Page 67



 

Page 4 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

6.7 Offer of Accommodation .................................................................................... 35 

6.8 Refusals ............................................................................................................ 35 

6.9 Sensitive Lets .................................................................................................... 35 

6.10 Housing with Support or Extra Care .................................................................. 36 

6.11 Local Letting Provision ...................................................................................... 36 

6.11 Tenancy Determination ..................................................................................... 37 

6.12 Tenancy Sustainment ........................................................................................ 38 

6.13 Publicising Lettings ............................................................................................ 38 

Part 7: Decisions, Complaints and Reviews ................................................................. 39 

7.1 Making a Decision ............................................................................................. 39 

7.2 Complaints ........................................................................................................ 39 

7.3 Reviews............................................................................................................. 40 

7.3.1 Registration Reviews ..................................................................................... 40 

7.3.3 Legal Review ................................................................................................. 41 

Appendix 1: Lettings outside of the Allocations Policy ............................................... 42 

Appendix 2: Current Resettlement Schemes ................................................................ 43 

Appendix 3: Definition of Overcrowding ....................................................................... 44 

Appendix 4: Property Age Restrictions......................................................................... 45 

Appendix 5: Percentage of Advertised Properties ....................................................... 48 

Appendix 6: Local Lettings Plans .................................................................................. 49 

 

 

 

  

Page 68



 

Page 5 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

Part 1: Introduction 

1.1 Allocations and Lettings in Gateshead 

 We operate a housing register also known as a waiting list for applicants who 
 require social housing. In order to allocate properties fairly in accordance 
 with priority need and also giving people already housed the opportunity to 
 move, the housing register awards priority and acknowledges waiting time. 

The Council has properties of its own and works with a number of other 
 housing providers who own and manage stock of their own. 

1.2 The Legal Framework 

The Allocations Policy is a requirement of Part 6 of the Housing Act 1996. It 
has been framed in accordance with the Council’s Homelessness and Rough 
Sleeping Strategy, Housing Strategy, and Tenancy Strategy and embraces 
the principles of the Council’s Thrive Agenda.  

 
 We have followed and fully considered the following housing legislation, 
 regulations, and statutory guidance: 

 The Housing Act 1996, Part 6 as amended by Localism Act 2011 
(England) 

 The Housing Act 1996, Part 7 as amended by the Homelessness 
Reduction Act 2017 

 Allocation of Accommodation: Guidance for Local housing Authorities 
in England (2012, DCLG) “the Code” 

 Providing social housing for local people: Statutory guidance on social 
housing allocations for local authorities in England (DCLG, December 
2013) “Supplementary Code” 

 Allocation of Housing (Procedure) Regulations 1997, SI 1997/483 
Allocation of Housing (England) Regulations 2002, SI 2002/3264 

 Allocation of Housing and Homelessness (Eligibility) (England) 
Regulations 2006, SI 2006/1294 and all subsequent amendments 

 Allocation of Housing (Qualification Criteria for Armed Forces) 
(England) Regulations 2012, SI 2012/1869 

 Housing Act 1996 (Additional Preference for Armed Forces) (England) 
Regulations 2012, SI 2012/2989 

 The Allocation of Housing (Qualification Criteria for Right to Move) 
(England) Regulations 2015 

 ‘The Allocation of Housing and Homelessness (Eligibility) (England) 
(Amendment) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019 (SI 2019/861)’ 

 Equality Act 2010. 
 Data Protection Act 2018 and contained within the General Data 

Protection Regulation 2018 (GDPR). 
 Care Act 2014 
 Human Rights Act 1998 
 Domestic Abuse Act 2021 
 Children and Social Work Act 2017 

 
 
 

Page 69



 

Page 6 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

1.3 Allocation of a Tenancy 

 The allocation of housing by a housing authority is defined in s.159 of the 
1996 Housing Act as: 

 
a) Selecting a person to be a secure or introductory tenant of housing 

accommodation held by them. 
b) Nominating a person to be a secure or introductory tenant of housing 

accommodation held by another housing authority. 
c) Nominating a person to be an assured tenant of housing 

accommodation held by a registered provider. 
  

Social housing may only be allocated to ‘qualifying persons.’ Through the 
Localism Act 2011, the Council has the power to determine who qualifies for 
housing. Lettings outside of the Allocations Policy are summarised in appendix 1. 

1.4 Right to Move 

 We reserve the right to give preference to the residents of Gateshead when 
accepting applicants onto the Housing Register. However in accordance with 
the Right to Move statutory guidance on housing allocations for local housing 
authorities in England (Department for Communities and Local Government, 
March 2015), we removed local connection as a qualifying criteria for housing 
under Part 6 of the Housing Legislation thereby enabling people who need to 
move to Gateshead for work or education to be considered. Further details 
can be found at: Right to Move and social housing allocations - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk) 

1.5 Statement of Choice 

We aim to give all applicants who are eligible to join the housing register 
choice in where they live. Applicants have the opportunity to express 
preference by being able to bid for areas and housing that are deemed 
suitable for their housing need. However, this must be balanced with the need 
for the Council to meet its legal duties as a local authority in relation to 
addressing local housing need and ensuring the efficient management of its 
properties. 

1.6 Data Protection 

 We will ensure personal information of all applicants (new, existing and 
 deleted) is: 
 

a) Stored lawfully 
b) Processed in a fair and transparent manner 
c) Collected for a specific, explicit and legitimate purpose 
d) The data will be kept up to date and held until it is no longer required 
e) Shared only with other organisations for legitimate processing, the 

prevention of fraud or with the person’s explicit consent. 
 
 Our Privacy Notice which can be located at: URL required. 
 

Page 70



 

Page 7 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

1.7 Equalities, Access and Monitoring 

We are committed to ensuring this policy is non-discriminatory and that all 
applicants are able to access the service, especially taking account of any 
vulnerability or other specific needs, and also the needs of different groups 
protected by the Equality Act 2010; the Human Rights Act 1998; and for 
Children, Section 11 of the Children Act 2004. To identify the needs of our 
applicants the application contains specific questions relating to vulnerability, 
ethnic origin, sexual orientation, disability and other relevant criteria. The 
information obtained will be used to monitor the impact of the policy on minority 
and specific needs groups and to evidence the need for amendments, as may 
be required.  
 
Under the Equality Act 2010 and in particular section 149 of the Public Sector 
Equality Duty, we are required to give due regard to eliminating discrimination, 
advancing equality of opportunity and fostering good relations between those 
who share a protected characteristic and those who do not, when exercising a 
public function such as an Allocations Policy. The protected  characteristics 
are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil  partnership, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 
This policy complies with the Council’s Equal Opportunities policy 
Equal_Opportunities_Policy1.pdf (gateshead.gov.uk) which sets out our 
commitments to ensuring equality in service delivery. 
 
This policy was subjected to an Integrated Impact Assessment (IiA) before being 
adopted. The impact will continue to be monitored throughout the administration of 
the policy. 

1.8 Force Majeure 

 We will not be liable for any delay in performing our obligations under this 
 policy if the delay is caused by a Force Majeure (chance occurrence or 
 unavoidable accident for example), provided that reasonable action and 
 notification to customers is taken by the Council. More fully, this means, 
 circumstances beyond reasonable control of that party, including without 
 limitation, strikes, lock outs, acts of God, the act or omission of any 
 governmental or other competent authority, war or national emergency. 

1.9 Changes to the Allocations Policy 

We reserve the right to expand, change or alter any element of this policy, as 
 and when required, to meet changes in housing need, capacity, resources 
 and legislation.  Where a change is considered an impact assessment will be 
undertaken, if the change is considered to be minor with no significant impact 
to individuals or communities, then it may be approved by senior management 
within the Council. Major changes will require approval by Cabinet with 
statutory consultation prior to the main decision with all known stakeholders. 

 
Where we need to regularly review information on an annual basis and set 
targets, we will attach the information as an appendix. This is demonstrated 
within the current appendices.  

Page 71



 

Page 8 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

Part 2: Allocations Delivery Model 

This section will be drafted as we expand the next phase of work within the next 12 
months. We ask that Cabinet approve the policy subject to a further document being 
presented to them outlining the model in more detail, and that if it is then approved 
be merged with this document to comprise a single document. 

This section will cover the mode of delivery, the key components of the way we work 
with registered providers and the emphasis placed on choice-based lettings and 
direct lets. 

  

Page 72



 

Page 9 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

Part 3: Nationwide rules on Eligibility 

3.1  Eligibility  

Gateshead ensures that that only those who are eligible for housing or 
homelessness and meet the qualification rules will be placed on the housing 
register. The government set this out in Regulations 3 and 4 of the Allocation 
of Housing and Homelessness (Eligibility) (England) Regulations 2006, SI 
2006/1294 and all the subsequent amendments. 
 

3.1.1 Special arrangements for 16 – 18-year-olds 

a) Anyone over the age of 16 is eligible to join the Housing Register if their 
current address is their only home, or sole residence, and they are not 
already registered through someone else’s housing application. 

 
b) Applicants under 18 cannot legally hold a tenancy. If they are under the 

jurisdiction of children services and owed a duty under the Children Act, 
children services will act as a guarantor for those within 6 months of their 
18th birthday under an existing protocol. This is subject to their ability to 
live independently and manage their tenancy. Children services will need 
to provide a support package to prevent the risk of losing the tenancy. The 
tenancy will be held in trust until they reach 18. 

 
c) Those not owed a duty of care under the Children Act, may still be 

granted a tenancy provided they can nominate a suitable person to act as 
a guarantor such as a parent, legal guardian or relative and also show a 
willingness to engage with the levels of support identified to help them 
sustain the tenancy. The guarantor will accept responsibility for the 
tenancy and for the support where necessary, whilst the tenancy is held in 
trust until the applicant reaches 18. 

 

3.1.2 Persons from Abroad  

Some persons from abroad may not be eligible to join the housing register 
and we will capture this on our application form, and you will be asked to 
provide evidence for the following: 
a) Under sections 160ZA (1), (2) and (4) of the Housing Act 1996 we cannot 

allocate a tenancy, or nominate a person for housing, if their immigration 
status makes them ineligible for public sector housing. 

b) They do not have the right to rent. 
c) Someone who does not live habitually in the Common Travel Area (UK, 

Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Northern Ireland). 
d) Someone who does not have the right to live in the UK. 
e) Someone who does not have the right to reside in the UK as laid out in EU 

law unless they meet one of the exemptions such as provision of care to 
someone residing in the UK or Channel Islands or they have a temporary 
visa. 

f) Someone who is a Hong Kong National (oversees) status holder. 
g) Other categories of people who the Government may in the future, decide 

are not eligible for housing assistance. 

Page 73



 

Page 10 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

3.2 Refugees and Asylum Seekers 

We will comply with any government directives in relation to resettlement 
schemes for reugees or asylum seekers. We review these annually to ensure 
that we are compliant. The current resettlement schemes are shown in 
appendix 2. 

3.3 Gypsies and Travellers 

Assessment of applications from gypsies or travellers for a Council pitch on a 
recognised travellers site is covered under a separate policy but will be in 
accordance with Gypsy and Traveller Site Management Good Practice Guide 
(Published by Communities and Local Government July 2009) and will include 
consideration of the balance and mix in the community, therefore prioritising 
the long-term cohesion of the site. 

3.4 The Armed Forces Covenant 

  
 
 
 
We have created a Covenant Pledge to demonstrate our support, as an 
employer of choice, to the armed forces community. We believe that those 
who served in the Armed Forces, whether Regular or Reserve, those who 
were honourably or dishonourably discharged, those who have served in the 
past, , their families and anyone living as part of their household in ministry of 
defence accommodation, should face no disadvantage compared to other 
citizens in the provision of public and commercial services. Special 
consideration is appropriate, especially for those who have given most such 
as the injured and the bereaved and the appropriate medical priority will be 
awarded. We will disregard a local connection and accept them under a duty 
to refer. All relevant reasonable and additional preference will be awarded. In 
order to give former armed forces the ability to accrue waiting time, their 
enlistment date will be used as their registration date.  
 
A new covenant duty is due at the end of 2022 which will require the Council 
to give due regard to the following: 

 The unique obligations of, and sacrifices made by, the armed forces 
 The principle that it is desirable to remove disadvantages for service 

people arising from membership, or former membership, of the armed 
forces 

 The principle that special provision for service people may be justified 
by the effect of membership, or former membership, of the armed 
forces 

  

Gateshead Council is signed up to the North East of 
England Armed Forces Charter and the Armed Forces 
Covenant. It is a voluntary statement of mutual support 
between a civilian community and the local armed 
forces community. 

Page 74



 

Page 11 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

Part 4: Registration for the Gateshead Housing Register 

4.1 Help and Assistance 

 Advice and assistance is available to all applicants who apply for housing. 
 You can get help to complete your application form and/or get support to bid 
 for properties.  Information will be made available in a format to suit you. 

4.2 Qualification Rules 

We operate a hybrid housing register. This means that in most cases we will 
accept you onto the list in line with the rules set out in Part 4 of the Allocation 
Policy. However in some circumstances you may be excluded (section 4.3) 
from joining the register or demoted under reduced preference (section 4.4).  

Housing is available to all applicants including  existing social landlord 
tenants who have held their tenancy for a period of one year. If you have held 
your tenancy for less than a year but your housing need has changed since 
the start of your tenancy, you may be considered depending on your 
circumstances.  

 You must be 18 or over. If you are under 18, see section 3.1.1 
 You can register alone, or jointly with your partner. In most cases 

where the application is joint, the tenancy will also be joint. The 
property criteria may also dictate the named tenant, for example a 
couple who has been allocated to an age restricted property will be in 
the name of the partner who meets the age criteria 

 Carers cannot be a joint applicant unless they are already a member of 
the permanent household and are providing a carer role in addition to 
their prior and existing relationship with the applicant 

 Applicants without a fixed address can request for correspondence 
about their application to be sent to the care of another address. If no 
other address is available, the Council will hold the correspondence 
and take reasonable steps to contact the applicant to inform them that 
correspondence needs to be sent to them and to agree a way of 
sharing the correspondence 

 
4.2.1 Out of Borough Applicants 

We will accept out of borough applicants in band 4 general needs. Where 
there is a local connection, they will sit above those without one. Additional 
preference will be considered where the applicants can demonstrate a clear 
need to be housed in Gateshead. This is likely to be restricted to anyone 
making an application under the homeless legislation or where there is a clear 
medical need. 

 

 

 

 

Page 75



 

Page 12 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

4.2.2 Local Connection 
A local connection is defined as one or more of the following: 

 Have lived in Gateshead for 6 of the previous 12 months. 
 Have lived in Gateshead for 3 of the previous 5 years. 
 Have a current contract of employment in Gateshead.  
 Likely to be in education in Gateshead for six months or more.  
 Have family residing in the borough. 
 Been placed out of borough by Gateshead Council. 
 Been living in supported housing in Gateshead or be living in 

accommodation provided by one of the agencies that the Council 
works with for at least 6 months. 

 Be either giving support or receiving it from someone living in the 
borough and it is only possible if they live in Gateshead and have 
evidence to support this. 

 Have one of the above prior to incarceration or institutionalisation 
 You have been discharged from the armed forces 

4.3 Non-Qualification Rules (Exclusions) 

We will only exclude applicants where all other viable options are unavailable. 
Each case it assessed to ensure that they are not the victims of behaviour 
that was outside of their control. Applicants with very high level of housing 
related debt, serious anti-social behaviour or criminal behaviour will be 
considered for exclusion where: 

 The debt or behaviour is serious enough to meet the threshold applied 
by courts to grant a possession order. 

 The applicant refuses to engage with the Council and therefore we 
cannot consider them for demotion under reduced preferences. See 
section 4.6 

 The decision to exclude will be taken at a senior or panel level. 
 Where the case may be managed instead, we will consider suspension 

of the application first, whilst we implement a plan to reduce any risks 
 We will consider all other measures before excluding an applicant who 

would qualify for a critical or urgent priority award. 

4.3.1 Financial Exclusion 

With the exception of those showing a demonstrable hardship, vulnerability or 
where you may qualify for specialist accommodation, we may ask you to find 
your own housing solution if your savings, income, investments or equity 
levels exceed the thresholds in the table below. The thresholds are reviewed 
annually and in line with average earnings and average property prices 
including those sold on the open market and through the Right to Buy scheme 
to existing tenants. The thresholds do not apply to former members of the 
armed forces. 

 

  

Page 76



 

Page 13 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

Type Financial Threshold 
Savings Applicants (both single persons and couples) who have total 

savings of £25,000 or more. 
Income Applicants whose total gross household income from all sources 

exceeds an annual income of £25,000 or more (for single 
persons) or joint income of £50,000 or more (for couples). 

Investments Applicants (both single  persons and couples) who have total  
investments including property in the UK and abroad of £50,000  
or more. 

Equity Applicants who have equity £50,000 or more to the property.  
 

Where you exceed the thresholds, we may consider you for low-cost home 
ownership schemes, such as rent to buy, shared ownership, discounted market 
sale and starter homes. 

4.4 Applicants Demoted under Reduced Preference 

If you have been excluded, but wish to apply for reassessment, and the 
reasons for the disqualification are due to housing related debt, criminal 
behaviour or anti-social behaviour, we may consider your application under 
reduced preference as covered by the Localism Act 2011. In Gateshead we 
do this where we deem your behaviour is unacceptable in a current or former 
property, or if you have not been a tenant but should you have been one and 
your behaviour would have allowed us to evict you should we have taken you 
to court. In accordance with s166A(5) of the Housing Act 1996 you will be 
considered to be guilty of unacceptable behaviour serious enough to make 
you unsuitable to be a tenant of a social landlord. 

 
a. Anti-social behaviour; where you or someone in your household 

perpetuates anti-social behaviour, thereby breaching the terms and 
conditions of your tenancy agreement and where you show an 
unwillingness to address this behaviour. 
 

b. Criminal behaviour; where you or someone in your household 
perpetuates criminal behaviour, thereby breaching the terms and 
conditions of your tenancy agreement. 

 
c. Housing related debt in excess of £500; where you are in arrears or 

persistent arrears of rent or mortgage rechargeable repairs, court 
costs, housing and council tax benefit overpayments, and any other 
debt related to a current or former home. Debts which are no longer 
legally recoverable including debt included in a Debt Relief Order or 
Bankruptcy order will still be taken into consideration when assessing 
an applicant’s suitability to be a social landlord tenant. 

 
We will assess your priority award, but where your behaviour is deemed  
unacceptable, we will demote your application and you will be placed at the bottom  
of your qualifying band. We will not demote applicants who have been assessed  

Page 77



 

Page 14 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

under a critical or urgent priority; or where they are vulnerable and need to move to 
accommodation that will significantly alleviate their housing circumstances.  
However we are reviewing how we work with tenants who have breached their  
tenancy conditions and are seeking to introduce a range of measures over the next  
12 months. Consequently we may review our policy on demotions for applicants in  
the critical or urgent band. 
 
If you willing to enter into an arrangement to address your behaviour, the demotion  
may be of short duration. This will be monitored, and we may consider removing  
your demotion and allowing you sit in your normal position within your qualifying  
band where you have met the conditions of the arrangement. The shortest  
arrangements are likely to be for a period of 6 months and these are likely to  
increase in duration depending on the severity of the behaviour. The arrangement  
will be made with your own landlord, and we will obtain reports or rent statements  
where relevant to verify your adherence to the arrangement. 

4.5 Exceptional Circumstances 

Each application will be assessed individually, and either accepted onto the 
housing register or demoted as an application under reduced preference. 
Your application will be assessed under this policy and only in the rarest of 
circumstances will it be deemed exceptional and then only after the policy has 
been exhausted. 

4.6 Making an Application 

 You must complete a housing register application and if you wish to be 
considered under medical grounds a medical assessment form. When we 
register your application, we will provide you with a housing register 
application number and provide you with a list of evidence we need in order to 
verify your application. Please see the Council’s website for guidance on how 
to make an application. 

4.7 Verification Checks and References 

 When you register an application, we will undertake checks on all adult 
members of the household before you are made an offer of a new home. 

 If you meet the eligibility rules set out in Part 3 of the Allocations Policy. 
 If any of you have held a tenancy in the last 2 years, we will ask the 

landlord to provide us with a reference on how you conducted your 
tenancy and 6 months’ rent statement. If this is likely to cause 
problems, we will discuss alternative ways that we can check the 
information we need. 

 We will ask to see documents that confirm your identity. 
 We will carry out Police vetting checks under the Safer Estates 

Agreement where you have disclosed criminal convictions, or there are 
significant gaps in your housing history, or you have a history of anti-
social behaviour or criminal activity. 

 We may visit you in your current home. 
 Existing tenants will receive a pre-termination visit at the point of an 

offer. This is to ensure that the property has been maintained and there 
are no tenancy breaches. 

Page 78



 

Page 15 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

 Demoted applicants must be able to demonstrate that they can 
manage their tenancy in accordance with the terms of their tenancy 
agreement, with support and advice provided where it is needed. 

We may verify your information again if we need to and originals of all 
documentation will need to be provided on request. 

a) At the point of making your application. 
b) At the point of a review to confirm the assessment. 
c) At the point of a change of circumstances to make a reassessment. 
d) At the point of offer of accommodation if either the last review was over 

6 months or confirmation of new circumstances comes to light. If these 
are not supplied within the time requested, you may be bypassed for 
an offer. 

 
If you fail to provide the information we have requested, your application may 
be suspended to allow you to produce it within a specific timescale. If you still 
do not provide it your application will be cancelled. If you have extenuating 
circumstances, we may assess your application without the information and 
each case will be considered individually. 

4.8 Household Splits 

Where children are split between two households, the main carer will be 
considered to be the one in receipt of child benefit. If you have overnight 
access to children, and they are part of your application and with you 4 or 
more nights a week, they will be allocated a bedspace on the basis of access 
only and this may not be a family home but a smaller property suitable to your 
needs. A family home will only be considered for the main carer, or the 
household where the children are deemed to be part of the permanent 
household when we consider the allocation of a home. We will consider all 
evidence in relation to children including any residence orders, habitual 
residence, school records and the time spent with each carer. Where there 
are medical issues, we will consider the circumstances under our medical 
priority. 

4.9 False Information 

The application form states that under s171 Housing Act 1996, it is a criminal 
offence for anyone to knowingly give false information or to withhold relevant 
information if reasonably required to give it, on any matter regarding the allocation 
of housing. In addition, applicants will be advised that should an applicant be 
successful in obtaining a tenancy by knowingly or recklessly making a false 
statement then the landlord would seek possession of the property and may result 
in prosecution leading to a fine and/or imprisonment as laid out in s2 Fraud Act 
2006. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 79



 

Page 16 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

4.10 Change in Circumstances  

 It is your responsibility to notify the Council of all  changes in  circumstance 
 and provide the necessary evidence and contact details. We rely on contact 
 details in order to make an offer of accommodation. If we do not have up to 
 date information, we may not be able to make an offer, or take any further 
 housing need into consideration. Once we have received your updated 
 information, we will reassess your application. 

4.11 Cancellation of Applications 

 Your application will be cancelled if: 
a) You request it 
b) Your circumstances change, and you are no longer eligible to join the 

housing register. 
c) You fail to respond when we review your application. 
d) You are found to have made a false or deliberately misleading 

statement, or to have withheld information. 
e) You fail to provide the information needed for the verification checks 

despite a period of suspension and repeated attempts to contact you.  
f) You are rehoused or are assigned a social tenancy. 
g) You purchase a home. 

 
It is your responsibility to keep us informed of any change of circumstance,  
including any forwarding addresses. If you do not, then we may cancel your  
application. It will not be reinstated, and if you still wish to be housed you will  
need to submit a new application and it will not benefit from any waiting time  
accrued from the previous application. 
 

4.12 Deliberate or Worsening Circumstances 

 Where there is evidence that an applicant has knowingly and deliberately 
 made their housing situation worse in order to gain a higher priority on the 
 register, the assessment of their priority need will be based on the 
 circumstances before their situation changed.  
 
 Some examples are listed below: 

a) Applicants who have allowed family members or others to move into their 
property, who previously had suitable accommodation or the financial 
means to secure their own accommodation, and this has resulted in the 
property being overcrowded. 

b) Applicants who have moved from previously suitable or more suitable 
accommodation which it was reasonable for them to continue to occupy, 
into a less suitable property. 

c) Homeowners who have intentionally transferred their property to another 
family member in order to join the housing register. 

 

 

Page 80



 

Page 17 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

d) Applicants who have given up affordable and suitable private rented 
accommodation which they are able to maintain, to move in with other 
relatives or friends, creating a situation of overcrowding and/or sharing of 
bathroom/kitchen and/or a split household. 

e) Requesting or colluding with a landlord or family member to issue them 
with a Notice to Quit. 

f) Homeowners who have transferred the title to their property to a trust but 
remain the beneficiaries of that trust. 

 

4.13 Elected Members & Employees (incl: close relatives) 

It is Gateshead Council’s policy to carry out procedural checks on applications 
of people who may be related to Council employees or influential partners of 
the Council.  This is to ensure that everyone is treat fairly. 

High Risk – assessed by a director who is unrelated to the applicant 

- Gateshead Council Employees & immediate family linked to Housing 
- Former ALMO /Housing Services Employees 
- Gateshead Councillors & MP’s & their immediate relatives 

 

Medium Risk – assessed by the head of service 

- Distant relatives to Gateshead Council employees linked to housing 
- Employees of Gateshead partner agencies linked to housing 
- Other Relatives of Gateshead Councillors 
- Immediate family of former ALMO/Housing Services Employees 

 

Low Risk – assessed by the lettings manager 

- Gateshead Council Employees not working in Housing  
- Relatives of Gateshead Council Employees not working in Housing 
- Relatives of employees of partner agencies linked to housing 

 

  

Page 81



 

Page 18 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

Part 5: Assessment of an Application 

5.1 Allocation by Household Type and Property Size 

We allocate property using the following criteria: 
 The size of the property must be suitable for the household need 
 Landlords must make best use of their stock 
 The property must be affordable for the applicant it is allocated to 
 The tenancy should be sustainable 
 The household’s circumstances must be fully considered 
 The property is allocated in accordance with this policy 
 The existence of a local lettings plan for the property 
 The existence of an age restriction for the property 

 

5.1.1 Size Allowance 

Gateshead uses the space standard when allocating a property by size as 
defined in the legislation, for more details especially when considering 
overcrowding see appendix 3.   

The current size allowance is shown below: 

 A couple will be awarded a double bedroom (2 bedspaces) 
 An adult aged 18 and over will be awarded a bedspace. 
 Same sex siblings can share provided they have a bedspace each. 
 Opposite sex siblings under the age of 10 can share provided they 

have a bedspace each. 
 An unborn child will not be considered for a bedspace until it is born. 
 A parent will not be expected to share with a child. 
 Where there is a household split, we will only consider the household 

size for the application of the main carer. See section 4.8 
 If a child is the main carer for an adult with medical priority, they will be 

allocated their own bedroom. 
 For people living away from home, they will be considered as part of 

the household in alignment with the rules on the award of benefit, child 
placement and domestic abuse legislation. 

 For more detail see the table in 5.1.2.  
 

Bedrooms large enough to hold a standard double bed and wardrobe will be 
counted as 2 bed spaces (or a double bedroom). Rooms smaller than this, but  
large enough to hold a standard single bed and wardrobe would count as 1  
bed space (or a single room). A parlour will be considered as a bedroom  
provided it is separate and not accessed through another room. 
 
Bungalows are mostly subject to a local lettings plan see section 6.11 a) or  
age restrictions see appendix 4.

Page 82



 

Page 19 of 51      Allocations Policy v10 

5.1.2 Property Allocation Table 

The table below shows the type of property 
an applicant will qualify for. The green 

indicates a direct match. The white indicates 
that will only be considered if there are no 

qualifying green applicants. 

S
tu

d
io

/ 
B

e
ds

it 

1 
b

e
d

 fl
at

 

1 
b

e
d

 b
u

n
ga

lo
w

 

1 
b

e
d

 h
o

u
se

 

2 
b

e
d

 fl
at

 (
o

w
n

 e
n

tr
an

ce
) 

2 
b

e
d

 fl
at

/m
a

is
o

n
et

te
 

(s
h

ar
ed

 e
n

tr
an

ce
) 

2 
b

e
d

 b
u

n
ga

lo
w

 

2 
b

e
d

 h
o

u
se

 

2 
b

e
d

 m
a

is
o

n
e

tte
 (

o
w

n 
en

tr
a

nc
e)

 

3 
b

e
d

 fl
at

 (
o

w
n

 e
n

tr
an

ce
) 

3 
b

e
d

 fl
at

/m
a

is
o

n
et

te
 

(s
h

ar
ed

 e
n

tr
an

ce
) 

3 
b

e
d

 h
o

u
se

 

3 
b

e
d

 lo
w

er
 m

a
is

o
n

et
te

 
(o

w
n

 e
n

tr
an

ce
) 

3 
b

e
d

 u
p

p
er

 m
ai

so
n

et
te

 
(o

w
n

 e
n

tr
an

ce
) 

4
 b

e
d

 h
o

us
e

/fl
a

t/
m

ai
so

n
e

tt
e 

(3
 b

e
d

 w
ith

 s
e

pa
ra

te
 p

a
rlo

u
r)

 

5 
b

e
d

 h
o

u
se

 

Single person                 

2 adults – couple                 

2 adults – non couple                 

Household with 1 child                 

Household with 2 children                 

Household with 3 children                 

Household with 4 children                 

Household with 5 + children                 

1 adult + overnight access to children                 

couple + overnight access to children                 

Single person > 60                 

2 adults – couple (at least one >60)                 

2 adults - (at least one >60)                 

P
age 83



  
 

Page 20 of 51  Allocations Policy v10
  

5.2 Assessment of Housing Need  

All applicants who are eligible and qualify to join the Housing Register will be 
assessed for housing need. The law requires that reasonable preference for 
an allocation must be made in the following cases:  

a) People who are homeless within the meaning of Part 7 of the Housing Act 
1996 as amended by the Homelessness Reduction Act. 

b) People who are owed a duty by a housing authority under relevant 
housing and homelessness legislation.  

c) People occupying unsanitary (unhealthy) or overcrowded housing or 
otherwise living in unsatisfactory housing conditions with the exception of 
out of borough. 

d) People who need to move on medical or welfare grounds, including 
grounds relating to a disability.  

e) People who need to move to a particular locality in the district of the 
authority, where failure to meet that need would cause hardship (to 
themselves or others). 

f) We reserve the right to prioritise local housing for local people and will 
give additional preference to local connection specifically in relation to: 

 Properties built under a s106 agreement 

 Local lettings plans 

 Rural lettings schemes 
 

g) Applicants will be assessed for reasonable and additional preference. 

 

5.3 Housing Need Categories 

5.3.1 Homelessness 

 Where the Council has a Statutory Homeless Duty under the Housing Act 
1996 (as amended by the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017), we will award 
housing need based on that duty. If you are homeless but do not habitually 
reside in Gateshead, you will be asked to present as homeless to your own 
Council, unless we owe you a homeless prevention duty.  
 
Members of the armed forces who are due for discharge within 56 days will be 
assessed under a prevention duty. If you have already been discharged, we 
will assess you under both a main (full)  and relief duty. 
 
If you experiencing domestic abuse and need emergency housing or a refuge 
placement, or the perpetrator needs to be rehoused urgently to allow you or 
your children to remain in your home we will direct your application for a 
homeless assessment  
 
For a homeless assessments, check our website for details. URL needed 

 

Page 84



  
 

Page 21 of 51  Allocations Policy v10
  

Critical Housing Need: You will be placed in this category if you have been  
awarded a main (full) homelessness duty under s193 of the legislation or a  
relief homelessness duty under s198. You will be placed in this category if,  
under our duties, we have provided you with emergency homelessness  
accommodation i.e. Statutory Temporary Accommodation. We will continue to  
monitor this priority award and where your circumstances change, we may  
reassess you and this may result in a lesser priority 
 
Urgent Housing Need: You will be placed in this category if you have been  
awarded a prevention duty under the legislation which means you are threatened  
with homelessness within at least the next 56 days. 

 
Substantial Housing Need: You may be placed in this category if you have 
been assessed as having made yourself homeless intentionally under the 
Housing Act 1996, which means you are homeless as a result of your own 
actions i.e. Eviction, we will only consider this at a main duty stage. You may 
also be placed in this category if you are deemed non-priority homeless at a 
main duty stage. We will always take your presenting circumstances into 
consideration. The Council is committed through the Allocation Policy to 
assisting tenants to modify their behaviour thereby enabling all tenants to live 
peacefully in their homes whilst meeting the conditions of their tenancy 
agreement. 
 
Safe Surrender Agreements: Where a tenancy is failing but has not yet met 
the threshold for eviction, we may consider a safe surrender agreement if 
rehousing is the only way to assist you and we have exhausted all other ways 
to keep you safely in your home. The agreement is between the landlord, the 
homeless service and the tenant who surrenders their tenancy on a voluntarily 
basis and on the proviso that they are willing to accept support. Surrenders 
under this type of agreement allow the Council to assess your application 
under a homeless prevention duty rather than an intentional homeless. You 
must first speak to your landlord before surrendering your tenancy. 
 
Homeless Offers: You will be expected to bid for a property, and we may  
make bids on your behalf or make you a direct offer of suitable  
accommodation. Refusal may result in the Council discharging duty. 
 

5.3.2 Witness Protection 

Where a customer has been referred as part of the witness protection  
scheme, a critical priority will be awarded. 

5.3.3 Public Protection 

Where an allocation is required to ensure protection of the public, for example,  
following a panel decision made by Multi-Agency Public Protection  
Arrangements (MAPPA) or to fulfil agreements made with offender  
management services, a critical priority will be awarded where the risk  
identified is critical. They will be managed through assisted bidding. 

Page 85



  
 

Page 22 of 51  Allocations Policy v10
  

5.3.4 Property Condition 

Priority is awarded where the condition of the property is deemed to be in 
disrepair or lacking in amenities. A surveyors report will be required in order to 
verify the level of disrepair. 
 

Award Property Condition Criteria 
Critical Where the condition of the property is such that it may cause a 

threat to life it will be deemed critical. An emergency prohibition 
order if applied for is usually given where the property is regarded 
as unsafe. 
 

Urgent Where the condition is serious but there is no immediate risk of 
harm, an urgent priority will be given. 
 

Substantial Where there is disrepair but there is no requirement for immediate 
intervention a substantial award will be given. 
 

 
Lack of amenities will be considered depending on whether they are deemed 
essential for the type of household and any underlying health conditions. The 
presence of children or older people be factored into the household type. 
 

5.3.5 Medical Priority 

The Council will make an assessment of housing need in conjunction with 
health professionals and may include a home visit. The assessment will be 
based upon the criteria specified below. In order to qualify for rehousing on 
medical grounds, you must be asking for a home that will eliminate or 
substantially minimise the risks associated with your present home. Your 
assessment for priority will be made upon a long-term basis and not in 
response to a temporary condition. 

If you are applying to move from outside the borough a medical award will 
only be considered where only a move to Gateshead will alleviate the 
condition and this cannot be met by your own authority. 

Support moves: you will need to demonstrate that you have no support 
where you currently live, and that the provision of that support will make a 
considerable improvement to your ability to manage in your own home. You 
will receive a double assessment, involving both the applicant and the person 
providing the support. Distance to support and the means of travel will also be 
a deciding factor in any award given. 

Award Medical Criteria 
Critical You will qualify for critical priority, if you are currently in hospital 

and the hospital’s occupational therapy service consider you 
unable to return to your present home, as your life would be at risk, 
or you may be unable to access essential amenities. 
 

Page 86



  
 

Page 23 of 51  Allocations Policy v10
  

This also includes where you may have been moved from a 
hospital bed to respite care, intermediate care or other short-term 
solution as a temporary measure.  It also covers where “step up” 
arrangements have been made to provide additional support in 
order to prevent admission. 
 
This level of priority is only intended to address situations where 
you have been assessed, as having a critical risk to your life were 
you to move back into your existing home. 
 
Mental Health: A mental health or medical professional currently 
supporting you has confirmed that you are at imminent risk of 
hospitalisation as a direct result of the impact your current home 
has on your mental health, and that moving to another property will 
alleviate that need for hospitalisation. This award can also be used 
to resolve bed blocking where it has been confirmed that discharge 
cannot be made to your present home. 
 

Urgent This priority applies where you have a degenerative illness or have 
an impairment, which may be physical, mental, learning or sensory 
which has progressed to a stage where you are no longer able to 
cope in your present home. You are unable to gain access to basic 
facilities within your home.  
 
An urgent award can be given to move closer to support or for a 
carer to move closer to provide support. The carer must be the 
main carer and be able to demonstrate this by being eligible for a 
carer’s allowance. This award will only be given where it is evident 
that if the care is not provided the applicant will be in danger of 
being admitted to hospital. 
 
Mental Health: A mental health or medical professional has 
confirmed (and provided their clinical reasoning) that you are at 
imminent risk of significant harm to yourself or others as a direct 
result of your current home, and that risk will be considerably 
alleviated by a move to another property. The risk assessment will 
take into account a diagnosis and is unlikely to be awarded on 
environmental factors that can be resolved either through time such 
as a normal grieving period or by other actions, such as the 
resolution to ASB through the police and council. 
 

Substantial You will qualify for a substantial priority if have a degenerative 
illness or have an impairment, either physical, mental, learning or 
sensory which could be eased or improved by rehousing, but the 
severity is not enough to merit an urgent priority. It would apply 
where you have some difficulty gaining access to basic facilities 
within your home. 
 
Mental Health: A mental health or medical professional has 
confirmed that your present home is having a negative impact on 

Page 87



  
 

Page 24 of 51  Allocations Policy v10
  

your mental health and that a move to another property will 
significantly improve this. As in the urgent assessment, outside 
actions to resolve and time factors will be considered. 
 

 
Specific consideration when allocating a property to someone with a medical  
priority: 

 
a) The award you are given will specify what property type and size you 

are eligible for; it may also specify the type of adaptations that you 
require. If you were to be assessed as needing a level access shower, 
you will not be able to use your award for a property that does not have 
this. If you have a need for multiple adaptations and it is unlikely that 
we will be able to meet that need fully from a vacant property, we will 
assess on an individual basis if the property that you have applied for 
will be suitable, it should have at least two of the recommended 
adaptations. We reserve the right to withdraw an offer of property if we 
deem it to be unsuitable, this will take into account the cost and time to 
assess and fit new or alternative adaptations. If you have been 
assessed with a specific medical need that can only be addressed by a 
specific property type, we also reserve the right to withdraw offers of 
unsuitable properties that have been won by using other housing 
priorities or waiting time. 
 

b) Some properties have an age requirement. This can be waived on 
medical grounds if there is medical evidence to show that you would 
not be able to manage in any other property. 
 

c) The tenancy of an adapted property will be in the name of the person 
requiring the adaptations. If that person is under 18, a flexible tenancy 
may be used to ensure that the person requiring the adaptations can 
remain in that property on a long-term basis. 
 

d) If you are already living in a property that has been adapted by the 
Council and request to move to an alternative property that is not 
adapted to meet your needs, the Council may refuse to fund additional 
adaptations. You must give due consideration to your needs and how 
you will manage in your new home if it is not adapted. Upon applying 
for rehousing you must declare the fact that you are in an adapted 
property to ensure that your ongoing needs are considered and that 
you receive advice regarding your rights and responsibilities regarding 
provisions within your new home. 
 

e) Adapted properties are let firstly to those with a medical priority need, 
where there is no demand, it will be let to those requiring the adaptions 
but have no priority need. In this way we are able to house those who 
are suitably housed but need the adaptations. 

Page 88



  
 

Page 25 of 51  Allocations Policy v10
  

5.3.6 People with Carers 

Full-Time Carers: people with full-time, live in care provided by family or 
friends are required to include the carer on their application. The carer will be 
subject to registration checks and will be counted in terms of eligibility for 
property size and type.  A carer will not be added to the application if the 
individual’s details are not provided. 

Where a Social Care ‘Assessment of Need’ has identified a need for overnight 
care, which is to be provided by a support provider and does not include 
“sleepover” i.e. the carer is working and required to stay awake: the carer will 
be looked upon as conducting a nightshift. As they would not be expected to 
sleep during this time additional bedroom requirements would not be 
recognised. 

Where a Social Care ‘Assessment of Need’ has identified a need for regular, 
long term or permanent overnight care, which is to be provided by a support 
provider and includes “sleepover” duties. The eligibility for property size and 
type will be amended accordingly. 

Part-time Carers: Carers who provide casual or occasional assistance when 
required will not be recognised as a household member and additional 
bedroom requirements will not generally be recognised. 

Priority Award: The award looks at the bedroom requirement because of the 
need for a carer if there is a health priority and/or the locality of both 
households and their need to be in a particular area, they can: 

a. Live together and be assessed for an additional bedroom. 

b. Live in their own homes but relocate to be closer together. If one lives in 
Gateshead and the other lives in another borough, they may consider a 
home in each other’s areas to see who is successful first. Or it may be 
that one area is better for you both because it is near a particular doctor, 
or hospital, or other support. 

 
Verification: in order to verify the need for a full time or part time carer, we 
will use a variety of sources. This may include any of the following;  
confirmation of carer allowance, medical advice, recognition by a professional 
body or confirmation by social care. 

 

5.3.7 Anti – Social Behaviour 

We assess ASB in terms of priority need as follows: 
 

Priority Band ASB description 
Critical Where someone has experienced or been 

threatened with violence which poses a threat to 
life. 

Urgent Where the ASB has a significant impact on the 
health and wellbeing of the victim, and this is 
supported by a medical or health professional 

Substantial Where the ASB is ongoing and unresolved. 

Page 89



  
 

Page 26 of 51  Allocations Policy v10
  

We will look at the circumstances of each case and consider whether housing the 
perpetrator, victim and/or any witnesses should be taken into consideration. The 
severity, the threat to life and the quality of life are all considered when making an 
assessment. We will investigate the nature of the case and may rely on third party 
reports to provide us with the evidence needed to assess the application. 

 

5.3.8 Decants 

Where a social landlord identifies a property for demolition, sale, regeneration or 
major repairs, and the tenant needs to be rehoused either permanently or 
temporarily, alternative accommodation will first be sought within the landlords own 
stock. If this is not possible, the tenant will be asked to complete an application in 
order to find them alternative accommodation of a size suitable to their household 
size. The move will be identified as permanent or temporary. If you need to move 
within 6 months, you will be placed in the critical band and if you have more time 
than 6 months you will be placed in the urgent band. We rely on landlord reports to 
evidence the level of priority. 

In order to prioritise between bids from applicants within this category consideration 
will be given to the date that the priority was awarded. In circumstances where more 
than one applicant with the same award date bids for the same property, the 
applicant with the longest tenancy at their current home will be considered first. In 
the unlikely situation whereby the length of tenancy is equal,  the length of 
registration on the housing register will be used as the deciding factor. 

5.3.9 Overcrowding 

You will only be deemed overcrowded if you exceed the allocation rules set out in 
section 5.1. The severity of the overcrowding will be determined by the number of 
bedspaces you need. 

 
Award Overcrowding Criteria 
Critical If you require 3 or more bedspaces and/or you meet the definition of 

statutory overcrowding as defined in the Housing Act 1996. 
Urgent If you require 2 bedspaces, or a child is sharing a bedroom with a  

parent due to a lack of the bedspace. 
Substantial If you require 1 additional bedspace. 

  
We will apply the following rules when making an overcrowding award: 
 

 Members of a household will be included in overcrowding assessments once 
they have been living there on a permanent basis for 6 months. The 
exceptions to this rule are babies born into the household, people leaving 
institutional settings and people who have deliberately worsened their 
circumstances 

 If a member of the household has given up suitable housing they will not be 
included when an assessment of overcrowding is made for 6 months 

 An assessment would be carried out taking into account how many bed 
spaces are available to you, compared to how many bed spaces you need 

Page 90



  
 

Page 27 of 51  Allocations Policy v10
  

 Best use of space would be taken into consideration; therefore where an adult 
can sleep in a single room to free up a double room for two children this would 
be an expectation of the household and would be taken into account 

 Where larger homes are advertised, the council reserve the right to allocate to 
the largest families first 

 For families wanting to be housed together but who have to currently live 
apart, due to lack of space, an overcrowding assessment will be completed as 
though all persons were living in the largest home 

 Anyone living outside of Gateshead will not be eligible for an overcrowding 
assessment. These applicants will need to speak to their own landlord for 
confirmation of the arrangements in their area 

 Where a household contains adult children who are requesting their own 
accommodation, they will be assessed as above and all members within the 
household will be taken into account. However if other members of the 
household are applying to move, only those members with a long-term 
intention to remain in the household will be counted. Those with their own 
applications who have been awarded an overcrowding priority will not be 
included 

 We will not award an overcrowding priority where the household splits 
following a relationship breakdown 
 

5.3.10 Foster Carers and Safeguarding Children 

A priority award will be given where a recommendation is made within the 
Council in the following circumstances: 

a) fostering arrangements have been confirmed but the home of the foster 
carer, connected carer who live as part of the permanent household or 
adoptive parent is too small - urgent. 

b) children in households with domestic abuse will be routinely referred to 
children services and their recommendation will be factored into priority 
awarded. 

c) to prevent a child going into care - critical. 
d) to safeguard a child covered under the legislation - critical. 
e) placement of a child by the Council where the guardian, parent, 

connected carer who live as part of the permanent household or 
adoptive parent does not have a suitable property - urgent. 

 

5.3.11 Young People and Care Leavers (age 16 + extended to age 24 if in 
further education) 

Young people in local authority care will be assessed for housing into 
permanent accommodation when children services have agreed the young 
person is ready. An urgent priority will be awarded once we have been 
notified that the young person is ready to move, and an application has been 
submitted. 
 
Young people referred via our supported pathway will be considered under 
urgent priority. 

 

Page 91



  
 

Page 28 of 51  Allocations Policy v10
  

5.3.12 Financial Hardship 

If you are experiencing financial hardship which is directly affected by the cost of your 
housing and a move to a property with a lower rent would alleviate or eliminate this 
problem, we will a consider awarding an urgent priority. You will need to demonstrate 
that you have been in receipt of debt advice and provide us with an income and 
expenditure form which demonstrates that moving you is the only option and there 
are no other expenses that can be eliminated. 

 

5.3.13 Under Occupation 

If you are an existing tenant and are currently under occupying your home and wish 
to surrender it for a smaller property suitable to your housing need, you may be 
considered for an urgent priority award. 
 
The following criteria will be used to assess your suitability but may be disregarded 
(in part) if your home is needed urgently for another household: 

 You have no breaches of tenancy and no pending investigations 
 Your property is in a reasonable condition  
 Your current home is not scheduled for sale or demolition 
 You have at least one more bedroom than you need.  
 You are requesting a move to a property type that is frequently 

available 

5.3.14 Releasing or Needing a Specialist (adapted) Property 

 We will award an urgent priority in order to release adapted or supported 
 housing which is in short supply in order to allocate it to someone who needs 
 it and is currently on the housing register.  

The following circumstances apply: 
 If you live in an adapted property and have no further need of the 

adaptations and would like to rehoused 
 If you need an adapted property, it will be reviewed alongside your 

medical assessment. Where no medical award is given you will not be 
prioritised for an adapted property. 

 If you live in supported accommodation and have no further need of 
this type and wish to be rehoused 

 You are releasing a high demand property 

5.3.15 Service Accommodation 

 Council Officers who have accommodation as part of their employment are 
 said to be in tied accommodation. They may join the housing register in one of 
 the following situations: 
a) They are retiring, resigning or being redeployed 
b) They have been dismissed 
c) They have died and their partner or family member who have lived with 

them as a permanent member of the household for at least 2 years needs 
to be rehoused 

d) The property has been identified for redevelopment, demolition or sale 

Page 92



  
 

Page 29 of 51  Allocations Policy v10
  

Officers or their families needing rehousing will be placed in a priority band 
 that reflects the urgency of their need to move. If it is possible to allocate them 
 to the property, they are in, and it meets their need this will be their permanent 
 offer of accommodation. The property will become part of the general housing 
 stock. Where they are moving to another property, they will pay a use and 
 occupation charge in their current property following the end of their 
 employment until they vacate. Officers who have been dismissed will receive 
an offer of accommodation within 4 weeks of their dismissal date. If they 
refuse, the Council may take legal action to gain possession of the property. 

 

5.3.16 Succession 

There are two scenarios where a new tenancy may need to be granted to an 
existing tenant around succession and both will fall into the urgent priority 
band. 
 

a. An occupant is not entitled to succeed, but where they have applied 
for a discretionary succession where we may offer them a tenancy in 
the same or a different property. 
 

b. An occupant is entitled to succeed, but the property is underoccupied or 
reserved for older people or those needing adaptations. In these 
circumstances we can offer alternative accommodation and if they refuse to 
move, we can issue possession proceedings. 

 

5.3.17 Children in blocks 

Children under the age of 5 in multistorey blocks and children under the age of 5, 
who live in blocks on or above the third floor with no lift will be awarded a substantial 
priority. We will not allocate properties of this kind to households with children under 
the age of 5. 
 

5.3.18 Move On Agencies and Key Worker Schemes 

The Council provides permanent housing to people in specialist short term 
housing who have completed a period of support to allow them to live 
independently. We also work with external agencies to rehouse applicants 
who are referred directly to us. Where they are ready to move, we will award 
an urgent priority and where they are not yet ready to move, we will award a 
substantial priority. This may include applicant with mental health, young 
people or people with complex and multiple needs or people coming from 
supported accommodation. 
 
Key workers are defined as those people who provide essential services  
necessary for continued economic growth or to sustain the quality of life within  
the borough. They too will be awarded a substantial priority award in 
recognition of the difficulty in recruiting and retaining key workers. Where 
there is a skill shortage involving groups of people a strategic decision will be 
made at director level.  We do not have schemes of this nature at present. 

Page 93



  
 

Page 30 of 51      Allocations Policy v10  

5.4 Housing Priority Bands 

Each application is assessed in accordance with their housing need as outlined in the previous section. Once they have 
been assessed they are placed into one of the four priority need bands. 
 

Critical Priority Urgent Priority Substantial Priority General Priority 
households in emergency need 

with an immediate threat 
 

urgent need but no immediate 
threat to the household 

housing need with no requirement 
for urgent intervention 

No priority housing need 

s193 full homeless duty homeless prevention duty intentional homeless duty (at 
main duty stage) 

all other applicants 

s189 relief homeless duty under occupation non-priority homeless duty (at 
main duty stage) 

out of borough applicants 

witness protection fostering/social care placements children – blocks with a lift  
public protection succession   

property condition – serious risk 
of harm 

Property condition – serious 
disrepair or lacking essential 

amenities 

property condition – disrepair or 
lacking amenities 

 

critical medical priority – 
discharge from/avoid being taken 

into hospital or respite care 

urgent medical priority – serious 
and/or debilitating illness 

substantial medical priority  

threatened with being taken into 
care 

care leaver/move on (ready to 
move) 

care leaver/move on (not ready 
to move) 

 

ASB – threat to life ASB – significant impact on 
health and wellbeing 

ASB - ongoing  

decants - need to move in the 
next 6 months 

decants – need to move is more 
than 6 months away 

key workers  

overcrowded – by 3 or more 
bedspaces 

overcrowded – by 2 bedspaces overcrowded – by 1 bedspace  

 serious financial hardship   
 adapted property – needed or 

releasing 
  

 service accommodation – 
imminent end of contract 

service accommodation – non  
imminent end of contract 

 

P
age 94



 

Page 31 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 
 

5.5 Placement in the Band  

Accumulative Need: We operate an accumulative need banded system. This  
means if you have more than one priority award for being in a band you will sit  
above someone with a single priority award. 
 
Time Waited: You will be placed in the priority band in effective band date  
order. 
 
Demotions: If you have a demoted application, we will place you at the  
bottom of the band that you qualify for by effective band date. 
 
Application Review: Your applications will be reviewed in line with the band  
you have been placed in, please see section 7.3.1. 
 

5.6 Determination of Effective Band Date  

In order to determine your effective band date, and provided verification is not 
delayed, we use the following: 

a) When you submit your first application, your registration date will be your 
effective band date. For members of the armed forces your registration 
date will be your enlistment date. For officers who were provided 
accommodation as a condition of the employment, their employment date 
will be their registration date. 

b) If there is a change of circumstances and your priority need changes and 
you go up a band, we will use the date you were assessed for your new 
priority. 

c) If there is a change of circumstances and your priority need changes and 
you go down a band, we will use the same effective band date you had in 
your original band not the date we moved you down. 

d) If you have more than one priority need award in the same band, the one 
that was awarded earliest will be your effective band date. 

e) Our housing register is contained within a system that takes into account 
the date, hour, minute and second. Therefore it is extremely rare for 
someone to have the exact same effective band date in the same band. In 
the unlikely event that it does happen, we will consider the type of priority 
awarded and the urgency of the priority to determine who will be allocated 
the property. 

5.7 Notification of your Assessment 

Once an application has been assessed the applicant will be notified in writing 
of the following: 

a. The priority you have been awarded and the effective band date. 
b. The size and type of property you qualify for. 
c. How to place a bid for a property. 
d. Your housing register number. 
e. Your review date. 
f. What to do if you disagree with the decision. See Part 7.  

Page 95



 

Page 32 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

Part 6: Advertising and Lettings 

6.1 Choice Based Lettings (Advertised Properties) 

 The majority of properties will be advertised through the choice-based 
 lettings system. Once advertised and anyone who is registered can express 
 an interest in these properties by placing a bid.   
 
 A proportion of the properties will be advertised for households with a priority 
 need and a proportion will be advertised to applicants with waiting time. The 
 proportions may vary in order to enable the Council to meet its statutory 
 duties. Adapted homes are not included in this proportion. We will give 
 consideration to property availability and demand before deciding the 
 proportions. 
 

The proportionality is reviewed annually. The current proportion is shown in 
appendix 5. 

6.2 Direct Lets Protocol 

If you have a critical housing need you will be expected to bid for properties 
that have been advertised. In addition to this we will consider a direct let on 
the basis of need rather than preference where this would: 

 
 Rehouse you quickly where there is an imminent need 
 Assist with the placement of vulnerable households 
 Assist with the management of properties identified as sensitive 
 Reduce the cost of temporary housing 
 Reduce the risk of harm to a household 

 
 Only a small proportion of properties will be let in this way. The direct let will 
 be made to households already on the housing register. Where someone is 
 vulnerable or needs careful placement for their protection or the protection of 
 the community, assistance will be provided when they bid to ensure the 
 property is suitable. A direct let will be made only if necessary to meet the 
 criteria listed above.  

6.3 How will you know which properties are available? 

 Properties will be advertised in a number of different ways.  Upon registration 
 you will be informed of how and where to find this information. Registered 
 Providers will also advertise their properties on the same system. Each advert 
 will contain the name of the landlord. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 96



 

Page 33 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

6.4 How will you know which properties you can express an interest in? 

Applicants can express interest in up to three advertised properties per week. 
The advert will contain a description of the property, name the landlord so you 
know if it is council or another landlord, provide the rent and service charge so 
you will be able to assess if you can afford it and confirm any arrangements 
for pets. The advert will say if it is a priority need advert or a time waited   
advert; all applicants with a housing need can bid on properties advertised as 
priority need, however we will prioritise those with a need above those with no 
priority need. Similarly if the property is to be targeted for someone with a 
medical need or adaptation only households that match the property criteria will 
be able to bid for these properties.  

 

6.4.1 Assisted Bidding 

Where someone is vulnerable or needs additional help placing bids to ensure 
the property is suitable for their needs, you will receive assistance, either from 
the homeless team, your support worker, your advocate, the probation service 
(if relevant) or the lettings service. This is because we recognise that it is 
important to manage the process to get the best result for you when bidding 
for a suitable property, especially when assisting homeless households. This 
is called assisted bidding. 
 

6.4.2 Auto Bidding 

Where some who is vulnerable or unable to bid for themselves and has no 
one to do it for them would like their assisted bidding to be done automatically  
we will allow them to register for auto bidding. The system is given 
instructions on the properties that will match your housing need and then it 
bids on your behalf. This will assist greatly with the rapid placement of bids for 
households that need to be housed quickly. The auto bids are like an advance 
expressions of interest.  
 

6.4.3 Grouped Bids 

We will use a single advert for identical properties. Where there are grouped 
advertisements, applicants who place one bid will be considered for all 
properties within the group. 
 

6.4.4 Retrospective Bids 

Where the choice based letting system is unavailable for 30 minutes or more, 
we may allow a retrospective bid to be placed after the closing date. These 
are rare and only by prior arrangement with the Council and the landlord who 
has advertised the property. Retrospective bids cannot be placed later than 
24 hours after the closing date. 
 
 

Page 97



 

Page 34 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

6.4.5 Failure to Bid 

If you are registered in the critical, urgent or substantial bands, we have 
recognised your need to move to another property. If you do not bid for a 
suitable property, your application may be reassessed and assigned a lower 
priority award. We will consider the reasons you have failed to bid and 
professional advice before lowering any awards. 
 

6.5 How are applicants’ bids ranked? 

For those properties advertised with preference to housing need, preference 
will be given to those with priority need, eligible bids are ranked by band and 
then the effective band date within it. We will give preference to those who 
have multiple priority awards over those with a single priority need. In bands 3 
and 4 demoted applicants will be considered after undemoted cases. The 
order will run from band 1 to band 4. 

 
Some properties advertised with preference to housing need may be 
prioritised for applicants with a medical need. The advert will indicate where 
this is the case. We will also give preference for the largest families to be 
allocated the largest properties. 
 
For those properties advertised with preference to longest waiting time, 
eligible bids are ranked in order of earliest date of registration, regardless of 
band. Bids from demoted applicants will only be considered and ranked after 
bids from non-demoted applicants have been considered first. 

 
On the rare occasions where we exhaust the list and are unable to allocate a 
 property from the bids, we will readvertise it and may consider a relaxation of 
 the lettings criteria to enable us to let the property. If the property belongs to a 
registered provider, their agreement with the council will govern this area. 

 
 To ensure that best use is made of the housing stock, where an adapted 
 property is advertised applicants will be ranked in order of the need for the 
 adaptations, the need for the type and size of property and the effective band 
 date. If there are no appropriate bidders, we will endeavour to identify other 
 housing applicants who may benefit from the type and size of property as well 
 as any adaptations installed before consideration is given to applicants with 
 no recognised priority need.  
 

6.6 How will you know if your expression of interest has been successful? 

 If your bid is successful, you will be contacted shortly after the closing date to 
 arrange a viewing of the property. If the property belongs to a registered 
 provider, you will following their lettings process and they will contact you 
 direct. 
 
 We will not contact you if you are unsuccessful.  However, our publications 
 will give general feedback on all lettings to help you make more informed 
 expressions of interest in the future.  

Page 98



 

Page 35 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

6.7 Offer of Accommodation 

An offer of accommodation must be deemed suitable. This will take into 
consideration: 

 Household type and size 
 Property type, size and condition 
 Medical need 
 Area in relation to employment and education 
 Affordability 
 

Only one property can be offered at a time - An applicant successfully bidding 
 for more than one property in one week or across several weeks will be  
 allowed to choose which property is to proceed to an offer. However that 
 decision must be made at the point of being informed of the second or 
 subsequent successful bid. 
 

An offer is made in writing (often sent by email) containing all the details of the 
property. If you view before an offer is made an offer letter will be sent after 
the viewing. It will be subject to a clear rent account or where the applicant is 
reducing the debt in line with a repayment arrangement. 

 
 Transfer offers are subject to a successful pre – termination visit to ensure 
 they have adhered to the terms and conditions of their tenancy agreement 
 when  handing their property back to their landlord. 
 

6.8 Refusals 

The Council does not penalise applicants who refuse an offer of 
accommodation with the exemption of homeless applicants who receive one 
offer only and refusal may result in a discharge of duty. However we do 
expect applicants to understand that by refusing they will increase their 
waiting time and if they are currently awarded critical or urgent priority need, 
they may receive a direct offer which if refused will trigger a review of their 
application and may result in a lower priority. 

6.9 Sensitive Lets  

 Sensitive lets are rare and likely to be due to two main reasons: 
 

1. Where a household requires careful placement for their safety or the 
safety of others, we may need to consider where we place in order to 
minimise any risks.  
 

2. Where a property has a management history which requires the careful 
selection of the next tenant to ensure harmony in the area where it is 
located. In these cases we may target the advert and select only the 
most suitable applicants. 

 
 
 

Page 99



 

Page 36 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

6.10 Housing with Support or Extra Care  

Some accommodation is designed specifically for older people or people who 
need a specific type of care or support. There is a charge in addition to the 
rent. They may also have extra care provision. If the property is advertised as 
choice-based letting, the advert will be clear who can apply. Some schemes 
are not advertised and are subject to a direct let. 
 
The older people schemes are designed for those with a minimum age. 
Gateshead actively sets age restrictions on some of its properties in order to 
meet demand. The properties with these restrictions are listed in appendix 5 
 
In exceptional circumstances, younger people may be considered for older 
people schemes, if they require support, and other types of accommodation 
are not suitable. Applicants for these schemes will be subject to a landlord 
need and risk assessment to ensure they meet the eligibility for the scheme. 
 

6.11 Local Letting Provision 

Sometime areas or property types are subject to local lettings arrangements;  
agreed with the Council at the time the property was built or subsequently once 
they are in management. These are monitored annually and measured for their 
impact on the main policy. 
 
a) Local Lettings Plans 
 Section 167(2E) of the 1996 Housing Act enables housing authorities to 

allocate particular accommodation to people of a particular description, 
whether or not they have a priority need. Specific allocations may be 
considered when made to a particular estate or community. They are 
used to achieve a wide variety of housing management and other housing 
policy objectives and are usually developed where there is a wish to alter 
the balance of the community or ensure a balanced community. For a list 
of the current local lettings plans see appendix 6. 

 
b) Rural Letting Schemes 
 In areas which are officially defined as either villages or rural parish the 

rural lettings scheme may apply. The allocation will be made to the 
applicant with the highest priority, where there is equal priority, the 
allocation will be given to the applicant that demonstrates the greatest 
connection to the community which is assessed by: 

a) how long the applicant has resided in the community. 
b) how long the applicant has been employment in the community. 
c) how long the applicant has been involved in voluntary work within the 

community. 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 100



 

Page 37 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

c) Section 106 Agreements 
 Section 106 Agreement Letting Scheme Properties developed on sites that 

incorporate a Section 106 agreement determining the allocation of housing 
on that site will be let in accordance with the terms of the agreement. Such 
agreements have been developed to ensure that secure mechanisms are in 
place to restrict the occupancy of the dwelling both on first occupation and in 
perpetuity to those who have a local community need for an affordable 
dwelling. 

6.11 Tenancy Determination 

A tenancy determination involves identifying what type of tenancy you will be  
granted. Each landlord will have a tenancy management policy which will  
outline the tenancies they grant. You will be told in advance of the tenancy type  
and the conditions attached to the agreement. 
 
The general principles will be: 
 
1. If you have never held a social tenancy before, or we feel you will benefit from 

support in the first year of your tenancy, you will be granted an Introductory 
Tenancy for 12 months; and provided you adhere to the terms of the tenancy 
agreement, this will convert to a secure tenancy at the end of the period. For 
registered providers this will be a starter tenancy for 12 months and if this has 
gone well, it will covert to an assured tenancy. Both introductory and starter 
tenancies are subject to periodic reviews and if things have not gone well, the 
landlord may extend this for a further 6 months provided they have given notice. 

 
2. If you currently hold a lifetime tenancy, you will be granted another lifetime 

tenancy. This will be a secure tenancy for council tenants and an assured 
tenancy for registered providers. 

 
3. If you have come through a homeless scheme and a flexible tenancy is one 

of the conditions, you will be granted a flexible tenancy for a period of time to 
allow you to settle in to your home and adhere to the conditions stated in 
your tenancy agreement. Flexible tenancies are usually short term and 
granted a fixed term ranging between 2 or 5 years. Provided the everything 
has gone well; a lifetime tenancy will be granted in the same property where 
possible. 

 
4. Flexible tenancies may also be used in very large properties where they are 

in very short supply or adapted properties where the landlord has spent large 
amounts of money to install the adaptations. In most cases these will be for 5 
years and as they approach the end, you will be assessed for your housing 
need. If you still need this type of accommodation a further flexible tenancy 
will be granted. If you no longer need this type of accommodation, your 
priority need will be assessed you will be placed back on the housing register 
so that you can bid for a more suitable property. 

 
 

Page 101



 

Page 38 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

6.12 Tenancy Sustainment 

We want people to be live happily in their homes and recognise that you may need 
support and assistance to sustain your tenancy. The Allocations Policy is designed 
to sort our longer-term solutions for people, and this means making it possible for 
them to stay in the home of their choice and one that meets their need.  
 
We wish to ensure that we everything practically possible to promote tenancy 
sustainment by: 
  

 Ensuring a household is correctly routed to the right team when they 
approach the Council for housing 

 That we consider the support need, both immediately and longer – term 
when you have your new home 

 We take all necessary measures to safeguard you and your household 
 We signpost you to employment, education and health advice where you 

have indicated a need 
 That we work across all landlords to promote this approach 
 That we assess your housing priority correctly 
 If your application is demoted that we work with you and your landlord to 

provide you with the support and skills to address the behaviour that 
resulted in the demotion. 

 If your tenancy is failing and it is not possible to save it, that we work with 
you and your landlord to find a solution which may include a safe surrender 
agreement. 

 That we us grant the right kind of tenancy for your needs 
 Ensure you can afford the rent. 
 Ensure the property suits your need 
 If you need specialist housing that we assess this at the earliest opportunity 
 We safeguard community balance when allocating properties. 

  

6.13 Publicising Lettings  

We will review our performance and use it to predict the type of accommodation 
needed by people on the housing register, and to provide you with information 
on the time you may wait for certain types of properties. 

  

Page 102



 

Page 39 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

Part 7: Decisions, Complaints and Reviews 

7.1 Making a Decision 

When we make a decision in relation to your application we will do in 
writing/email, giving a reason for the decision and the information we used to 
base the decision. Where we are aware that additional support is needed in 
conveying the decision, we will take all practical steps to ensure we 
communicate the decision in a format that is acceptable to the applicant. 

 
Listed below are the types of decisions we might make: 

 The decision that confirms or denies your eligibility to join 
 The decision that confirms or denies whether you qualify 
 The decisions to accept or refuse a duty under the homeless legislation 
 The decision that awards your priority housing need 
 The decision that confirms the type of property your priority award 

makes you eligible to bid for 
 The decision to reassess your application as reduced preference 
 The decision to reassess your application following a change of 

circumstance 
 If you are homeless and refuse a property; the decision as to whether 

that refusal was unreasonable and whether to limit future offers 
 The decision to cancel your application 
 The decision to deny or uphold a review. 

 
It is important to understand the following: 

1. If you provide evidence that you did not provide for your original 
assessment. This is a change in circumstance. 

2. If you think we failed to follow our policy or stated process, or you simply 
feel we could have handled your application better. This is a complaint. 

3. If you disagree with a homeless decision under Part 7 of the legislation. 
This is a statutory right of review s202. 

4. If you disagree with your priority award under Part 6 of the legislation or the 
decision to place you in reduced preference. This is a statutory right of 
review. 

5. If you have complied with terms applied to your reduced preference and we 
then reassess your application. This is a registration review. 

7.2 Complaints 

  If you think we failed to follow our policy or stated process, or you simply feel 
 we could have handled your application better and you wish to make a   
  complaint, then you should follow the Council’s published complaints 
 procedure, available on the Council’s website at:  
   

Complaints and compliments  - Gateshead Council.  
 
  If you wish to complain about your landlord or the landlord of the property you 
 have been allocated to, please use their complaints policy. 

Page 103



 

Page 40 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

7.3 Reviews 

 Reviews fall into one of the following categories: 
 
Review Type Description 
Application Review This review is initiated by the Council in order to 

manage and maintain an application on the 
housing register and review your banding.  
  

Statutory Right of Review 
(formerly known as 
appeals) 

Where an applicant disagrees with a decision in 
relation to their housing application, you have a 
statutory right of review. Requests for reviews 
received after the 21-day timescale will be refused 
unless there are extenuating circumstances. 
  

Legal Review This review is initiated in Court where an applicant 
has taken legal action or lodged a s204 review 
following an upheld decision on a s202 review. 
  

 
  

7.3.1 Registration Reviews 

 In order to ensure that applications on the housing register are 
 maintained in accordance with their given priority need we review 
 applications. It is important that you respond within the time permitted 
 otherwise you risk having your priority removed and/or having your application 
 cancelled. The table below shows the frequency of registration reviews. 
 

Review Type Review Frequency 
Critical These applications will be reviewed every 4 weeks. 

This ties in with homeless prevention and relief 
duties. These are critical cases and should not retain 
the highest level of priority indefinitely as factors in 
relation their circumstances usually change rapidly. 

Urgent These applications will be reviewed every 6 months. 
In this way the priority need can be monitored as 
circumstances often change rapidly. 

Substantial These applications will be reviewed every 12 months 
in line with good practice. 

General These applications will also be reviewed every 12 
months in line with good practice. 

Spontaneous Reviews These arise from time to time as a result of being 
alerted to a change in circumstance. 

Reduced Preference Applicants on reduced preference terms will be 
reviewed at 6 months to see whether they now 
qualify. 

 
 

 

Page 104



 

Page 41 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

7.3.2 Statutory Right of Review 

All applicants who have received a decision in relation to their housing have 
the right to a statutory review which must be done in writing within 21 days of 
the decision setting out the reason(s) for the review. Typical decisions are 
covered in section 7.1. New evidence will not be treated as a review but a 
change in circumstance. Statutory reviews will be handled by a senior officer 
who was not involved in the original decision and their findings will be 
approved by a senior manager in the Council. The decision is final. 
 
The possible outcomes will be: 
 
Outcome Description 
Decision Upheld The reviewing officer agrees with the original 

decision, and it stands. 
Decision Partially 
Upheld 

The reviewing officer agrees with part(s) of the 
original decision which may force a reassessment, or 
it may be decided that there is no material impact 
and the original decision stands. 

Decision Denied The reviewing officer disagrees with the original 
decision and a reassessment will be undertaken. 

 
The review types in relation to homeless decisions are called section 202 and 
are set out in section 19.3 of the Homeless Code of Guidance for Local 
Authorities which also outlines the timescales for each prescribed review. 
 

7.3.3 Legal Review 

Where an individual or organisation feels the council’s Allocations Policy is 
unfairly prejudicial, or their case has been dealt with a prejudicial manner, 
they may wish to take legal action. They should seek independent advice  
before doing so. 
 
Where an applicant is dissatisfied with the outcome of a s202 review, they 
should take legal advice.  

Page 105



 

Page 42 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

Appendix 1: Lettings outside of the Allocations Policy 

Lettings where a tenancy is created outside of the Allocations Policy include: 
 
a) Conversion of an introductory tenancy: to a secure tenancy under S125 

Housing Act 1996). 
 
b) Family intervention tenancies: Introduced by the Housing and Regeneration 

Act 2008, these are a form of residential tenancy without security of tenure. They 
may be offered by either a local housing authority or a registered provider to 
anyone who is a tenant of a lifetime tenancy subject to or could in the future be 
subject to a possession order on the grounds of anti-social Behaviour or domestic 
abuse. 
 

c) Discretionary succession (tenancies): Tenants who are awarded a new 
tenancy under the landlord’s discretionary succession provision. 
 

d) Non-Secure tenancies or temporary accommodation: Any accommodation 
that is provided to meet an interim duty under Part 7 of the Housing Act 1996. 

 
e) Temporary decants: Tenants who need to be moved temporarily whilst major 

work is carried out on their home will be granted a license to occupy. 
 
f) Mutual exchanges: Between existing tenants under S92 of the Housing Act 

1985 or under S158 of the Localism Act 2011. 
 
g) Assignment: To a person who would be qualified to succeed the tenant under 

S92 of the Housing Act 1985 (secure tenancies) or S134 Housing Act 1996 
(introductory tenancies). 

 
h) Transfers of tenancies by a court order: Made under certain provisions 

contained within matrimonial, family, children, and partnership legislation.  
 
i) Land Compensation Act:  Allocation to a person entitled to rehousing under 

section 39 of the Land Compensation Act 1973.  
 
j) Repurchased Homes: Allocation to a person whose home is repurchased under 

sections 554 or 555 of the Housing Act 1985 (defective dwellings). 
 
k) Transfers: Within a landlord’s stock, where the unit has not been made available 

to the Council. 
  

Page 106



 

Page 43 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

Appendix 2: Current Resettlement Schemes 

 
United Kingdom Resettlement Scheme (UKRS)  
The resettlement scheme includes families from Syria and other areas of the 
Middle East and Northern Africa. The programme runs over a five-year period 
with families and individuals entitled to support for up to 5 years. 
 
Afghan Relocation Programme (ARAP) 
The resettlement programme is for those who were working with the British Army. 
It was introduced to assist with the relocation of former locally employed staff and 
runs over a three-year period, with individuals entitled to support for up to 3 years. 
 
Afghan Citizens Resettlement Scheme (ACRS) 
The resettlement programme is for Afghan Citizens fleeing the war in 
Afghanistan. The programme runs over a three-year period, with individuals  
entitled to support for up to 3 years. 
 
Homes for Ukraine (HFU) 
The Home Office launched Homes for Ukraine in March 2022. This scheme 
differs from the normal resettlement programmes as it relies on members of the 
public hosting individuals and families from Ukraine. The local authority is 
responsible for completing all safeguarding checks, including disclosure and 
barring (DBS) and property checks. The hosts are required to commit to a six-
month hosting period, after which individuals and families have three options: 
 

Option Description 
Option 1 Stay with their current host for a further six months 
Option 2 Are re-matched to another host for six months 

Option 3 
Leave the scheme and look for their own accommodation either via the 
homelessness route or private rented accommodation. 

  

Page 107



 

Page 44 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

Appendix 3: Definition of Overcrowding 

Under the legislation and regulation and for the purposes of defining overcrowding, 
two standards can be applied: 
 
The Room Standard: The room standard is contravened when the number of 

 persons sleeping in a dwelling and the number of rooms 
 available as sleeping accommodation is such that two 
 persons of opposite sexes who are not living together as 
 partners must sleep in the same room. Children under the 
 age of ten excluded from this definition. A room is 
 available as sleeping accommodation if it is of a type 
 normally used in the locality either as a bedroom or as a 
 living room. 

 
The Space Standard: The space standard is contravened when the number of 

persons sleeping in a dwelling is in excess of the 
permitted number, having regard to the number and floor 
area of the rooms of the dwelling available as sleeping 
accommodation. A child under the age of 1 year and a 
child aged 1 year or over but under ten shall be reckoned 
as half of a unit. A room is available as sleeping 
accommodation if it is of a type normally used in the 
locality either as a living room or as a bedroom. 
Gateshead uses the Space Standard. 

 
No account shall be taken for the purposes of either standard of a room having a  
floor area of less than 50 square feet. 
 

Floor Area of Room (square feet) Number of 
Persons 

110 or more 2 

90 or more but less than 110 1.5 

70 or more but less than 90 1 

50 or more but less than 70 0.5 

 
 
  

Page 108



 

Page 45 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

Appendix 4: Property Age Restrictions 

Due to changes in demand for property types throughout the borough of Gateshead 
age limits exist for certain property types. The table below shows the age restrictions. 

PENSHER STREET Bungalow 1BED No Age Restriction 

ELLISON MAIN GARDENS Bungalow 1BED No Age Restriction 

 

DENESIDE Bungalow 1BED 40 

WEST ACRES Bungalow 1BED 40 

CHESHIRE AVENUE Flat 1BED 50 

EMMAVILLE Flat 1BED 50 

LEYBURN PLACE Flat 1BED 50 

 

BENSHAM COURT Flat All Flats 50 

REGENT COURT Flat All Flats 40 

 

CROCUS CLOSE Bungalow 1BED 60 

DAFFODIL CLOSE Bungalow 1BED 60 

LILY CLOSE Bungalow 1BED 60 

MOSSPOOL Bungalow 1BED 60 

BOLTONS BUNGALOWS Bungalow 1BED 60 

SIMPSON MEMORIAL 
HOMES 

Bungalow 1BED 60 

DENTON VIEW Bungalow 1BED 60 

A J COOKS COTTAGES Bungalow 1BED 60 

WILLIAM MORRIS AVENUE Bungalow 1BED 60 

SOUTH LEA Bungalow 1BED 60 

SPRINGWELL CLOSE Bungalow 1BED 60 

HAWESDALE CRESCENT Bungalow 1BED 60 

RYDAL CRESCENT Bungalow 1BED 60 

BURNSIDE ROAD Bungalow 1BED 60 

Page 109



 

Page 46 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

LEAZES VIEW Bungalow 1BED 60 

WOODLANDS ROAD Bungalow 1BED 60 

BROOM CLOSE Bungalow 1BED 60 

CONIFER CLOSE Bungalow 1BED 60 

WHINNEY CLOSE Bungalow 1BED 60 

KELLS WAY Bungalow 1BED 60 

SOUTH SHERBURN Bungalow 1BED 60 

GARESFIELD GARDENS Bungalow 1BED 60 

LILLEYCROFT Bungalow 1BED 60 

NORWOOD CRESCENT Bungalow 1BED 60 

SOUTHWOOD CRESCENT Bungalow 1BED 60 

THISTLEY GREEN Bungalow 1BED 60 

WOOD GREEN Bungalow 1BED 60 

HALL GARDENS Bungalow 1BED 60 

RECTORY ROAD EAST Bungalow 1BED 60 

SQUIRES GARDENS Bungalow 1BED 60 

GARVEY VILLAS Bungalow 1BED 60 

KAYS COTTAGES Bungalow 1BED 60 

SQUARE HOUSES Bungalow 1BED 60 

JOYCE CLOSE Bungalow 1BED 60 

YETHOLM ROAD Bungalow 1BED 60 

ALLERDENE WALK Bungalow 1BED 60 

LOWFIELD WALK Bungalow 1BED 60 

ALBERT PLACE Bungalow 1BED 60 

BOLDON GARDENS Bungalow 1BED 60 

EASINGTON AVENUE Bungalow 1BED 60 

EBCHESTER AVENUE Bungalow 1BED 60 

HEDWORTH PLACE Bungalow 1BED 60 

SIMONSIDE PLACE Bungalow 1BED 60 

Page 110



 

Page 47 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

WASHINGTON GARDENS Bungalow 1BED 60 

GREENFIELDS Flat 1BED 60 

MILVAIN CLOSE Flat 1BED 60 

 

 All other bungalows are available to anyone over the age of 50 
 All other flats will be advertised to anyone over the age of 18 

 
  

Page 111



 

Page 48 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

Appendix 5: Percentage of Advertised Properties 

To meet the Council’s statutory duties, a proportion of properties will be advertised 
indicating that preference will be given to those applicants with a recognised housing 
need.  

The table below indicates the current proportion of advertised with preference to 
those who have a recognised housing need. The remaining properties are advertised 
and let based on longest waiting time (regardless of category of housing need). 

The first figure in the proportion refers to the number to be advertised with preference 
to those with a recognised housing need. E.g., for every 5 two bed bungalows 
available to let, four will be advertised with preference to those in the highest category 
(4 in 5). 

 

 Size Proportion 

Houses 4 Beds  100% to need 

Houses 3 Beds 4 in 5 
Houses 2 Beds 2 in 3 
Houses 1 Bed 3 in 5 

Bungalow 2 Beds 4 in 5 
Bungalow 1 Beds 3 in 10 

Flats 3 Beds 1 in 10 

Flats 2 Beds 1 in 5 
Flats 1 Beds 1 in 5 

Bedsit Flat 0 Bed 1 in 4 
Maisonettes All 100% to waiting List 

Sheltered 2 Bed 1 in 2 
Sheltered 1 Bed 4 in 10 

  

Page 112



 

Page 49 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

Appendix 6: Local Lettings Plans 

Angel Court 
 
To be considered for Angel Court applicants must: 
 Be aged 60 or over. 
 Have a need for supported housing. 
 Have a daily need for assistance with personal care. 
 
Applicants will receive written confirmation from the Council’s Social Care 
Assessment Team stating if they meet this criteria. 

 
Stage 2 

 
Each customer will be assessed based on the information they provide and on the 
level of care required with the following award levels:  

 
 High need:            Requiring support three or more times a day. 
 Medium need:       Requiring support twice a day. 
Low need:             Requiring support once a day.   
 
Allocation of individual apartments  
 
Vacancies will be allocated based on a quota to all three levels of need. Most 
vacancies will be advertised but there will be discretion to allocate some as a direct 
let where appropriate to meet urgent and/or exceptional circumstances where care is 
needed. 
 
Deneside and  Westacres 
 
8 x 2 bed bungalows at 31-33 Dene Side, 9-11 West Acres and 14-15 East Acres to 
be advertised and let to people over 60s or in medical need.  
 
19 x 1 bed bungalows on the flatter part of the site at 5-11 Dene side, 34-37 Dene 
side, 10-13 East Acres and 12-15 West Acres to be advertised and let to people over 
the age of 50. 
 
22 x 1 bed bungalows on the steeper part of the site at 16- 20 West Acres, 1-7 West 
Acres, 38-43 Dene Side and 1-4 Dene Side to be advertised and let to people aged 
over 40 
 
Within the scheme residents over the age of 50 in the one-bedroom bungalows in 
Area 3 will be given preference for the bungalows on the flatter parts of the site in 
Area 2 over applicants who live outside the current scheme. Transfers would be 
allocated through ranked order of length of tenancy. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 113



 

Page 50 of 51  Allocations Policy v10 

Emmaville 
 
20 flats available to applicants over the age of 50.  The properties are: 17 - 20, 21 - 
24, 25 - 28, 29 – 32 and 33 - 36.   
All tenants living in the first-floor flats will be given preference to move to the ground 
floor flats provided they have registered a transfer and the flats have been advertised 
in band 2.  
 
Kibblesworth 
 
There are 148 houses and bungalows built on the site of the council’s Airey homes in 
Kibblesworth Village. 54 are being built for sale, and 94 for rent, of which 13 will be 
advertised as intermediate tenancies. The rent for the intermediate tenancies is set 
at 80% of market rent value and are intended for people who will buy them within 5 
years. Existing Kibblesworth tenants were originally given the right to return, and the 
remaining units were advertised through choice-based lettings. 
 
Preference is listed below and will give consideration to local connection which is 
classified as anyone: 
 

 living in Kibblesworth village (and lived here for over 12 months) 
 working in Kibblesworth  
 needing to move into Kibblesworth to give support  
 needing to move into Kibblesworth to receive support. 

 
Bungalows 
 
There are four specially designed disabled bungalows, and any vacancies will be 
advertised with preference to those with a medical need. 
 
There are fourteen two bed roomed bungalows and vacancies will be advertised as 
follows: 
 

1. Preference to housing need 
2. Preference to housing need plus local connection 
3. Preference to housing need 
4. Preference to Kibblesworth tenant downsizing 
5. Waiting time. 
 

Two-bedroom Houses  
 

There are nineteen two bed roomed houses and vacancies will be advertised as 
follows: 

  
1. Preference to housing need 
2. Waiting time 
3. Preference to housing need plus local connection  
4. Preference to housing need 
5. Preference to housing need 
6. Waiting time plus local connection 

Page 114



Page 51 of 51 Allocations Policy v10 

7. Preference to housing need
8. Preference to housing need plus local connection
9. Waiting time
10. Preference to housing need.

Three-bedroom Houses 

There are 45 three bed roomed houses and vacancies will be advertised as follows: 

1. Preference to housing need
2. Preference to housing need plus local connection
3. Waiting time
4. Preference to housing need

Every third waiting time advert will be advertised as waiting time plus local connection. 

Four-bedroom Houses  

There are ten four bed roomed houses and vacancies will be advertised as follows: 

1. Preference to housing need (three or more children)
2. Preference to housing need (three or more children) plus local connection
3. Preference to housing need (three or more children).

Five-bedroom Houses 

There are two five bed roomed houses and vacancies will be advertised for housing 
need to households with 5 or more children. 

Regent Court 

Properties within Regent Court are actively marketed and let to new tenants aged 40 
or over. Existing tenants within Regent Court aged less than 40 have the ability if 
they wish, to respond to adverts and transfer within the block subject to compliance 
with their existing tenancy. In addition, properties in the block that have had the 
benefit of disabled adaptations will be advertised to applicants with medical need 
and will not be subject to an age restriction. 

Bensham Court 

Properties within Bensham Court are actively marketed and let to new tenants aged 
50 or over. Existing tenants within Bensham Court aged less than 50 have the ability 
if they wish, to respond to adverts and transfer within the block subject to compliance 
with their existing tenancy. In addition, properties in the block that have had the 
benefit of disabled adaptations will be advertised to applicants with medical need 
and will not be subject to an age restriction. 

Page 115



Appendix 4 

Tenancy Strategy, Tenancy Management Policy, and Allocations Policy 
– Formal Stakeholder Consultation Report

Purpose of the Report 

1. To provide a report on the formal stakeholder consultation which took place as part 
of the delivery of a new tenancy strategy, new tenancy management policy and a 
revised lettings policy now known as the allocations policy.

2. This report is an addendum to the main report titled “Tenancy Strategy and 
Allocations Policy.”

Background 

3. Following the reviews in 2021 it was agreed that we would produce 3 key housing
documents.

• Tenancy Strategy, which sets out the expectations of all social housing
providers in Gateshead in terms of the tenancies that will be granted,
succession, affordability of rents and the development of affordable housing.

• Tenancy Management Policy, which sets out the management of tenancies
within Council stock.

• Allocations Policy (revised Lettings Policy), which sets out how the Council
will manage the housing register, award priority, allocate and let properties, and
work with registered providers.

4. The production of these documents requires the Council to undertake a statutory
(formal) stakeholder consultation process. This has taken part as internal
consultation with key sections of the Council and external consultation as a formal
28-day consultation process. Both are captured in this report.

5. The Council is also required to undertake an impact analysis to introduce these
documents. This has been captured in a separate addendum report titled “Tenancy
Strategy, Tenancy Management Policy, and Allocations Policy – Impact Analysis
Report.”

Page 116



Consultation Methodology 

6. 
Timeline Description of Event Status 
February 2022 Produce a consultation plan Complete 
12 April 2022 Agree the consultation plan with the 

Residents Influence Panel 
Complete 

May 2022 Finalise the plan and complete internal 
consultation 

Complete 

June 2022 Produce the consultation material Complete 
30 June to 28 July 2022 28-day consultation period LIVE Complete 
July 2022 Analyse results Complete 
16 August 2022 Share results with Residents Influence 

Panel and further instructions 
Complete 

1 September 2022 Tenant workshop Complete 
16 September 2022 Tenants Survey; for anyone unable to 

attend the workshop. 
Complete 

27 September 2022 Return to Residents Influence Panel with 
the results of the tenants workshop. 

Complete 

7. Internal consultation took place with the following teams either through one of
discussions or a series of working group meetings.
 Lettings
 Customer Service
 Homelessness and Housing Options
 Neighbourhoods
 Adult Social Care
 Children Services
 Public Health
 Legal
 Data Protection
 Equality & Diversity

The discussions were captured and supported the production of the draft 
documents which were signed off by the Core Project Team overseeing the 
workstream on the 28 June 2022 as being ready to enter into formal consultation. 

8. External consultation took place as follows:

Stakeholder Method 
Housing Register 
Applicants 

We had two approaches: 
i. For applicants that we had an email address for, we

undertook an online digital survey.
ii. For applicants where we did the have an email

address, we conducted the survey by post.

The survey consisted of a summary of the changes being  
proposed and they were invited to agree, disagree or state 
other and provide comments. Both groups were offered  
Officer assistance if they needed it. 

Page 117



 

 
Gateshead 
Residents 

A public consultation exercise took place. All three 
documents were uploaded onto the Council’s consultation 
website. Residents were informed of the consultation via 
social media and subscriptions and asked to provide 
feedback via the consultation portal. 
 

Elected Members 
of the Council 

A series of 4 workshops were held with Members of the 
Strategic Housing Board. They took place on the: 
 7 April 2022: set the scene 
 13 April 2022: set out the key changes 
 25 April 2022: agreed the key changes 
 14 July 2022: discussed exclusions, local connection 

and out of borough applicants. 
 
The april workshops were used to support the production of 
the draft documents. The July workshop was to obtain a 
steer on 3 key outstanding areas. 
 

Register Providers Register providers were approached in three ways: 
 By email with a letter from the Director of Strategic 

Housing and Residential Growth together with the 
Tenancy Strategy and Allocations Policy. 

 Attendance at a partnership providers meeting on the 
13 July 2022 where the documents were presented. 

 All providers were offered an indvidual meeting by 
prior arrangement. 

 
Further partnership discussions are planned to continue to 
develop a partnership arrangement under the Gateshead 
Allocations Model. 

 
External 
Stakeholders 

These included volunary agencies such as the Citizens 
Advice Bureau and other organisations that advocate on 
behalf of residents. It also included neighbouring local 
authorities. They were emailed a letter from the Director of 
Strategic Housing and Residential Growth together with the 
Tenancy Strategy and Allocations Policy. They were asked 
to provide their feedback by email. 
 

Internal 
Stakeholders 

This was in addition to the internal consultation that had 
already taken place. They were emailed a letter from the 
Director of Strategic Housing and Residential Growth 
together with the Tenancy Strategy, Tenancy Management 
and Allocations Policy. They were asked to provide their 
feedback by email. 
 

Health and 
Wellbeing Board 

The draft documents were presented to the Board on the 15 
July 2022 for comment. 
 

 
 
9. Residents Influence Panel were presented with the consultation plan in April 2022 

which they embraced. They were presented with the results of the applicant 
Page 118



 

surveys and residents’ public consultation on the 16 August 2022 for them to 
understand how the consultation and opinion had influenced the final drafts being 
presented to the Strategic Housing Board. 
 

10. Internal Steering Groups and Project Meetings were presented with the 
consultation plan and the results of the stakeholder consultation on the 12 August 
2022 and the 24 August 2022. 

 
Analysis of the Results 
 
11. Housing Register Applicants Survey, the table below sets the proposed change, 

the result and the direction of travel when formulating the final draft. There were 
1,750 respondents out of a total of 9,500 applicants which represents 19% which 
indicative of the sample size. 
 

Armed Forces 
Proposed Change: 
 5-year post discharge 

removed. 
 No distinction 

between honourably 
or dishonourable 
discharge 

 

Result: 

 
Direction: 
83% agreed and the change has been adopted. 
 
Out of Borough 
Proposed Change: 
 Local connection was 

removed, so all OOB 
cases are in Band 4 
and no preference. 

 Additional preference 
remained unchanged 

Result: 

 
Direction: 
71% agreed and the comments overall were that housing should be prioritised for 
Gateshead residents; with out of borough applicants having the opportunity to apply.  
Further discussions with staff and members resulted in retention of the current policy 
which states that out of borough applicants will be assessed for band 4, those with a 
local connection will sit above those without one. The local connection rule was 
strengthened in line with industry standards and retained. The main reason for 
retaining it is to give transfers preference over out of borough applicants without a 
local connection. 

Page 119



 

 
Exclusions 
Proposed Change: 
 Exclusions 

removed because 
it was felt it 
contradicted thrive 
and thresholds 
were considered 
counterproductive 

 Extreme cases 
section built in to 
manage high risk 
cases 

Result: 

 
Direction: 
52% agreed and 43% disagreed which meant the result was inconclusive. Applicants 
and members felt exclusion should be rare with a formal decision process and only 
where there is no other viable option but that they should not be removed entirely. 
There should be a greater degree of management of high-risk cases and that those 
that engaged with the Council could be demoted; those that did not may be 
suspended whilst a plan was constructed to minimise any risks. 
 
Financial Exclusions 
Proposed Change: 
 Introduced 

thresholds for 
those with savings, 
investments, 
income or equity 

 Vulnerable 
residents will be 
exempt 

Result: 

 
Direction: 
76% agreed; although there were general comments about the thresholds. There has 
been further discussion internally and the thresholds have been reviewed in line with 
average earnings and average property prices following right to buy discounts. The 
change has been adopted. 
 

Page 120



 

 
Demotions 
Proposed Change: 
 Demotion will now 

be within band 
rather than at the 
end of the waiting 
list 

 If they adhere to an 
arrangement to 
address their 
behaviour, the 
demotion will be 
removed 

Result: 

 
Direction: 
74% agreed; and this only applies to bands 3 and 4, so those demoted in band 3 will sit 
above general needs, their priority need is therefore preserved. The change has been 
adopted. 
 
Overcrowding 
Proposed Change: 
 Those short of 1 

bedspace in band 3 
 Short of 2 

bedspaces in band 
2 

 Short of 3 or more 
in band 1 

Result: 

 
Direction: 
81% agreed and this recognises severe overcrowding. The change has been adopted. 
 
Homeless Priority Need 
Proposed Change: 
 Full and relief duty 

in band 1 
 Prevention duty in 

band 2 
 Intentionally 

homeless band 3 

Result: 

 

Page 121



 

 
Direction: 
83% agreed and this recognises the need for the Council to reduce the costs of 
temporary accommodation. The change has been adopted. 
 
Change of Tenancy 
Proposed Change: 
 Transferred 

tenancy changes to 
the tenancy 
management 
policy. 

 Where a new 
tenancy is required 
for a succession 
has been retained 

 

Result: 

 
Direction: 
86% agreed; as tenancy changes is part of tenancy management and not the allocations 
policy. The change has been adopted. 
 
Tenancy Determination 
Proposed Change: 
 Secure tenants will 

be granted a 
secure tenancy 

 Introductory 
tenancies have 
been retained. 

 Adapted and large 
units needed by 
people in high need 
will be given flexible 
tenancies 

Result: 

 
Direction: 
86% agreed and those on flexible tenancies will be reviewed at renewal. If they still need 
the property, they will be given a new flexible tenancy. If they do not, they will be 
rehoused. The change has been adopted. 
 

 
 
12. Gateshead Residents public consultation, where residents were encouraged to 

comment on the documents as a whole. This yielded very low results; a total of 8 
across all three documents. The feedback received was: 
 Tenancy Strategy, had 2 respondents where there was general agreement 

and they wanted ASB history to be factored in when considering rehousing. 
This has already been accounted for in exclusions and demotions. 

 Tenancy Management Policy, had 3 respondents where there was general 
agreement and they wanted tenancy audits to cover property inspections 
which it already does. 

Page 122



 

 Allocations Policy, had 3 respondents where they wanted more clarity on 
overcrowding rules which we have made even clearer. They indicated that 
homeless and local people should be put first which we had reflected in the 
change in homeless priiority changes and the retention of local connection 
for out of borough applicants. They were worried about the impact of ASB 
and this has been addressed by retaining a modified version of exclusions. 
They felt that choice based lettings as a overall policy is a failure, but both 
the current policy and the proposed policy are blended policies where direct 
lets are used to manage critical and high risk cases. They queried whether 
the policy was deliverable. It is good practice to monitor all key policies 
whilst they are bedding in and adjust as necessary. This has already been 
identified within the main report and the policy. Concern was expressed that 
young people are being allocated near sheltered accommodation. This has 
not been expressed in the policy but the usual safeguards will remain in 
place to allocate sensitively. There was a suggestion that British people 
should be given priority over refugees and asylum seekers. Asylum and 
refugee initiatives are government directives and the Council is bound by 
these directives. 
 

13. Members workshops, discussed armed forces, out of borough and local 
connection, exclusions, demotions within band, affordability, tenancies granted, 
underoccupation and succession, financial exclusion and adverts based on priority 
need and time waited. The outcomes of these discussions were used to inform the 
formal draft of the documents before stakeholder consultation. Further ratifiaction 
was undertaken on local connection and exclusions in the fourth and final 
workshop in July. Demotion of a secure tenancy was also discussed with members 
as it was previously approved by cabinet but never implemented. It was agreed it 
would be retained. In addition members did not accept the following and they were 
discarded: 
 Penalties, for refusing a property 
 Limited offers, to allow applicants lower down to receive a opporutnity to 

move 
 

14. Registered Providers and External Stakeholders, were asked to comment on 
the tenancy strategy and the allocations policy. A summary of the feedback is 
captured below: 
 Tenancy Strategy, is very strong and compared to other local authorities 

the direction is positive. They welcome the partnership arrangements that 
the Council is seeking to develop. They are committed to the discharge of 
homelessness in social housing. They suggested some wording around 
tenancy sustainment which we have reflected in the final draft and they 
suggested a rent deposit scheme which the Council does not currently have 
and will be investigated further. 

 Allocations Policy, much of the feedback was on the delivery model which 
has yet to be scoped in full and partnership arrangement discussions are 
planned to take this forward. They raised concerns around continuing the 
permit time waited adverts but embraced the move to have adapted unit 
adverts. They have reservations around allowing under occupation even in 
low demand areas and this will need to be teased through over the next few 
months. They wanted domestic abuse strengthened which we have done 
and they also wanted local connection back in for out of boroough 
applicants. They also asked for the offer of accommodation section to be 
strengthened which we have done. 

 
Page 123



 

15. Internal Stakeholders, were asked to comment on the tenancy strategy, tenancy 
management policy and the allocations policy. A summary of the feedback is 
captured below: 
 Tenancy Strategy, also feel this is a strong document and like the direction 

it is taking. 
 Tenancy Management Policy, many of the comments were procedural and 

outside the scope of the policy, however we did tighten up the wording on 
the tenancy start date and the tenancy end date following recommendations. 

 Allocations Policy, social care wanted the threshold removed for financial 
exclusion and extra care which we have done. They also wanted the 
verification of carers strengthened so that we recognised professional 
advice. This too has been accommodated. They like the assisted bidding 
emphasis and the strengthening of the fostering and child safeguarding 
section. They also asked for clarity around domestic abuse. With respect to 
armed forces a further covenant duty is being introduced at the end of 2022 
and they wanted this referred to. They wanted failure to bid to trigger a 
review which took into account professional advice which has also been 
incorporated. 
 

16. Health and Wellbeing Board, the documents were welcomed and it was 
recognised that a lot of work had gone into removing the barriers in the current 
lettings policy taking on board the need to address poverty and priority need. They 
wanted the wording strengthened around fostering and child safeguarding but have 
not yet provided formal feedback. 
 

17. Tenants Workshop, the proposed changes were presented to 25 tenants in a 
workshop on the 1 September 2022. The results were fed back verbally to the 
Strategic Housing Board in the afternoon of the same day. The results align with 
the results of the applicants survey. The table below compares the results of 
applicants with tenants and also covers off the main comments received in the 
session. 

 

Proposed 
Change 

% Agree % Agree Tenant Comments 

 Applicant Tenant  
Armed Forces 83% 96% General agreement 
Out of Borough 
Applicants 

71% 80% Retain current policy 

Exclusions 52% 68% There is a still a blend of 
opinion. Most want the 
exclusions, but they understand 
the need to house people who 
may need to be in their host 
borough. 

Financial 
Exclusion 

76% 68% Overall agreement and the need 
to exempt vulnerable residents, 
but the need to sell even though 
this is in the current policy 
before being offered specialist 
accommodation raised some 
concern. 

Demotions 74% 84% Positive direction but want 
criminality and ASB to be 

Page 124



 

treated differently to debt. 
Overcrowding 81% 88% Positive direction but we should 

be building larger properties. 
Homeless Priority 83% 92% Positive direction but waiting 

times on available properties are 
detrimental. 

Tenancy Changes 86% 92% Positive. 
Tenancy 
Determination 

86% 88% Positive – meets tenants 
needs/aspirations, but the policy 
needs to be followed 
accordingly. 

 
18. The results of the applicant’s survey align with the results of the tenant’s workshop. 

No further postal surveys were returned following the workshop.  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Contact: Rachel Khan – Campbell Tickell Ltd 07908 707 529 
  

Page 125



Title of proposal: Tenancy Strategy 

Ag
e 

Ra
ce

 

Se
x 

Ge
nd

er
 re

as
sig

nm
en

t 

Di
sa

bi
lit

y 

Re
lig

io
n 

or
 B

el
ie

f 

Pr
eg

na
nc

y 
an

d 
M

at
er

ni
ty

 

Se
xu

al
 O

rie
nt

at
io

n 

M
ar

ria
ge

 a
nd

 C
iv

il 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 

Description of potential mitigation 

Equality impact: ( all that apply. The 
assessment should also consider impact on 
council employees and carers where 
applicable) 

Description of impact: 
The new tenancy strategy promotes the 
use of flexible tenancies in the following 
circumstances: 

1. Heavily adapted properties
2. Very large family units
3. Funded homeless schemes

Lifetime tenancies (assured and secure 
will continue to be issued as they 
currently are. If someone is already on a 
lifetime tenancy, they will remain on 
one in their new property. 
Consideration may be given to adapted 
properties and flexible tenancies used 
where a household member and not 

X 
X 
X 

X 
X 
X 

X 
X 
X 

X 
X 
X 

X X 
X 
X 

X 
X 
X 

X 
X 
X 

X 
X 
X 

In theory the use of flexible tenancies may 
impact any of the groups identified within 
the Act with the exception of disability which 
will only be affected in adapted units. The 
Council must make best use of stock which is 
why adapted units and very large units have 
been identified. Funded homelessness 
schemes are outside of the Council’s 
discretion as the flexible tenancy is a 
stipulation of the funding. 

We will ensure: 
1. Ensure tenancies are of 5 years

duration in line with good practice
and the housing regulator unless the
funding regime stipulates a different
period.

2. Monitor who is being granted a
flexible tenancy and review.

Appendix 5

P
age 126



 
the tenant is in need of the adaptations. 
Effectively when a tenant transfers, a 
new tenancy agreement is entered into, 
and all rights will be preserved where 
the tenant has a right to ongoing 
protection of those rights. 
 
There is no change proposed to 
introductory tenancies. They will 
remain. 
 
RTB qualification periods will be 
considered for consecutive fixed term 
tenancies so the whole period will 
qualify but not for an under occupied or 
heavily adapted property. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

3. Ensure adverts, offers and sign ups 
publicise the flexible tenancy. 

4. Have a robust fixed term tenancy 
renewal process in place which 
stipulates the review should take 
place 9 months before it is due to 
end. A needs assessment will be 
undertaken and if they still need the 
property, we will renew the tenancy 
for a further 5 years. If not, they will 
be allowed to re-join the housing 
register for a suitable property and 
their priority will be in line with best 
use of stock criteria to give them the 
maximum possible award. 

5. They will be allowed a reasonable 
time to be rehoused and preference 
will be taken into consideration. 

6. Possession of the property will only 
be taken in very rare circumstances 
and where the tenant has been 
made every possible suitable offer. 
 

Health impact: (e.g. physical, mental health, wellbeing, substance misuse) 
The needs assessment at 9 months before the tenancy ends will take into account the full 
circumstance of the household when a decision is made, including any health and wellbeing impact. 
 

A Fixed Term Renewal Process will be 
introduced. 

  

P
age 127



 
Socio Economic impact: (e.g. neighbourhood, ward, area of deprivation, household group, income, 
wealth) This is not likely to be a factor but will be covered at the 9 month needs assessment. 
Tenancy sustainment – support offered (para 8.1) will include positive impact on households / 
tenants who are struggling financially. Support for downsizing (para 10.1 & 2) will also have a 
positive impact on tenants currently being charged underoccupancy tax. 
 

A Fixed Term Renewal Process will be 
introduced. 

Environmental impact: (does the proposal impact on climate change and the Council’s 
commitment to be carbon neutral by 2030? Is the proposal in line with the Council’s 
Environmental Policy? Does the proposal increase natural resource use? Does the proposal 
increase waste? Does the proposal increase pollution? Does the proposal impact on wildlife? Does 
the proposal increase car use? Does the proposal increase energy use?) Yes, but positively because 
it ensures that the very largest properties are only to be used for households that meet this need. 
Hence their fuel bills will be in line with their family consumption. 
 

None required 

Cumulative impact: (consider impact based on successive budgetary decisions relating to the 
proposal or is the proposal part of wider budgetary considerations that may collectively have an 
impact on service users and is potentially at odds with the Thrive agenda). Downsizing will still be 
available to tenants in very large units if they wish to move before the end of the fixed term tenancy 
period by mutual consent. Where there is financial hardship, this will factor in the priority award. 
We will consider the wellbeing of the tenant at renewal as part of the impact assessment, and we 
must also consider the needs of applicants who are waiting for these types of units and balance 
their need as well. 
 

This is covered in the new Allocations Policy 

Summary of consultation/data/research undertaken to inform the assessment: 
(e.g. feedback and engagement with service users, trade unions, employees, partners, public, benchmarking, case studies) 
We have considered an impact analysis for cases which have been let in the last 6 months which would under the new strategy have been 
considered for a flexible tenancy either for a heavily adapted unit or a very large unit. The Council has an issue with data accuracy at this point in 
time as flexible tenancies are not currently given and the data is not captured as part of the existing lettings policy. The new allocation policy will 
capture this data and therefore it was agreed to monitor the granting of flexible tenancies for a 12-month period following approval of the Tenancy 
Strategy and new Allocations Policy to see if any further measures are needed by way of mitigation. 

P
age 128



 
We undertook public consultation between 30 June and 28 July 2022. This was undertaken with the following: 
 All applicants on the housing register. 
 Residents in Gateshead via a public consultation 
 Members 
 Registered providers in Gateshead 
 External stakeholders 
 Internal stakeholders 

 
Applicants were in agreement with the use of flexible tenancies for these types of units. We had 1750 respondents out of 9500 applicants and 86% 
of the respondents agreed. The public consultation was low but those that did respond agreed. Registered providers and external stakeholders felt 
the tenancy strategy was strong and compared to other local authorities the direction was very positive. Internally there has been no disagreement. 
Members were not comfortable with flexible tenancies in very large units but understood that no existing tenants will be affected by this new 
policy. They were in favour of flexible tenancies in adapted units. We have since carried out a tenants workshop on the 1 September 2022 which 
was attended by 25 tenants; 88% agreed with the new policy for both adapted and very large units. They also understood that tenants on existing 
tenancies would not be affected by the policy. The policy has now been incorporated.  
 
 
Signed: (completing officer) Rachel Khan (Campbell Tickell Ltd) with Vicky Sibson, Strategic Housing Services Manager, Gateshead Council. 
Date: 30 August 2022 
 
 
Service Director: (approved) Kevin Scarlett, Director of Strategic Housing and Residential Growth 
Date: 2 September 2022 
 

 

P
age 129



Title of proposal: Allocations Policy 
(formerly Lettings Policy) 

Ag
e 

Ra
ce

 

Se
x 

Ge
nd

er
 re

as
sig

nm
en

t 

Di
sa

bi
lit

y 

Re
lig

io
n 

or
 B

el
ie

f 

Pr
eg

na
nc

y 
an

d 
M

at
er

ni
ty

 

Se
xu

al
 O

rie
nt

at
io

n 

M
ar

ria
ge

 a
nd

 C
iv

il 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 

Description of potential mitigation 

Equality impact: ( all that apply.  The 
assessment should also consider impact on 
council employees and carers where 
applicable) 

Description of impact: 
The new allocations policy introduces 
the following changes: 

1. Armed forces. The 5-year cap
has been removed and both
honourably and dishonourably
former members of the armed
forces will be considered.

2. Out of Borough. The rules
around OOB applicants remain
unchanged for the present but
we have strengthened the local
connection rules in line with
legislation and industry good
practice.

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

In theory the changes has the possibility of 
impacting any of the groups covered by the 
Act. However the impact is a positive one 
overall. 
 By removing the 5-year cap and not

discriminating between honourable
or dishonourable at the point of
application we have lowered
thresholds and will consider priority
need alone. Former members of the
armed forces continue to benefit
from the current covenants and new
covenant duty being introduced at
the end of the 2022.

 The local connection has been
strengthened and places less of
burden to evidence a connection.
However an exercise is due to take
place where we quantify the number

Appendix 6

P
age 130



 
3. Exclusions. These remain but 

with a formal decision process 
to consider the health and 
wellbeing of both the 
individuals and the community 
balance. They will not apply to 
bands 1 and 2 where the 
housing need is critical or 
urgent. 

4. Financial Exclusions. This has 
been strengthened. Those with 
equity, income, savings and 
investments above thresholds 
set in line with RTB discounts, 
average house prices, private 
rents and average earnings will 
be expected to find their own 
housing solutions unless they 
are vulnerable or need 
specialist accommodation. 

5. Demotions. These will now be 
within the qualifying band 
rather than at the end of the 
housing register. They will not 
apply to bands 1 and 2 where 
the housing need is critical or 
urgent. 

6. Overcrowding. The pressure on 
very large households in 
overcrowded accommodation 
has been recognised. Those 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 

of OOB applicants with no local 
connection with a view to giving 
consideration to continuing as we 
are or closing the list. This will be 
brought to Cabinet at a later stage 
once the new policy has bedded in 
for at least a year. 

 Exclusions have been strengthened 
and all viable options will be pursued 
before an exclusion is agreed. This 
promotes Thrive and the need to 
explore better management of cases 
which might previously have been 
excluded. They will not apply to 
those in critical or urgent need. 

 Financial exclusion will not apply to 
vulnerable households or those 
needing specialist accommodation 
so will not penalise those most in 
need. 

 Demotions recognises the need for 
those in band 3 to sit above those in 
band 4 thereby recognising their 
priority need. 

 By recognising the need for large 
properties for overcrowded 
households we have sought a 
remedy that addresses need by 
bedspace shortfall. 

 By recognising the need to place 
those in B&B and TA into critical 

P
age 131



 
needing 3 or more bedspaces 
will sit in band 1 (critical). Those 
needing 2 bedspaces will sit in 
band 2 (urgent) and those 
needing 1 bedspace will sit in 
band 3 (substantial). 

7. Homeless Priority Need. This 
has been adjusted to recognise 
the need to move those in B&B 
and temporary accommodation 
quicky and reduce the stress to 
the applicants and the cost to 
the Council. Full and relief duty 
will now be band 1 (critical). 
Prevention duty will be band 2 
(urgent) and intentionally 
homeless will be band 3 
(substantial). 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

need we recognise the thrive agenda 
and the cost to the Council. We will 
need to monitor the savings for a full 
letting year post approval of the 
policy to understand the full impact 
of those savings. 

Health impact: (e.g. physical, mental health, wellbeing, substance misuse) 
We have considered the impact to health and wellbeing when introducing the changes around 
homeless priority, overcrowding and armed forces. 
 

NA 

Socio Economic impact: (e.g. neighbourhood, ward, area of deprivation, household group, income, 
wealth) Overcrowded households moving to larger properties will need to find them affordable 
where they are not in receipt of benefit or there is a benefit cap. We will monitor the impact of 
releasing B&B and TA quicker by awarding a critical need over the next 12 months. By introducing a 
financial exclusion policy for those who can afford to seek their own housing solutions we reduce 
the pressure on the existing housing register and those who are vulnerable or in need of specialist 
accommodation. 

We will need to monitor the impact of 
financial hardship overall over the next year. 
Further changes may be introduced where 
there is a negative impact. However with 
overcrowding we are also seeking to move 
dependents who are 18 and over to their 
properties in order to alleviate the 

P
age 132



 
 overcrowding to the main household which 

in itself mitigate the costs to the main 
household. 
 

Environmental impact: (does the proposal impact on climate change and the Council’s 
commitment to be carbon neutral by 2030? Is the proposal in line with the Council’s 
Environmental Policy? Does the proposal increase natural resource use? Does the proposal 
increase waste? Does the proposal increase pollution? Does the proposal impact on wildlife? Does 
the proposal increase car use? Does the proposal increase energy use?) None 
 

NA 

Cumulative impact: (consider impact based on successive budgetary decisions relating to the 
proposal or is the proposal part of wider budgetary considerations that may collectively have an 
impact on service users and is potentially at odds with the Thrive agenda).  Where there is 
financial hardship, this will factor in the priority award. A further impact assessment will be 
undertaken once the impact analysis and savings have been monitored and completed. 
 

A final impact analysis will be submitted 12 
months after the approval and 
implementation of the new policy to 
understand the effects of savings, further 
work on whether to close the housing 
register, monitor financial hardship, monitor 
the effects of banding changes and 
demotions within qualifying bands. 
 

  

P
age 133



 
Summary of consultation/data/research undertaken to inform the assessment: 
(e.g. feedback and engagement with service users, trade unions, employees, partners, public, benchmarking, case studies) 
A full impact analysis is underway as follows: 

1. Banding Migration. We are looking at the full effect of banding changes, for the households that move and also the impact to the band they 
move from and to. This work is due for completion by mid Sept and the results will be sent to Cabinet with the new Allocations Policy. 

2. Demotion within Qualifying Band. We are looking at the full effect of demotion within qualifying band. This will cover the exemptions for 
critical and urgent, the impact to moving the demotion from the bottom of the list into the qualifying band and the impact to band 3 and 4 
where there is no exemption. This is due for completion by mid Sept and the results will be sent to Cabinet with the new Allocations Policy. 

3. Demotion housing related debt threshold of £250 changing to £500. The work is complete. Around 25% of applicants who are currently 
demoted will not be demoted with a higher threshold for housing related debt. Further this will not apply to those in critical or urgent need. 
Demotion will not apply to applicants who find themselves in debt through no fault of their own. 

4. Financial Exclusions. We looked at the rehoused owner occupiers in the last 6 months. Data is not currently collected for savings, income or 
investments, it will be in the future. The threshold that was applied was £100,000 and 9 applicants were over it and would not have been 
rehoused. The threshold has now been revised following consultation to £50,000 and more would apply so we are revisiting the exercise 
which is due for completion by mid Sept. 

5. We will do a costs savings exercise over the next 12 months for households owed a relief duty. 
6. We will do a quantitative exercise over the next 12 months for households who are out of borough without a local connection. This is to 

look at the numbers of the housing register and whether by accepting them this is having a detrimental effect on rehousing transfer 
applicants. It is also to understand whether the original trend of housing OOB applicants with no local connection into lower demand 
properties has changed and needs to be further evidenced. 

7. A partnership agreement is being developed with Registered Providers over the next 12 months. 
8. A further IiA will be submitted once all the above are complete. 

 
We undertook public consultation between 30 June and 28 July 2022. This was undertaken with the following: 
 All applicants on the housing register. We had 1750 respondents out of 9500 applicants which represents 19%. 
 Residents in Gateshead via a public consultation. We are undertaking a tenants workshop on the 1 September 2022. 
 Members 
 Registered providers in Gateshead 
 External stakeholders 
 Internal stakeholders 

 

P
age 134



 
The results on the proposed changes so far: 

1. Armed forces. 83% agreed and the change has been adopted. 
2. Out of Borough. 71% agreed and the comments overall were that housing should be prioritised for Gateshead residents; with out of 

borough applicants having the opportunity to apply. Further discussions with staff and members resulted in retention of the current policy 
which states that out of borough applicants will be assessed for band 4, those with a local connection will sit above those without one. The 
local connection rule was strengthened in line with industry standards and retained. The main reason for retaining it is to give transfers 
preference over out of borough applicants without a local connection. Further work is planned as detailed in 6 above. 

3. Exclusions. At the time of consultation were considering removing exclusions. 52% agreed and 43% disagreed which meant the result was 
inconclusive. Applicants and members felt exclusion should be rare with a formal decision process and only where there is no other viable 
option but that they should not be removed entirely. There should be a greater degree of management of high-risk cases and that those 
that engaged with the Council could be demoted; those that did not may be suspended whilst a plan was constructed to minimise any risks. 
A modified version of exclusions was retained. 

4. Financial Exclusions. 76% agreed; although there were general comments about the thresholds. There has been further discussion internally 
and the thresholds have been reviewed in line with average earnings, private rents and average property prices following right to buy 
discounts. The change has been adopted. 

5. Demotions. 74% agreed; and this only applies to bands 3 and 4, so those demoted in band 3 will sit above general needs, their priority need 
is therefore preserved. The change has been adopted. 

6. Overcrowding. 81% agreed and this recognises severe overcrowding. The change has been adopted. 
7. Homeless Priority Need. 83% agreed and this recognises the need for the Council to reduce the costs of temporary accommodation. The 

change has been adopted. Further work is planned see 5 above. 
 

 
Signed: (completing officer) Rachel Khan (Campbell Tickell Ltd) with Kevin Johnson, Head of Customer Services, Gateshead Council. 
Date: 27 August 2022 
 
 
Service Director: (approved) Kevin Scarlett, Director of Strategic Housing and Residential Growth 
Date: 2 September 2022 
 

 

P
age 135



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
  COUNCIL MEETING 

13 October 2022 
 

APPOINTMENT OF PUBLIC ANALYSTS 
 
 

Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1. The purpose of this report is to seek approval of the appointment of Public 

Analysts. 
 

2. Due to staff changes at Public Analyst Scientific Services it is necessary to re-
confirm the appoint of Public Analysts for Gateshead Council. 

 
3. The Cabinet has considered the facts and issues arising from the report 

including alternative options and took all relevant advice before formulating 
their recommendation. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
4. It is recommended that Council approves the appointment of the six Public 

Analysts listed in the attached report. 
 
 

 

Page 137

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
REPORT TO CABINET 

      11 October 2022 
 
 

TITLE OF REPORT:  Appointment of Public Analysts  
 
REPORT OF:  Peter Udall, Group Director, Economy Innovation and  
    Growth  
   
 
 
Purpose of the Report  
 
1. To ask the Cabinet and Council to consider the appointment of 6 Public Analysts. 

 
Background  
 
2. Gateshead Council has a statutory duty under the Food Safety Act 1990 to 

appoint one or more persons to act as Public Analyst. Under the Constitution of 
the Council appointment of Public Analysts is reserved to the full Council. 

3. The contract with Public Analyst Scientific Services Ltd, the accredited laboratory 
that Gateshead uses for Environmental Health and Trading Standards sampling 
purposes recently expired and a procurement process was undertaken supported 
by the Councils Procurement Service. Public Analyst Scientific Services (PASS) 
were the only company to tender for the contract and as such have been 
awarded a 2-year contract. 

4. There have been some changes in staffing at PASS and it is therefore necessary 
to re-confirm the appointment of Public Analysts for Gateshead Council.  

5. In order to maintain a flexible service, it is proposed that all Public Analysts in 
PASS are appointed as Public Analysts for Gateshead Council.  
 

Proposal  
 
6. It is proposed that the following analysts are appointed as Public Analysts for 

Gateshead Council: 
 

• Lilian Emma Jane Downie MChem, MChemA, CChem, MRSC 
• Michelle Evans BSc, MChemA, CChem, MRSC 
• Donna Hanks BSc, MChemA, MRSC 
• Mary Butts MSc MChemA MRSC   

 
Recommendations 
 
7. It is recommended that Cabinet recommends that the Council approve the 

appointment of the 6 Public Analysts listed above. 
 

 
 

Page 139



  

 
 For the following reasons: 
 

(i) It is a statutory requirement for Gateshead Council to appoint one or more 
public analysts who have a minimum qualification. 

(ii) Public Analyst Scientific Services Ltd have successfully tendered to be the  
Public Analysts For Gateshead Council.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTACT: Stewart Sorrell                      extension:  3917  
  

Page 140



  

          APPENDIX 1 
 
 Policy Context  
 
1. The work of Environmental Health is directly linked to ‘THRIVE’, in particular, 

through the Economic Strategy, by providing a level playing field for businesses to 
operate in and giving businesses suitable advice on legal compliance and 
improving their business.  

 
 Background 
 
2. Gateshead Council is a food authority under the Food Safety Act 1990 and as 

such is required by Section 27 of that Act to appoint one or more suitable qualified 
persons to act as Public Analysts.  

 
3. The Food Safety Act 1990: Food Law Code of Practice (England), requires all 

food samples taken with the intention of initiating formal enforcement action for 
contamination, composition or labelling to be submitted to an appointed Public 
Analyst at a laboratory accredited for the purpose of analysis and which appears 
on the list of official food control laboratories. 

 
4. The engagement of Public Analyst Scientific Services Limited as official food 

control laboratory and the proposed appointment of their analysts have been 
agreed following a procurement process in line with relevant policy and Financial 
Regulations. 

 
 Consultation 
 
5. Consultation has taken place with the Leader and Deputy Leader and the Joint 

Adult Social Care and Health and Wellbeing Portfolios. 
 
 Alternative Options 
 
6. It is a statutory requirement for the Council to appoint a Public Analyst. 

No other suitably qualified persons were identified through the relevant 
procurement process. 

 
 Implications of Recommended Option  
 
7. Resources: 
 

a) Financial Implications – The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital, 
confirms that there are no additional financial implications arising from this 
report. 

 
b) Human Resources Implications – There are no implications arising from 

these statutory appointments. 
 

c) Property Implications -   There are no implications arising from this 
report. 

 
8. Risk Management Implication - Failure to appoint a Public Analyst would be 

against the requirements of the Food safety Act 1990 and may result in 
government intervention. 

Page 141



  

 
9. Equality and Diversity Implications - There are no implications arising from 

these statutory appointments. 
 
10. Crime and Disorder Implications – Appointment of Public Analysts is a statutory 

requirement that enables effective enforcement of the Council’s responsibilities 
under food law and will help protect the community from food that contravenes 
compositional and labelling legislation. 

 
11. Health Implications - Appointment of Public Analysts is a statutory requirement 

that enables the Council to lawfully analyse food samples with the aim of 
preventing harmful food being consumed. 

 
12. Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications -  There are no 

implications arising from these statutory appointments 
 
13. Human Rights Implications - There are no implications arising from these 

statutory appointments. 
 
14. Ward Implications - This report affects all areas and wards equally. 
 

Background Information 
 

15. The following statutory instruments are relevant. 
• Food Safety Act 1990 
• Food Safety (Sampling and Qualifications) Regulations 1990 
• Food Standards Agency: Framework Agreement on Official Feed and Food 

Controls by Local Authorities 
• Food Safety Act 1990: Food Law Code of Practice (England) 
• Council’s standing orders on contracts for the purpose of section 135 of the 

Local Government Act 1972  
 
 

Page 142



 

 
  COUNCIL MEETING 

13 October 2022 
 

PHYSICAL ACTIVITY STRATEGY 2022 - 2032 
 
 

Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1. The purpose of this report is to seek approval of a new Physical Activity 

Strategy for Gateshead. 
 

2. The Physical Activity Strategy supports the delivery of the Thrive strategic 
approach and the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

 
3. The Cabinet has considered the facts and issues arising from the report 

including alternative options and took all relevant advice before formulating 
their recommendation. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
4. It is recommended that Council approves the Physical Activity Strategy for 

Gateshead. 
 
 

 

Page 143

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



    REPORT TO CABINET 
        11 October 2022 

 

TITLE OF REPORT: Physical Activity Strategy 2022 - 2032 

REPORT OF:  Alice Wiseman, Director of Public Health   

 

 
Purpose of the Report  
 
1. To ask Cabinet to agree the new Physical Activity Strategy for Gateshead and to 

recommend that Council adopt the Strategy as part of its policy framework. 
 

Background  
 

2. Gateshead experiences a wide range of health inequalities. Preventable, yet life-
changing conditions, like obesity and diabetes are increasing.  Levels of physical 
activity in adults living in Gateshead are lower than the national average and 
levels of inactivity are higher. 
 

3. There is overwhelming evidence that regular physical activity is good for physical 
and mental health and wellbeing and prevents long term health conditions such 
as heart and lung diseases, diabetes, cancers and obesity. 

 
4. Regular physical activity also contributes to a range of wider social, 

environmental and economic benefits. 
 

5. The Physical Activity Strategy supports the delivery of the Thrive strategic 
approach and the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

 
6. It provides a framework to get Gateshead moving, working towards a vision of 

making Gateshead a borough where every resident has access to a range of 
appropriate and affordable opportunities for physical activity that become part of 
their everyday life and improve health and wellbeing.  

Proposals 

7. Cabinet approval of the Physical Activity Strategy for Gateshead is sought prior to 
seeking Council approval. 

 

 

 

Page 145



Recommendations 

8. It is recommended that Cabinet endorses the Physical Activity Strategy and 
requests Council to approve the strategy as part of the Council’s policy 
framework 
 
For the following reasons: 

 
(i) To support implementation of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy and 

ensure that the Council is well placed to respond to the health and 
wellbeing needs of the borough, alongside taking action to tackle 
increasing health inequalities within Gateshead. 
 

(ii) To contribute to a wide range of range of individual, social, economic and 
environmental benefits which result from increased levels of physical 
activity. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONTACT:    Andy Graham                  extension:  3066  

 
  

Page 146



Appendix 1 
 
Policy Context  

 
1. Making Gateshead a Place Where Everyone Thrives sets the strategic 

direction for the Council, redressing the imbalance of inequality, championing 
fairness and social justice. 
 

2. This approach has shaped development of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
for Gateshead. 
 

3. The Physical Activity Strategy will help deliver the vision for health and 
wellbeing in Gateshead.  

 
 

Background 
 
4. Nationally, 1 in 3 (34%) and almost 1 in 2 (42%) women are not active enough 

for good health.  Adults in Gateshead have lower rates of physical activity and 
higher rates of inactivity than the average for England. Preventable, yet life-
changing conditions, like obesity and diabetes are increasing.   
 

5. There is overwhelming evidence that regular physical activity is good for 
physical and mental health and wellbeing and prevents long term health 
conditions such as heart and lung diseases, diabetes, cancers and obesity. 
 

6. Regular physical activity also contributes to a range of wider individual, social, 
environmental and economic benefits including: 

Page 147



 

• improved learning and attainment for individuals 

• improving community links, levels of cohesion and social capital 

• reducing road congestion and air pollution through increased active travel. 

• significant cost savings to health (in primary and secondary care) and 
social care.  
 

7. It has been estimated that for every £1 spent on sport and physical activity in 
England generates almost £4 in return across health and wellbeing, stronger 
communities and the economy. 
 

8. The Physical Activity Strategy is intended to support the Council and partners 
in promoting, planning and facilitating physical activity by setting out a 
strategic framework encompassing vision, mission, objectives, opportunities 
and outcomes. 

 
9. The mission, set out in the Physical Activity Strategy is ‘to work with our 

communities and partners, to get Gateshead moving. We want to make 
Gateshead a borough where every resident has access to a range of 
appropriate and affordable opportunities for physical activity that become part 
of their everyday life and improve health and wellbeing.’ 
 

10. The strategy is underpinned by five values and guiding principles: 
 
• Partnership - working collaboratively across sectors and communities, 

bringing together experience, expertise, resources and enthusiasm. We 
need everyone to make it their mission to get Gateshead moving. 

• Inclusion - reflecting diverse voices and lived experience in our work. 
Treating all ideas and everyone’s challenges and circumstances with 
respect. 

• Innovation - exploring new ways of working to find creative solutions. 

• Proportionate universalism balancing universal and targeted provision 
in a way that’s proportionate to level of need - focusing most on engaging 
the least active and those who face the greatest barriers to being active. 

• People-centred - putting people, their needs and the barriers they face at 
the heart of our plans. Delivering services in and with communities. 

11. Informed by national policy and positive practice including the UK Chief 
Medical Officers' Physical Activity Guidelines (2019) and Sport England’s 
Uniting the Movement Strategy (2021), Gateshead’s Physical Activity Strategy 
is structured under five key objectives: 
 

Page 148



• Recover, reinvent and thrive – we will learn from the pandemic to 
become a stronger and fairer borough, where no-one is less active 
because of who they are or where they live. 

• Creating a positive experience for children and young people - we 
want our children and young people to enjoy being physically active and 
build foundations for a long, healthy and active life. 

• Living well and ageing well - we will strengthen the connection between 
physical activity and health and wellbeing throughout every stage of life. 

• Supporting communities - physical activity brings people together and 
helps makes better places to live. We will work with communities and 
partners to support people be more active where they live, particularly 
targeting where inequalities are greatest and recognising that every 
community is different. 

• Creating active environments - we want to make it easier for people in 
Gateshead to be active in the space around them and contribute to the 
reduction of carbon emissions. 

 
12. Key opportunities and outcomes are set out under each strategic objective. 
 
13. The strategy emphasises the importance of taking a place based and whole-

system approach which considers the changes required, at all the layers in 
the system, to tackle inactivity, includes changes to policy, the physical 
environment, organisations and institutions, the social environment, as well as 
to individuals themselves.  
 

14. This approach also recognises that physical activity levels are closely related 
to the wider determinants of health (the conditions into which people are born, 
live and work) and that it is important to shift to a person-centred, bottom-up 
approach, whilst looking at the whole system from a community perspective. 
By working together to gain local knowledge and insight and make best use of 
the resources available locally, we can better meet the unique needs of 
people in one place. 
 

15. Councils have a central role in championing physical activity; particularly in 
relation to supporting active environments.  They are ideally placed to bringing 
everything together by connecting diverse Government objectives and service 
areas including planning, active travel schemes, parks and playgrounds, 
allotments and sports and leisure facilities. 
 

16. A copy of the Gateshead Physical Activity Strategy 2022-32 is included at 
Appendix 2. 

 
 
 
 

Page 149



Consultation 
 
17. The Portfolio holders for Culture, Sport and Leisure and Health and Wellbeing 

have been consulted. 
 

18. Consultation has taken place through the Council’s consultation portal. 
 

19. Feedback has also been invited from local physical activity/sports 
organisations and clubs. 

 
Alternative Options 
 
20. The alternative is to not produce a strategy and operate without a clear set of 

shared policy objectives against which decisions on priorities and resources 
can be made and outcomes for people assessed. 

 
Implications of Recommended Option  
 
21. Resources: 
 

a) Financial Implications – the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital 
confirms there are no financial implications arising directly from this 
report. Any financial implications will be brought to Cabinet at a later 
date if required. 

 
b) Human Resources Implications – there are no direct HR implications 

resulting from this report.   Any direct HR implications will be bought to 
Cabinet at a later date.   

 
c) Property Implications -  there are no direct property issues resulting 

from this report. Any direct property implications will be bought to 
Cabinet at a later date.   
 

22. Risk Management Implication  - 
There are no risk management implications resulting directly from this report. 
A future report will detail, if necessary, options for further service review and 
the risk of non-compliance with statutory duties. 

 
23. Equality and Diversity Implications –  

The strategy identifies some groups with protected characteristics who 
experience inequalities in levels of physical activity. The strategy will have a 
positive impact on the health and wellbeing of these groups and communities 
as it will support targeting of resources and opportunities where barriers to 
participating in physical activity are greatest.  An integrated impact 
assessment has been carried out to identify potential implications and impacts 

Page 150



related to protected characteristics identified in the Equality Act 2010. This is 
attached at Appendix 3. 
 

24. Crime and Disorder Implications –  
It is important for places to be/feel safe for the users. 

Some evidence suggests that sport participation reduces the crime rate for 
both property and person-related crimes and anti-social behaviour. 

 
25. Health Implications –  

The Physical Activity Strategy will contribute to the achievement of improving 
health and wellbeing outcomes for local people and aim to reduce inequalities 
within Gateshead. 

 
26. Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications -   

The Physical Activity Strategy supports active travel and will therefore support 
the borough’s transition to net zero. 

 
27. Human Rights Implications -   

There are no human rights implications arising from this report  
 
28. Ward Implications -   
 All wards within the borough are covered by the Physical Activity Strategy.  
  

Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

  

Appendix 2

Page 153



 

 
 

Contents 

1. Foreword 

2. Our strategic approach 

3. Why is physical activity important? 

4. National context  

5. Where we are now – the national picture 

6. Where we are now – Gateshead 

7. Taking a ‘whole system’ and ‘place-based’ approach 

8. The challenge 

9. Opportunities and outcomes: 

 Objective 1: Recover, reinvent, and thrive  

 Objective 2: Creating a positive experience for children and young people 

 Objective 3: Living well and ageing well 

 Objective 4: Supporting communities 

 Objective 5: Creating active environments 

  

Page 154



 

 
 

 

1. Foreword 

For too long, many of the people with the most to gain from being physically active 

have often been the least able to take part. A combination of structural, social, 

environmental and economic factors have all played their part in keeping people 

away from physical activity, including access and affordability, a lack of 

opportunities, or a feeling for some that ‘physical activity is not for them’ or they 

‘don’t belong’ in sports facilities or clubs. 

The Covid-19 pandemic has been devastating for many individuals and communities 

and it has both highlighted and exacerbated inequalities in Gateshead. Even before 

the pandemic, many aspects of modern life made it harder to live a healthy and 

active life: new technology at home and work, convenience food, more sedentary 

jobs, and a growth in leisure activities such as gaming have all played a part. Many 

of us need to make a conscious decision to build physical activity into our daily lives.  

However, the pandemic has also brought with it a new energy to do things differently 

and to tackle long standing inequalities. We have seen the power of social action in 

communities when local community groups stepped up to support their vulnerable 

neighbours. We also learned how much successful partnerships can achieve when 

local government, health and other public sector partners, charities, the voluntary 

sector and community groups come together behind a shared goal. We can continue 

to build on this renewed focus and purpose as we look to the future. 

Just before the pandemic began, Gateshead Council and partners published 

Gateshead’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy, ‘Good jobs, homes, health and friends’. 

It sets out our ambition to make Gateshead a place where everybody can thrive. In a 

world living with Covid, it is now more relevant than ever. 

We know that supporting people to be active is a vital part of achieving our vision for 

Gateshead. Not only can physical activity have profound benefits for our physical 

health, but it’s also good for our mental wellbeing too. What’s more, it helps us meet 

new friends, improves job opportunities and has huge value to the nation’s economy. 

It can also help us move towards a greener future.1 

Page 155



 

 
 

As a Marmot City*, we are passionate about the need to build back fairer. We want to 

ensure that every Gateshead resident can easily access a range of opportunities for 

sport and physical activity regardless of age, gender, race, ability, background, 

where they live or income. As part of our ambition to make Gateshead a place where 

everyone thrives, we need to get Gateshead moving. We particularly want to support 

those who are least active, or face the greatest barriers to physical activity, and so 

build a stronger, fairer society for all. 

Councillor Angela Douglas, Cabinet Member for Culture, Sport and Leisure 

Councillor Bernadette Oliphant, Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing 

 

 

 
2. Our strategic approach 

Our vision 
 We want Gateshead to be a place where everyone thrives. 

 

Our strategic approach commits us to these pledges: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our vision for health and wellbeing in Gateshead:  

‘Good jobs, homes, health and friends.’ 
 

*See Appendix 1: Glossary 
 

Page 156

https://www.gateshead.gov.uk/article/11956/Thrive-our-strategic-approach
https://www.gateshead.gov.uk/media/31204/Health-and-Wellbeing-Strategy/pdf/Health___Wellbeing_Strategy_2020.pdf?m=637777541743170000


 

 
 

Our Physical Activity Strategy will help us to deliver our vision for Health and Wellbeing in Gateshead: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 157



 

 
 

Our mission 
Working with our communities and partners, to get Gateshead moving. We want to 

make Gateshead a borough where every resident has access to a range of 

appropriate and affordable opportunities for physical activity that become part of their 

everyday life and improve health and wellbeing.  

 
Objectives 

• Recover, reinvent and thrive - we will learn from the pandemic to become a 

stronger and fairer borough, where no-one is less active because of who they are 

or where they live. 

• Creating a positive experience for children and young people - we want our 

children and young people to enjoy being physically active and build foundations 

for a long, healthy and active life. 

• Living well and ageing well - we will strengthen the connection between 

physical activity and health and wellbeing throughout every stage of life. 

• Supporting communities - physical activity brings people together and helps 

makes better places to live. We will work with communities and partners to 

support people be more active where they live, particularly targeting where 

inequalities are greatest and recognising that every community is different. 

• Creating active environments - we want to make it easier for people in 

Gateshead to be active in the space around them and contribute to the reduction 

of carbon emissions. 

 
How we will work 

Our values and guiding principles are: 

 

 

Partnership - working collaboratively across sectors and communities, bringing 

together experience, expertise, resources and enthusiasm. We need everyone to 

make it their mission to get Gateshead moving. 

Page 158



 

 
 

Inclusion - reflecting diverse voices and lived experience in our work. Treating all 

ideas and everyone’s challenges and circumstances with respect. 

Innovation - exploring new ways of working to find creative solutions. 

Proportionate universalism balancing universal and targeted provision in a way 

that’s proportionate to level of need - focusing most on engaging the least active and 

those who face the greatest barriers to being active. 

People-centred - putting people, their needs and the barriers they face at the heart 

of our plans. Delivering services in and with communities. 

Physical activity - simply means all movement. Popular ways to be active include 

walking, cycling, sports, active recreation and play, and can be done at any level of 

skill and for enjoyment by everybody.2 

Physical activity broadly falls into three groups. 

 
 
 

3. Why is physical activity important? 

If physical activity were a drug, we would refer to it as a miracle cure, due to the 

great many illnesses it can prevent and help treat.”  
 

UK Chief Medical Officers 20193 

 

Adapted from: Be Active, Be Healthy. A Plan to get the Nation Moving, 
Transport 2017 (Department of Health 2009)

Everyday 
activity
• Active travel 

(cycling/walking)
• Housework
• Gardening
• DIY
• Activity at work

Active recreation
• Walking
• Cyling
• Active play
• Dance

Sport 
• Organised or 

informal activity 
e.g swimming, 
fitness training 
and cycling

• competitive sport

Page 159



 

 
 

There is overwhelming evidence that regular physical activity is good for your 

physical and mental health and wellbeing and prevents long term health conditions 

such as heart and lung diseases, diabetes, cancers and obesity. 

 

Source: Office for Health Improvement & Disparities, Physical activity: applying All Our Health, 
updated March 20224 
 

Source: UK Chief Medical Officers' Physical Activity Guidelines, 20193

Page 160



 

 
 

Physical inactivity is associated with 1 in 6 deaths in the UK5.  

 

Regular physical activity also contributes to a range of wider social, environmental 

and economic benefits6 including: 

 

For individuals: 

• improved learning and attainment 

• increasing productivity in the workplace 

• development of social skills and better social interaction. 
 

For social and community development: 

• building stronger communities by bringing people from different backgrounds 
together via participating, volunteering and spectating 

• improving community links, levels of cohesion and social capital 
• improving residents’ sense of belonging in an area. 
 

For the environment:  

• active travel reduces road congestion and air pollution. 
 

For the economy: 

• inactivity costs the UK an estimated £7.4 billion a year. The potential cost savings 

to health (in primary and secondary care) and social care are significant7

• sport and physical activity generate more than £13bn in economic value through 

the sports-related goods and services we consume as a nation including more 

than 285,000 jobs that employ people within the community sport and physical 

activity sector. 8 

Every £1 spent on sport and physical activity in England generates almost 
£4 in return across health and wellbeing, stronger communities and the 
economy. 
This figure is calculated by measuring the total social and economic value (£85.5 

billion) against the costs of engagement and providing sport and physical activity 

opportunities (£21.85 billion.) 
Sport Industry Research Centre, Sheffield Hallam University  9 

Page 161



 

 
 

 

Some is good, more is better 3 

For good physical and mental health, adults should aim to be physically active every 

day. Any activity is better than none, and more is better still.  

 

For an adult, the UK Chief Medical Officers recommended physical activity levels are 

at least 150 minutes moderate intensity per week, or at least 75 minutes vigorous 

intensity per week or a combination of both. There are different recommendations for 

different age groups. A summary of these can be seen at Appendix 2.  

  

Page 162



 

 
 

4. The national context 

UK Chief Medical 
Officers' Physical 
Activity Guidelines 
(2019)3 
This report updates the 
2011 guidance, covering 
the volume, duration, 
frequency and type of 
physical activity required 
across the life course to 
achieve health benefits. 
It presents compelling 
evidence to support the 
health benefits of regular 
physical activity for all 
groups. It also says that 
regular physical activity 
can deliver cost savings 
for the health and care 
system and has wider 
social benefits for 
individuals and 
communities. 
This report emphasises 
the importance of regular 
activity for people of all 
ages.  
 
 

Uniting the Movement Strategy 
(2021)10 
Sport England’s 10-year strategy. 
identifies five big issues: 
Recover and reinvent - recovering 
from the pandemic and reinventing 
as a vibrant, relevant, sustainable 
and inclusive network of 
organisations providing sport and 
physical activity opportunities. 
Connecting communities - 
Focusing on physical activity’s 
ability to make better places to live 
and bring people together. 
Positive experiences for children 
and young people - Unrelenting 
focus on positive experiences for 
all children and young people as 
the foundations for a long and 
healthy life.  
Connecting with health and 
wellbeing - Strengthening the 
connections between sport, 
physical activity, health and 
wellbeing. 
Active environments - Creating 
and protecting the places and 
spaces that make it easier for 
people to be active. 

Cycling and walking plan for 
England: Gear Change A 
bold vision for cycling and 
walking (2020)11 
The strategy sets out that 
increasing cycling and walking 
can help of the challenging 
issues including improving air 
quality, combatting climate 
change, improving health and 
wellbeing, addressing 
inequalities and tackling 
congestion on our roads. Bold 
action will help to create 
places we want to live and 
work – with better connected, 
healthier and more sustainable 
communities.  
 
Actions are set out under four 
themes 
• Better streets for cycling 

and people.  
• Cycling at the heart of 

decision-making  
• Empowering and 

encouraging Local 
Authorities  

• Enabling people to cycle 
and protecting them when 
they do. 

Tackling obesity: 
empowering adults and 
children to live healthier 
lives (2020)12 
The strategy outlines 
actions that the government 
will take to tackle obesity 
and help adults and children 
to live healthier lives. These 
include 

• PHE’s new Better Health 
campaign that will urge 
people to take stock of 
how they live their lives in 
the wake of Covid-19, 
promoting evidence-
based tools and apps with 
advice on how to lose 
weight and keep it off.  

• expand weight 
management services so 
that more people get the 
support they need to lose 
weight 

• offer all Primary Care 
Networks the opportunity 
to equip their staff to 
become healthy weight 
coaches. 

Sporting Future A new 
strategy for an Active 
Nation (2015)13 
The Government’s 
strategy for sport confirms 
its recognition and 
understanding that sport 
makes a positive 
difference and states its 
intention that the sector 
will deliver five simple but 
fundamental outcomes:  
• physical health 
• mental health 
• individual development 
• social and community 

development 
• economic.  
In future, funding 
decisions will be made 
based on the outcomes 
that sport and physical 
activity can deliver. 
 

P
age 163



 

 
 

5. Where we are now – the national picture 
 

• 1 in 3 (34%) men are not active enough for good health 

• almost 1 in 2 (42%) women are not active enough for good health 

• 1 in 5 (21%) men are classed as physically inactive 

• 1 in 4 (25%) women are classed as physically inactive 

• 44% of disabled adults are physically inactive 

• only 34% of men and 24% of women undertake muscle-strengthening 

activities at least twice a week 

Public Health England, 20203 

 
There are stark inequalities in levels of physical activity:14 

• Inactivity increases steadily as people get older. 

• LGBT (Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, and other sexual and gender 

identities) people are less likely to be active than the general population. 

• Women are less likely than men to reach recommended levels of physical activity 

• More girls than boys disengage from sport and exercise in their teens.  

• Less affluent people are more likely to be inactive than those who are better off 

as well as less likely to be active.15  

• Disabled adults are almost twice as likely as non-disabled people to be physically 

inactive.16 

• Levels of physical activity vary with ethnicity. People of mixed ethnicity were the 

most likely out of all ethnic groups to be physically active. The percentages of 

physically active people in the Asian, Black, Other and Chinese ethnic groups 

were lower than the national average.17 

• Participation in sport and physical activity is higher among some faith groups than 

others.18 

  

Page 164



 

 
 

A range of sports and physical activities contribute to people’s engagement with 

physical activity19 : 

• Looking at broad types of physical activity*, walking (whether for recreation or 

travel) makes the biggest contribution to physical activity. Just over 62% of 

adults over 16 took part in walking. This is more than double those who 

participate in either sporting activities (28.7%) or fitness activities (24.9%).  Even 

before the pandemic began, walking had by far the highest level of participation. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note: Taken part at least twice in the last 28 days (adults age 16+) with at least moderate intensity.  

Source: Sport England, Active Lives Survey, Nov 20-21. 

 

 
   

Page 165



 

 
 

6. Where we are now – the Gateshead picture  

  

Page 166



 

 
 

 

 

 
  

Source: 
Gateshead JSNA Gateshead JSNA - Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
OHID, Local Area Health Profiles fingertips.phe.org.uk
Sport England Active Lives Children and Young People data Academic Year 2020-21 Active Lives 
| Children And Young People Activity Data (sportengland.org)
 Sport England Active Lives Adult data Nov 20- Nov 21 Active Lives | Adult Data 
(sportengland.org) 

Page 167

https://www.gatesheadjsna.org.uk/article/5094/Home
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles
https://activelives.sportengland.org/Home/ActivityData
https://activelives.sportengland.org/Home/ActivityData
https://activelives.sportengland.org/Home/AdultData
https://activelives.sportengland.org/Home/AdultData


 

 
 

7. Taking a ‘whole system’ and ‘place-based’ approach 

There isn’t one magic solution to get everyone moving - real lives are influenced by a 

combination of many factors.  

Looking at the ‘whole system’:  

We need to consider the changes required, at all the layers in the system, to tackle 

inactivity. This includes changes to policy, the physical environment, organisations 

and institutions, the social environment, as well as to individuals themselves. 

Source: socio- ecological model as used by Sport England, 202120 

Examples of changes that can be part of a whole systems approach: 

• Policy e.g. policies and systems that promote walking, cycling and public 

transport. 

• Physical environments e.g. access to open and green spaces which 

encourages people to be active. 

• Organisations and institutions e.g. programmes embedded in primary health 

care such as social prescribing in GP practices and schools that integrate 

physical activity initiatives into the school day.  

Page 168



 

 
 

• Social environment – e.g. people are more likely to be active if it is seen as 

‘normal’, and if their friends and peers are also active. 

• Individuals e.g. people can decide to become more physically active in response 

to a community campaign. Evidence suggests these are only effective when 

supported by local level community activities.20 

 
Focusing on ‘place’:  

To really change how active a person or a community is, all of these influencing 

factors need to work coherently as a ‘system’ around them. If we’re going to help 

foster positive change in these places, there needs to be a change of focus. 

Sports England, 202121 

We know that physical activity levels are closely related to the wider determinants of 

health (the conditions into which people are born, live and work). Health inequalities 

are not caused by one single issue, but a complex mix of environmental and social 

factors which play out in a local area, or place - this means that local areas have an 

important role to play in reducing health inequalities.22 But national programmes 

often can’t tackle the barriers that can exist at a local level, and top-down 

interventions don’t lead to sustainable change.23 That’s why it’s important to shift to a 

person-centred, bottom-up approach, whilst looking at the whole system from a 

community perspective. By working together to gain local knowledge and insight and 

make best use of the resources available locally, we can better meet the unique 

needs of people in one place. 

 

Case study: ‘It’s not about telling people to eat better, stop smoking or get on 
the treadmill’ 

Gateshead Council’s Public Health team commissioned Pattinson House, a 

Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) organisation in a deprived ward in 

Gateshead to develop a childhood obesity prevention project. This was part of 

ongoing work with residents to ‘build happier, healthier, friendlier communities.’ The 

project was evaluated by an embedded researcher from Fuse (The Centre for 

Translational Research in Public Health.) 

Page 169



 

 
 

The research uncovered major structural, environmental, social and financial barriers 

to health and wellbeing. It raised concerns about traffic, community safety and the 

lack of safe spaces for children to play. The adverse effects of welfare reform and 

austerity increased poor health outcomes and limited people’s choices. Community 

engagement and children’s activities, alongside opportunities for people to volunteer, 

eat, socialise, have fun, get out, learn and play together improved health and 

wellbeing, social support, community cohesion, sense of belonging and partnership 

working. Social relationships developed through Pattinson House helped to reduce 

social isolation, promote mental health, improve community connectedness and 

increase physical activity. 

Source: Fuse brief, Fit 4 The Future – how community-led approaches can 
address childhood obesity, 201824 

 
8. The challenge 

We need to increase levels of physical activity across Gateshead because: 

• Preventable, yet life-changing conditions, like obesity and diabetes are 

increasing.  

• There is overwhelming evidence that regular physical activity is good for your 

physical and mental health as well as bringing a wide range of social, economic 

and environmental benefits. 

We need to work differently because: 

• The pandemic has widened health inequalities.  It has also increased the ongoing 

financial pressures that the Council has experienced over the last 10 years. 

• We need to expand our focus and encourage all physical activity because the 

most frequently undertaken activities, like walking and cycling, take place in 

informal settings, green and open spaces and the built environment. 

• There is increasing evidence about the importance of using a place-based 

approach – working with communities to develop opportunities for people to be 

physically active close to home. To be successful, we need to drive change 

across the whole system – individuals, social environment, organisations, 

physical environment and policy. 

Page 170



 

 
 

We need to address barriers to participation and increasing physical activity levels 

across everyday activity, recreation and sport.  Barriers include: 

• Increased sedentary behaviour stemming from pandemic restrictions, working 

from home and reduced opportunities for active travel.  

• Difficulties in accessing green and open spaces for recreation including proximity 

and fear of crime or anti-social behaviour. 

• A built environment that doesn’t support healthy choices or active travel. 

• Cost - the current rise in the cost of living is squeezing budgets. This affects both 

the ability of individuals and families to participate in many sport and physical 

activities and the viability of sports and activity providers to offer them. 

• In addition to cost, individuals can face many barriers to physical activity 

including.25 

o a lack of confidence or embarrassment 

o no motivation - some people simply do not want to change 

o time and commitments: fitting activity around education, work, family life or 

caring responsibilities 

o health or physical access issues 

o few local opportunities  

o lack of culturally appropriate opportunities for exercise. 

 

  

Page 171



 

 
 

Our local residents highlighted a wide range of barriers to physical activity: 

Source: Council Health and Wellbeing Survey March 2021 

 

9. Opportunities and outcomes 

Objective 1: Recover, reinvent and thrive  

We will learn from the pandemic to become a stronger and fairer borough, 
where no-one is less active because of who they are or where they live.  

As the UK emerges from the COVID-19 pandemic it would be a tragic mistake to attempt to 

re-establish the status quo that existed before – a status quo marked in England, over the 

past decade, by a stagnation of health improvement that was the second worst in Europe, 

and by widening health inequalities. 

Build Back Fairer, The Marmot Review, 202026 

 
  

Page 172



 

 
 

Opportunities 

The Covid-19 pandemic made physical activity difficult for many, significantly 

impacting people’s physical and mental wellbeing. Lockdowns, social distancing and 

other restrictions resulted in massive changes to how people were physically active, 

particularly for those who, before the pandemic, regularly took part in organised sport 

and physical activity such as football clubs, dance, parkrun and community fitness 

classes.  

Gateshead’s network of sports clubs and activity providers are a key gateway to 

local opportunities for sport and physical activity, often hugely reliant on volunteers 

and run on a shoestring. Supporting and developing a strong and sustainable 

network of organised activity providers, working collaboratively to reduce inactivity, 

will be essential as they recover and rebuild after the pandemic. 

Also, vital to widening opportunities for physical activity are the community groups 

and organisations in Gateshead who engage with those who are more likely to be 

physically inactive. Introducing physical activity awareness into the offer of these 

groups will support the engagement of different audiences. This is already 

happening in some cases but is unrecognised as physical activity. Running tea 

dances, walking to a meeting and encouraging people to get out and about are all 

ways that inactivity is challenged without people realising it.   

 

During the pandemic, when facilities were closed, there was a new enthusiasm for 

many people to increase physical activity through informal avenues such as walking, 

either on their own or with friends or family.  We need to continue to promote the 

huge benefits/importance of informal exercise for both mental and physical health as 

we continue to recover from the pandemic. 

 

We know that women and girls, people who are poor, disabled people, people aged 

55+, people from LGBT+ communities and people who are from ethnically diverse 

communities and/or minoritised communities can have lower levels of physical 

activity and experience more barriers to participation. We want to adapt our offer and 

meet the needs of the people, in our borough, who need our support the most and 

encourage our partners to do the same. This will involve working closely with local 

Page 173



 

 
 

communities, providing activities in new places close to where people live and may 

also include the provision of new or emerging activities, or targeting activities to 

specific groups.  

 

Case Study: Active through football 

With support from the National Lottery, Gateshead Council is delivering the Active 

Through Football programme together with Sport England, the Football Foundation, 

RISE, and local partners including Gateshead Older People's Assembly and Egberts 

House. 

Over the next five years, the programme aims to increase activity levels particularly 

amongst females aged 16+, males aged 50+, refugees and individuals experiencing 

mental health issues. Its purpose is to make football more accessible to these 

groups, with sessions tailored to all levels of fitness, ability and confidence. 

 

Case Study: A weight off your mind (AWOYM) 

People with mental health conditions and people with learning disabilities are at 

increased risk of premature morbidity, dying up to twenty years sooner than the 

general population. It is thought that two thirds of these early deaths are caused by 

avoidable physical illnesses that are linked with unhealthy lifestyles such as poor diet 

and low levels of physical activity. Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS 

Foundation are working with partners, service users and carers to develop a regional 

weight management plan which aims to address the needs of those in their care.  It 

combines physical activity, healthy weight and nutrition as core topics to ensure 

consistency of messages to patients. 

 

  

Page 174



 

 
 

Outcomes 

By 2032 we will have: 

• Increased physical activity levels and reduced inactivity levels for: 

o Women and girls 

o Ethnically diverse and/or minoritised communities. 

o Older people (55 and over) 

o People with a disability or long-term condition  

o People from LGBT+ communities 

o People who live in areas that are in the10% most deprived in England.  

 

• A strong and sustainable network of organised activity providers, working 

collaboratively to reduce inactivity. 

• Worked with clubs, community groups and other physical activity providers to 

access funding, training and opportunities to develop their activities to reach less 

active groups. 

• Adapted the Council sport and leisure offer to better meet the needs of groups 

who have lower levels of activity by being more accessible, more inclusive and by 

offering improved, more affordable experiences. 

• Provided more opportunities and support for people in Gateshead to be 

physically active in the places where they live, using community facilities and the 

local green environment. 

• Encouraged the introduction of new sports and physical activities to complement 

more traditional ones and appeal to new audiences. 

 

  

Page 175



 

 
 

Objective 2: Creating a positive experience for children and young people 

We want our children and young people to enjoy being physically active and 
build foundations for a long, healthy and active life. 

Physical inactivity poses a serious and growing danger to society; it 

damages health, economy and the environment and limits the educational 

attainment and future lives of children.’ 

All-Party Parliamentary Commission on Physical Activity27 

 

Developing regular physical activity behaviours in childhood is crucial as we know 

that children who are active are more likely to become active adults and continue to 

reap the benefits of an active lifestyle throughout their life course.28   

Although children and young people have the lowest clinical risk from Covid-19, they 

nevertheless experienced significant disruption at a critical time in their development, 

which may have long term implications for their physical and mental health.  

 

 

Levels of activity in Gateshead’s children and young people 

 

Source: Sport England Active Lives Children and Young People data Academic Year 2020-21 29 

Page 176



 

 
 

In Gateshead, the number of ‘active’ children dropped in the year before and during 

the pandemic, although is now increasing. However, the level of ‘less active’ children 

has decreased over the last four years. National results suggest that across the 

academic year (20-21) as a whole, activity levels have fallen compared to pre-

pandemic (2018-19) for children from the least affluent families while remaining 

unchanged for those from the most affluent families – widening the gap.30 

The Gateshead Millennium Cohort Study found that physical activity levels may start 

tailing off as early as seven-years-old, rather than during adolescence as is widely 

believed, and there is no evidence to indicate that the decline is greater among girls 

than it is among boys.31 Other research has found that too many girls are 

disengaging from sport and exercise in their teens and teenagers’ engagement with 

exercise differs between boys and girls and requires different solutions. Self-belief, 

capability, and body image concerns can be significant issues for both boys and girls 

but are more apparent in girls than in boys.32  Evidence also suggests that young 

people who are not cis gendered also experience significant issues in relation to self-

belief, capability, and body image concerns.33 

We want to enable all children and young people to become physically literate, to 

really enjoy physical activity and feel more confident and competent taking part. We 

need to particularly focus on those groups who currently have less opportunities to 

be active and experience more barriers to taking part including teenage girls, 

children and young people from diverse or economically deprived communities and 

disabled children. We will work with children and young people, schools, colleges, 

clubs, community groups and other physical activity providers to explore ways of 

doing this and offer new opportunities. We also want to support pathways for 

progression where those that want to progress in their chosen sport are able. 

Schools and early years provision have an important role to play in encouraging 

children and young people to be active. We believe that multi-component, whole 

school approaches that encompass, active travel, active play and cross-curricular 

physically active learning and are embedded in the culture, ethos and environment of 

the school, are most effective.34 Many local schools already make a significant 

contribution to increasing children and young people’s physical activity levels. In 

addition, we want whole school sport and physical activity in schools and early years 

settings to be complemented by opportunities in the community which appeal to 

Page 177



 

 
 

families and young people who prefer the social side of physical activity and sport, 

as well as opportunities for those who prefer competitive sport. 

 

Case Study: WOW walk to school challenge 

A number of schools in Gateshead are working with national charity, Living Streets, 

to deliver their WOW walk to school challenge. WOW is a pupil-led initiative where 

children self-report how they get to school every day using the interactive WOW 

Travel Tracker. If they travel sustainably (walk, cycle or scoot) once a week for a 

month, they get rewarded with a badge. Living Streets are working to achieve a 

better walking environment and inspire people to walk more. 

 

Case Study: Brighten the day of a child 

For several years, Gateshead Council has worked closely with partners (including 

schools, local charities and community organisations) to provide much needed food 

and activities during school holidays, particularly aimed at children who are eligible 

for school meals and families who are struggling to make ends meet but do not 

access this benefit. The activities include pop-up sports activities, bike rides, nature 

walks and healthy cooking ideas.  
 
Outcomes 

By 2032: 

• More children and young people in Gateshead will be physically active and 

achieving the Chief Medical Officer’s recommended levels of physical activity. 

• There will be an improvement in childhood obesity levels. 

• We will work with young people to gain a better understanding of barriers to 

activity and the opportunities they seek.  New place-based opportunities and 

environments to be active will be co-created with children and young people. 

• More children and young people in our most deprived areas will be regularly 

taking part in physical activity, enjoying the experience and be reporting more 

positive mental health. 

• More schools will have adopted a whole school approach to physical activity. 

Page 178



 

 
 

Objective 3: Living well and ageing well 

We will strengthen the connection between physical activity and health and 
wellbeing throughout every stage of life. 

There is no point in life where doing more exercise does not improve health in 

multiply ways 

Professor Chris Whitty, Chief Medical Officer, 202035 

 
Opportunities 

By strengthening the connections between physical activity, health and wellbeing, we 

can make physical activity a central part of how we all feel about our health and 

wellbeing. Throughout people’s lives, their interests and values change. We want to 

ensure that there are always opportunities, throughout their lives, to enable them to 

lead an active, healthy lifestyle. The more we can widen access and participation in 

physical activity, sport and active travel, the more it becomes embedded in everyday 

life and the greater the chance of increasing levels of physical activity across 

Gateshead. 

 

We know that there are many barriers to people taking part in activity which can vary 

depending on where they live and their individual circumstances. To break down 

these barriers, we need to understand more about what stops them taking part and 

map the barriers for different localities and communities. We can then develop 

targeted actions to overcome them whether at home, work or play. 

 

Case Study: Active Mums 

Active Mums is a fun way to meet for new mums (after their 8-week health check or 

12 weeks if they’ve had a Caesarean) to meet new people and get active outdoors 

with their baby. With babies safe and snug in their pushchairs, mums work on 

improving fitness and toning up by performing a range of enjoyable cardio and 

bodyweight exercises, overseen by a qualified instructor. As well as supporting 

mums to become more physically active, the scheme helps reduce social isolation 

and builds confidence. 

 

Page 179



 

 
 

Whilst for some, physical activity is an integral part of their job, for others their role is 

mainly sedentary. Along with stress, depression and anxiety, musculoskeletal 

disorders account for most of the sickness absence in the UK.36 Regular physical 

activity can support good musculoskeletal health as well as positive mental health. 

Many employers recognise that supporting measures to improve the health and 

wellbeing of their employees can bring business benefits such as better staff 

satisfaction and retention, as well as reduced absence.  National Institute for Health 

and Clinical Excellence (NICE) has produced guidance37 to help employers prevent 

the diseases associated with a lack of physical activity. Efforts made in the 

workplace, alongside wider strategies to increase physical activity levels, can help 

improve people's health significantly. In Gateshead, we want to create a culture 

where being physically active in the workplace is encouraged and we will continue to 

support initiatives which contribute to this such as the Better Health at Work award. 
 

Activity levels generally decrease with age, with the sharpest decrease coming at 

age 75+. Nationally, the 75+ age group was particularly affected by the pandemic. 

This may be linked to the requirement for many of those aged 70+ to shield during 

the earlier stages of the pandemic and a continued nervousness of mingling indoors 

or in crowded outdoor spaces.38  Regular physical activity, in combination with 

standard medical care, also has an important role in the management and 

prevention of many long-term conditions.39 

Case Study: Gateshead Falls Prevention pathway 

Partners from health, the voluntary sector and local authority have developed a 

referral pathway that enables those who have fallen or who are at risk of falling, to 

engage with supported exercise to improve their strength and balance. By offering 

Otago based exercise, staying steady classes and physical activity opportunities in 

the community, the over 50’s are encouraged to stay active for longer. This approach 

aims to reduce frailty and help individuals to stay in their own homes for longer.  

Gateshead Council works in partnership with health providers to provide a range of 

targeted services to individuals and groups with long term conditions such as 

pulmonary rehabilitation and cardiac rehabilitation. We want to ensure that this is 

expanded so that physical activity provision is integrated with health systems and will 

Page 180



 

 
 

strengthen our connections and collaboration with primary and secondary care, so 

that more people are recommended or referred into activity as part of services and 

care pathways. This will result in more people engaging in physical activity and 

better outcomes. 

Gateshead already has a well-established social prescribing scheme. Health 

professionals can refer patients to community link workers who spend time with 

patients addressing their needs in a holistic way and supporting individuals to take 

greater control of their own health. They make referrals to non-medical services and 

support people to engage with activities, usually provided by voluntary and 

community organisations, including volunteering, arts and befriending as well as 

ones which can promote physical activity including gardening, sports, walking and 

cycling. 

 
Outcomes 

By 2032: 

• More adults (aged 19-64) and older adults (aged over 65) will be physically active 

and achieve the Chief Medical Officer’s recommended levels of physical activity. 

• Being physical active will be a larger part of workplace culture. 

• More physical activity opportunities will be seen as ‘age friendly’.  

• We will understand more about the barriers that prevent people from being active 

at different stages of their life and be working with communities to tackle this. 

• More people will be accessing physical activity through the health care system, at 

both primary and secondary care, with it becoming further embedded into care 

pathways. This will include increased use of social prescribing into active 

recreation and active travel. 
 

  

Page 181



 

 
 

Objective 4: Supporting communities  

Physical activity can bring people together and help make better places to live. 
We will work with communities and partners to support active lives, 
particularly targeting where inequalities are greatest. 
 

In order to build community contributions into a central role within place-based 

strategies to address health inequalities, it is important that all partners, including 

communities themselves, understand their potential. The assets within communities, 

such as the skills and knowledge, social networks, local groups and community 

organisations, are building blocks for good health. 

Public Health England, 202140 

Opportunities 

The place around us has a significant impact on our health. By working together to 

adopt a place-based approach, we want to create local communities that are happy, 

healthy and active. We want to create sustainable opportunities for physical activity 

which are fun, easy to access and affordable. 

We know we need to do more to meet communities where they are today, develop 

our collective understanding of their priorities and challenges, and support them to 

make sustainable changes to their behaviours so that they can lead healthy, active 

and fulfilling lives. To achieve this, there will be a need to collaborate with local 

people to develop local opportunities for physical activity that meet their needs and 

interests. This will require a bottom-up approach to be used, working with the people 

in each community and the organisations that local people trust. 

One essential factor in increasing levels of physical activity amongst under-

represented groups, is the role of skilled, supportive and non-judgemental enablers 

(including employees, community members and volunteers) to engage with people in 

the community. Widening these skills will require investment in training and 

development. 

 

 

 

 

Page 182



 

 
 

Case Study: Beat the Streets 

Beat the Street is an evidence-based intervention that increases activity levels, 

reduces health inequalities and can bring about sustainable behaviour change 

across local populations and communities, including those in areas of high 

deprivation. It uses gamification to mobilise large numbers of residents and create a 

social norm around walking, cycling, rolling and running. Beat Boxes are placed on 

street furniture (usually lamp posts) across the playing area and players score points 

by tapping at least 2 Boxes within an hour using fobs. The focus starts with schools 

and their families but can include all aspects of the community and local businesses.  

Other community groups, teams, families and individuals can also take part. Teams 

compete against each other over the four-week game to win prizes and travel as far 

as they can. Beat the Street creates a legacy of physical activity by signposting 

people to events and activities in their area as well as working with local 

stakeholders to continue to build active communities. Gateshead Council has worked 

with Intelligent Health (a strategic partner within Beat the Street) and local partners 

to pilot this initiative in two wards locally.  The initiative was well-received. 

 

Outcomes: 

By 2032: 

• More Gateshead people will be taking part in fun and sustainable physical 

activities in their local community. 

• Sports clubs, community groups and other activity providers will be providing 

more opportunities for local people to be physically active. 

• New activities and services will have been co-designed with residents in their 

communities, following work with them to understand their priorities and 

challenges. 

• More enablers, with a diverse experience and backgrounds, will be active in 

communities and have been equipped with the training and skills to engage with 

people effectively. 

• Good practice, innovative projects, inspirational role models and influencers will 

be recognised within Gateshead. 

Page 183



 

 
 

 
Objective 5: Creating active environments  

Opportunities 

We want to make it easier for people in Gateshead to be active in the space around 

them. The places where we live, work and play all influence how physically active we 

are. Environments that are attractive and accessible encourage us to become more 

active within them. The places that support us to live active lives include:  

• Sports and leisure facilities e.g. swimming pools, sports halls, fitness facilities, 

pitches, and courts 

• Community spaces e.g. parks, green and open spaces, public rights of way, 

community centres and school buildings 

• Built environment e.g. streets, housing estates, roads and paths 

 

Councils have a central role in championing the vision for active environments and 

bringing everything together by connecting diverse Government objectives and 

service areas including planning, active travel schemes, parks and playgrounds, 

allotments and sports and leisure facilities. 

 

Sports and leisure facilities: We want to ensure that Gateshead has affordable, 

accessible, and sustainable sport and leisure facilities which will support residents to 

live active and healthy lives now and in the future. Our Physical Activity Strategy is 

supported by a Built Facilities Evaluation and a Playing Pitch Strategy which have 

been developed using Sport England methodology to underpin our understanding of 

future demand. The strategies recognise that there are significant challenges in 

delivering the level and quality of infrastructure required and that we will need to 

explore innovative partnerships and cross-sector sustainable delivery and funding 

models to support achievement of our vision. 

 

Community spaces: although walking and nature has been a lifeline to many in the 

pandemic, national research shows that people from more deprived communities 

and people from ethnic minorities live further from green spaces.41 The links between 

access to green space and levels of physical activity are well-established and 

Page 184



 

 
 

research shows that access to green space is associated with better health 

outcomes, and income-related health inequality is less pronounced where people 

have access to green space.42  

Gateshead has a fabulous network of parks, green and open spaces and 

countryside sites. We need to make sure that everyone can access and enjoy them. 

Allotments also provide a great opportunity for exercise as well as opportunities for 

growing fresh produce and getting fresh air.  We want to explore measures to further 

increase access to allotments such as encouraging plot-sharing schemes and 

shared community allotments. 

 

Case Study: Get Walking Gateshead Council 

Get Walking Gateshead offers a series of free led walks that take place weekly at 

various locations across Gateshead. Walks last from 10 to 90 minutes, are led by 

fully trained Volunteer Walk Leaders and take place in a variety of locations across 

the borough. They are a great way for people who are new to exercise or need more 

support to get out, get active and meet new people. The walks are run in partnership 

with the Ramblers Association who provide schemes with support and free 

resources such as training, and insurance. 

 

Built environment:  Building well-designed, accessible places and neighbourhoods 

can encourage healthier choices. For most people, the easiest and most acceptable 

forms of physical activity are those that can be built into everyday life. Examples 

include walking or cycling instead of car travel and using stairs instead of lifts.43  

Several aspects of neighbourhood design (walkability and mixed land use i.e. areas 

that include green spaces) can maximise opportunities for social engagement and 

active travel.44  The strategic housing sites allocated in the Gateshead and 

Newcastle Councils’ Planning for the Future, Core Strategy and Urban Core Plan 

2010-2030 (CSUCP), have been master-planned to incorporate access to green 

spaces, sports facilities, play and recreation facilities to promote active and healthy 

lifestyles. Gateshead Council’s Making Spaces for Growing Places Local Plan 

contains policies to require the provision of open space and play in new housing 

Page 185



 

 
 

developments, as well as policies to promote active travel. We will continue to 

promote healthy and active lifestyles through Gateshead’s Local Plans. 

We are exploring concepts such as ‘20-minute neighbourhoods’ which aim to create 

places in which most of people's daily needs can be met within a short walk or cycle. 

Benefits include people become more active, reduced traffic, thriving local shops and 

businesses and people seeing more of their neighbours. 

Gateshead declared a climate emergency, in May 2019 and there are areas where 

air quality is an issue.  We know that giving people the opportunity to walk and cycle 

more will be key in reducing carbon emissions and levels of Nitrous Oxide (NO2) as 

well as increasing physical activity levels. The Local Cycling and Walking 

Infrastructure Plan (LCIP) aims to identify the cycling and walking improvements 

required. 

 

We want – and need – to see a step-change in cycling and walking in the coming 

years. The challenge is huge, but the ambition is clear. We have a unique 

opportunity to transform the role cycling and walking can play in our transport system 

and get England moving differently. 

Department of Transport, 202045 

 
 
Outcomes 
 

By 2032: 

• The refreshed Sport and Leisure Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategies will 

be monitored regularly to ensure that our Physical Activity Strategy is supported 

by appropriate, affordable, accessible and sustainable sport and leisure 

provision, irrespective of ownership and operation.  

• More people in Gateshead will be using our parks, green and open spaces and 

countryside sites. 

• More journeys will be made by walking and cycling and will be supported by more 

walking and cycle routes 

Page 186



 

 
 

• Increased active travel will be reducing the environmental impact of transport and 

supporting Gateshead’s climate strategy 

• Allotments will be supporting increased levels of physical activity. 

• Gateshead’s Local Plans will continue to promote healthy and active lifestyles. 

 

  

Page 187



 

 
 

Appendix 1: Glossary 

Active play What children and young people do when they follow their own 

ideas and interests, in their own way, and for their own reasons. 

Active travel Active travel (or active transportation or mobility) means walking, 

scooting or cycling for the purpose of making everyday journeys 

Built environment Man-made structures, features, and facilities viewed collectively 

as an environment in which people live and work. 

Embedded research Embedded research involves co-locating researchers within non-

academic organisations. It is increasingly seen as a powerful way 

to link research and researchers with practice and practitioners. 

Fuse The Centre for Translational Research in Public Health 

Health inequalities 

 

Health inequalities are unfair and avoidable differences in health 

across the population, and between different groups within 

society. Health inequalities arise because of the conditions in 

which we are born, grow, live, work and age. 

These conditions influence our opportunities for good health, and 

how we think, feel and act, and this shapes our mental health, 

physical health and wellbeing. 

 

Marmot City Marmot Cities are a network of local authorities in England, 

working in-depth to develop a ‘Marmot’ approach tackling health 

inequalities, based on the Marmot Review Team publication Fair 

Society, Healthy Lives (The Marmot Review) in 2010.  

Sir Michael Marmot has been Professor of Epidemiology at 

University College London since 1985.  

Neighbourhood 

walkability 

Making neighbourhoods walking friendly. 

Organised sport and 

physical activity 

Sport and physical activity organised by people including 

volunteers. 

Page 188

https://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/projects/fair-society-healthy-lives-the-marmot-review
https://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/projects/fair-society-healthy-lives-the-marmot-review


 

 
 

Place-based 

approach 

Place-based approaches recognise the importance of addressing 

the wider determinants of health (the conditions into which people 

are born, live and work) across the life course.  

Physical literacy Physical literacy: is the mastering of fundamental movement skills 

and fundamental sport skills that permit a child to read their 

environment and make appropriate decisions, allowing them to 

move confidently and with control in a wide range of physical 

activity situations.  

Sedentary Tending to spend much time seated; somewhat inactive. 

Social prescribing Social prescribing is a way of linking patients in primary care with 

support within the community to improve physical and mental 

health. It may be used in place of medication or alongside other 

forms of treatment. People are referred to activities in their 

community such as exercise, lunch clubs and volunteering 

Socio ecological 

model 

The Socio Ecological Model (SEM) is a theory-based framework 

for understanding the multifaceted and interactive effects of 

personal and environmental factors that determine behaviours, 

and for identifying behavioural and organisational leverage points 

and intermediaries for health promotion within organisations. 

Wider determinants of 

health  
Wider determinants of health describe the social and 

environmental conditions in which people are born, grow, live, 

work, and age, which shape and drive health outcomes 

 

  

Page 189



 

 
 

Appendix 2: Summary of UK Chief Medical Officers' Physical Activity Guidelines (2019 and 2022)  

P
age 190



 

 
 

  

P
age 191



 

 
 

   

P
age 192



 

 
 

  

P
age 193



 

 
 

Appendix 4: References 

 
1 Uniting the Movement Strategy, Sports England 2021 Uniting the Movement | Sport England 
2 WHO, 2021.  https://www.who.int/news-room/fact-sheets/detail/physical-activity 
3 Public Health England, Health matters: physical activity - prevention and management of long-term conditions, 
2020 Health matters: physical activity - prevention and management of long-term conditions - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk) 
4 Office for Health Improvement & Disparities, Physical activity: applying All Our Health, updated March 20224 
Physical activity: applying All Our Health - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)  
5 OHID, Guidance, Physical activity: applying All Our Health, Updated 10 March 2022 
Physical activity: applying All Our Health - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 
6 Gov.uk, Health matters: physical activity - prevention and management of long-term conditions, 2020 
7 Everybody Active, Every Day: Two years on. An update on the national physical activity framework. PHE, 2017. 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/601298/Every
body_active_every_day_2_y 
ears_on.pdf 
8 Sport England, Why investing in physical activity is great for our health – and our nation, 2020 
9 Sport Industry Research Centre, Sheffield Hallam University Measuring impact | Sport England 
10 Uniting the Movement Strategy, Sports England 2021 Uniting the Movement | Sport England 
11 Department of Transport, Gear Change A bold vision for cycling and walking, 2020 Gear change: a bold vision 
for cycling and walking (publishing.service.gov.uk) 
12 Department of Health and Social Care, Policy paper, Tackling obesity: empowering adults and children to live 
healthier lives, 2020 Tackling obesity: empowering adults and children to live healthier lives - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk) 
13 Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport, Policy paper, Sporting Future - A New Strategy for an Active 
Nation,2015, Sporting Future - A New Strategy for an Active Nation - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 
14BMA, Geta move on, steps to improve physical activity levels in the UK, 2019 bma-physical-activity-briefing-get-
move-on-oct-19-v2.pdf 
15 Sport England – Annual report and Accounts, 2019-2020. Sport_England_2019-
20_Annual_Report_and_Accounts.pdf (publishing.service.gov.uk)u 
16 Facts & Statistics | Activity Alliance | Disability Sport 
17 Gov.uk Ethnicity facts and figures, Physical Activity https://www.ethnicity-facts-
figures.service.gov.uk/health/diet-and-exercise/physical-activity/latest 
18 Faith groups | Sport England 
19 Active Lives | Home (sportengland.org) May 20-21 and May 18-19 data accessed 21/04/2022 
20 Public Health England Health matters: getting every adult active every day, 2016 
21 Sports England, The Story of People and Places, 2021 https://sportengland-production-files.s3.eu-west-
2.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/2021-02/People%20and%20Places%20-
%20The%20story%20of%20doing%20it%20differently..pdf?VersionId=VuhoU_T.OPjXZCJllx4H7yfb0cl3u4og 
22 Place-based approaches for reducing health inequalities: main report - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 
23 Sports England, The Story of People and Places, 2021 https://sportengland-production-files.s3.eu-west-
2.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/2021-02/People%20and%20Places%20-
%20The%20story%20of%20doing%20it%20differently..pdf?VersionId=VuhoU_T.OPjXZCJllx4H7yfb0cl3u4og 
23 Public Health England Health matters: getting every adult active every day, 2016 
24 Source: Fuse brief, Fit 4 The Future – how community-led approaches can address childhood , 2018 
 Fit 4 The Future - how community-led approaches can address childhood obesity.pdf (fuse.ac.uk) 
25 Council Health and Wellbeing Survey March 2021 
26 Michael Marmot, Jessica Allen, Peter Goldblatt, Eleanor Herd, Joana Morrison Build Back Fairer: The COVID-
19 Marmot Review. The Pandemic, Socioeconomic and Health Inequalities in England. London: Institute of 
Health Equity, 2020 Build Back fairer - the COVID-19 Marmot review (health.org.uk) 
27 All-Party Commission on Physical Activity. (2014). Tackling Physical Inactivity A coordinated Approach. 
apcopa-final.pdf (wordpress.com) 
28 The Youth Sport Trust, Association of Colleges Sport, Public Health England, What works in schools and 
colleges to increase physical activity?, 2015 updated 2019 What works in schools and colleges to increase 
physical activity? (ioe.ac.uk) 
29 Sport England Active Lives Children and Young People data Academic Year 2020-21 Active Lives | Children 
And Young People Activity Data (sportengland.org) 
30 Sport England, Active Lives Children and Young People Survey, Academic year 2020-21 
https://d1h1m5892gtkr7.cloudfront.net/s3fs-public/2021-
12/Active%20Lives%20Children%20and%20Young%20People%20Survey%20Academic%20Year%202020-
21%20Report.pdf?VersionId=3jpdwfbsWB4PNtKJGxwbyu5Y2nuRFMBV 
 

Page 194

https://www.sportengland.org/why-were-here/uniting-the-movement
%20https:/www.who.int/news-room/fact-sheets/detail/physical-activity
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-physical-activity/health-matters-physical-activity-prevention-and-management-of-long-term-conditions
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-physical-activity/health-matters-physical-activity-prevention-and-management-of-long-term-conditions
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/physical-activity-applying-all-our-health/physical-activity-applying-all-our-health
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/physical-activity-applying-all-our-health/physical-activity-applying-all-our-health
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-physical-activity/health-matters-physical-activity-prevention-and-management-of-long-term-conditions
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/601298/Everybody_active_every_day_2_y
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/601298/Everybody_active_every_day_2_y
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/601298/Everybody_active_every_day_2_y
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/601298/Everybody_active_every_day_2_y
https://www.sportengland.org/news/why-investing-physical-activity-great-our-health-and-our-nation
https://www.sportengland.org/how-we-can-help/measuring-impact?section=social_and_economic_value_of_community_sport
https://www.sportengland.org/why-were-here/uniting-the-movement
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/904146/gear-change-a-bold-vision-for-cycling-and-walking.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/904146/gear-change-a-bold-vision-for-cycling-and-walking.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/tackling-obesity-government-strategy/tackling-obesity-empowering-adults-and-children-to-live-healthier-lives
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/tackling-obesity-government-strategy/tackling-obesity-empowering-adults-and-children-to-live-healthier-lives
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sporting-future-a-new-strategy-for-an-active-nation
https://www.bma.org.uk/media/2104/bma-physical-activity-briefing-get-move-on-oct-19-v2.pdf
https://www.bma.org.uk/media/2104/bma-physical-activity-briefing-get-move-on-oct-19-v2.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/947605/Sport_England_2019-20_Annual_Report_and_Accounts.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/947605/Sport_England_2019-20_Annual_Report_and_Accounts.pdf
https://www.activityalliance.org.uk/how-we-help/fact-and-statistics
https://www.ethnicity-facts-figures.service.gov.uk/health/diet-and-exercise/physical-activity/latest
https://www.ethnicity-facts-figures.service.gov.uk/health/diet-and-exercise/physical-activity/latest
https://www.sportengland.org/research-and-data/research/faith-groups
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Factivelives.sportengland.org%2F&data=05%7C01%7CHelenBell%40Gateshead.Gov.UK%7Ccfbf4c2e2e6740c7c4b108da23752564%7C09fbb97943174d219cb6e58811169cd8%7C0%7C0%7C637861283284927824%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=BX3kMHWz6yzoq60aUbiMjUwPgShaeadGt%2B5K32VthsU%3D&reserved=0
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-inequalities-place-based-approaches-to-reduce-inequalities/place-based-approaches-for-reducing-health-inequalities-main-report
http://www.fuse.ac.uk/research/briefs/Fit%204%20The%20Future%20-%20how%20community-led%20approaches%20can%20address%20childhood%20obesity.pdf
https://www.health.org.uk/sites/default/files/upload/publications/2020/Build-back-fairer-the-COVID-19-Marmot-review.pdf
https://parliamentarycommissiononphysicalactivity.files.wordpress.com/2014/04/apcopa-final.pdf
https://dera.ioe.ac.uk/33898/1/What_works_in_schools_and_colleges_to_increase_physical_activity.pdf
https://dera.ioe.ac.uk/33898/1/What_works_in_schools_and_colleges_to_increase_physical_activity.pdf
https://activelives.sportengland.org/Home/ActivityData
https://activelives.sportengland.org/Home/ActivityData
https://d1h1m5892gtkr7.cloudfront.net/s3fs-public/2021-12/Active%20Lives%20Children%20and%20Young%20People%20Survey%20Academic%20Year%202020-21%20Report.pdf?VersionId=3jpdwfbsWB4PNtKJGxwbyu5Y2nuRFMBV
https://d1h1m5892gtkr7.cloudfront.net/s3fs-public/2021-12/Active%20Lives%20Children%20and%20Young%20People%20Survey%20Academic%20Year%202020-21%20Report.pdf?VersionId=3jpdwfbsWB4PNtKJGxwbyu5Y2nuRFMBV
https://d1h1m5892gtkr7.cloudfront.net/s3fs-public/2021-12/Active%20Lives%20Children%20and%20Young%20People%20Survey%20Academic%20Year%202020-21%20Report.pdf?VersionId=3jpdwfbsWB4PNtKJGxwbyu5Y2nuRFMBV


 

 
 

 
31 Farooq M.A., Parkinson K.N., Adamson A.J., Pearce M.S., Reilly J.K., Hughes A.R., Janssen X., Basterfield L., 
Reilly J.J. Timing of the decline in physical activity in childhood and adolescence: Gateshead Millennium Cohort 
Study. Br. J. Sports Med, 2018 
32 Women in Sport, Sport England REFRAMING SPORT FOR TEENAGE GIRLS: Tackling teenage 
disengagement, 2022 Tackling-Teenage-Disengagement-March-2022.pdf (womeninsport.org) 
33 Gender dysphoria - NHS (www.nhs.uk) 
34 The Youth Sport Trust, Association of Colleges Sport, Public Health England, What works in schools and 
colleges to increase physical activity?, 2015 updated 2019 What works in schools and colleges to increase 
physical activity? (ioe.ac.uk) 
35 Professor Chris Whitty calls for physical activity to play key role in nation’s recovery and future | ukactive 
36 Statistics - Working days lost in Great Britain (hse.gov.uk) 
37 Overview | Physical activity in the workplace | Guidance | NICE 
38 Sport England, Active Lives Adult Survey May 2020/21 Report https://sportengland-production-files.s3.eu-
west-2.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/2021-10/Active%20Lives%20Adult%20Survey%20May%202020-
21%20Report.pdf?VersionId=YcsnWYZSKx4n12TH0cKpY392hBkRdA8N 
39 Reid H, Ridout AJ, Tomaz SA on behalf of the Physical Activity Risk Consensus group, et al ,Benefits outweigh 
the risks: a consensus statement on the risks of physical activity for people living with long-term conditions, 
British Journal of Sports Medicine 2022;56:427-438. 
40 Public Health England,Place-based approaches for reducing health inequalities: main report, 2021 
41 Ramblers Association, The grass isn’t greener for everyone: why access to green space matters , 2020 
https://www.ramblers.org.uk/get-involved/campaign-with-us/help-us-ensure-everyone-can-enjoy-walking-in-
nature/why-access-to-green-space-matters.aspx. 
42Public Health England, UCL Institute of Health Equity Local action on health inequalities: Improving access to 
green spaces, 2014 Briefing8_Green_spaces_health_inequalities.pdf (publishing.service.gov.uk) 
43 Public Health England, Working together to promote active travel, 2016 Working Together to Promote Active 
Travel A briefing for local authorities (publishing.service.gov.uk) 
44 Public Health England, Spatial Planning for Health An evidence resource for planning and designing healthier 
places, 2017 Spatial Planning for Health: an evidence resource for planning and designing healthier places 
(publishing.service.gov.uk) 
45 Department of Transport, Gear Change A bold vision for cycling and walking, 2020 Gear change: a bold vision 
for cycling and walking (publishing.service.gov.uk) 

Page 195

https://www.womeninsport.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/03/Tackling-Teenage-Disengagement-March-2022.pdf
https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/gender-dysphoria/
https://dera.ioe.ac.uk/33898/1/What_works_in_schools_and_colleges_to_increase_physical_activity.pdf
https://dera.ioe.ac.uk/33898/1/What_works_in_schools_and_colleges_to_increase_physical_activity.pdf
https://www.ukactive.com/news/professor-chris-whitty-calls-for-physical-activity-to-play-key-role-in-nations-recovery-and-future/
https://www.hse.gov.uk/statistics/dayslost.htm
https://www.nice.org.uk/Guidance/PH13
https://sportengland-production-files.s3.eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/2021-10/Active%20Lives%20Adult%20Survey%20May%202020-21%20Report.pdf?VersionId=YcsnWYZSKx4n12TH0cKpY392hBkRdA8N
https://sportengland-production-files.s3.eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/2021-10/Active%20Lives%20Adult%20Survey%20May%202020-21%20Report.pdf?VersionId=YcsnWYZSKx4n12TH0cKpY392hBkRdA8N
https://sportengland-production-files.s3.eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/2021-10/Active%20Lives%20Adult%20Survey%20May%202020-21%20Report.pdf?VersionId=YcsnWYZSKx4n12TH0cKpY392hBkRdA8N
https://www.ramblers.org.uk/get-involved/campaign-with-us/help-us-ensure-everyone-can-enjoy-walking-in-nature/why-access-to-green-space-matters.aspx.
https://www.ramblers.org.uk/get-involved/campaign-with-us/help-us-ensure-everyone-can-enjoy-walking-in-nature/why-access-to-green-space-matters.aspx.
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/355792/Briefing8_Green_spaces_health_inequalities.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/523460/Working_Together_to_Promote_Active_Travel_A_briefing_for_local_authorities.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/523460/Working_Together_to_Promote_Active_Travel_A_briefing_for_local_authorities.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/729727/spatial_planning_for_health.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/729727/spatial_planning_for_health.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/904146/gear-change-a-bold-vision-for-cycling-and-walking.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/904146/gear-change-a-bold-vision-for-cycling-and-walking.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



 

  REPORT TO CABINET 
   
 

13 September 2022 
 
TITLE OF REPORT: Physical Activity Strategy 2022 - 2032 
 
 
Appendix 3 
 

Title of proposal: 
 
Gateshead Draft Physical 
Activity Strategy 

 
Working with our communities and 
partners, to get Gateshead moving. 
We want to make Gateshead a 
borough where every resident has 
access to a range of appropriate and 
affordable opportunities for physical 
activity that become part of their 
everyday life.  

 Ag
e 

R
ac

e 

Se
x 

 G
en

de
r r

ea
ss

ig
nm

en
t 

D
is

ab
ilit

y 

R
el

ig
io

n 
or

 B
el

ie
f 

 Pr
eg

na
nc

y 
an

d 
M

at
er

ni
ty

 

Se
xu

al
 O

rie
nt

at
io

n 

 M
ar

ria
ge

 a
nd

 C
iv

il 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 

Description of potential mitigation P
age 197



 

Equality impact: (all that apply. 
The assessment should also 
consider impact on council 
employees and carers where 
applicable) 

 
The mission of providing appropriate 
and affordable opportunities for 
physical activity, to improve health and 
wellbeing, for all residents is supported 
by five objectives: 
 
 
• Recover, reinvent and thrive we 

will learn from the pandemic to 
become a stronger and fairer 
borough, where no-one is less 
active because of who they are or 
where they live. 

• Creating a positive experience 
for children and young people - 
we want our children and young 
people to enjoy being physically 
active and build foundations for a 
long, healthy and active life. 

• Living well and ageing well - we 
will strengthen the connection 
between physical activity and 
health and wellbeing throughout 
every stage of life. 

• Supporting communities - 
physical activity brings people 
together and helps makes better 
places to live. We will work with 

 

  

 
 
   

 

  

 
 
 

 
 
   

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 The strategy identifies groups who experience 
inequalities in levels of physical activity. It will have a 
positive impact on the health and wellbeing of these 
groups and communities as it will support targeting of 
resources and opportunities where barriers to 
participating in physical activity are greatest. 
 
Barriers to physical activity identified in a local survey 
include, caring for children, physical access needs, 
lack of gender specific opportunities, and the lack of 
culturally accessible opportunities.  (The most 
frequent responses were it’s too expensive, 
confidence/embarrassment and lack of motivation.) 
 
The strategy also includes summaries of the UK Chief 
Medical Officers' Physical Activity Guidelines (2019 
and 2022) for different groups of people.   
 
One of the strategies values/guiding principles is, 
‘People-centred - putting people, their needs and the 
barriers they face at the heart of our plans. Delivering 
services in and with communities.’ 
 
Outcomes identified include: 
 

By 2032 we will have: 

• Increased physical activity levels and reduced 
inactivity levels for: 

o Women and girls 
o Ethnically diverse and/or minoritised 

communities. 
o Older people (55 and over) 
o People with a disability or long-term 

condition  

P
age 198



 

communities and partners to 
support people be more active 
where they live, particularly 
targeting where inequalities are 
greatest and recognising that every 
community is different. 

• Creating active environments - 
we want to make it easier for 
people in Gateshead to be active in 
the space around them and 
contribute to the reduction of 
carbon emissions. 

 

o People from LGBT+ communities 
 

• More children and young people in Gateshead will 
be physically active and achieving the Chief 
Medical Officer’s recommended levels of physical 
activity. 

• More adults (aged 19-64) and older adults (aged 
over 65) will be physically active and achieve the 
Chief Medical Officer’s recommended levels of 
physical activity. 

• More physical activity opportunities will be seen 
as ‘age friendly’.  

P
age 199



 

Health impact: (e.g. physical, mental health, wellbeing, substance misuse) 
 
The aim of the strategy is to improve the health and wellbeing of Gateshead through 
increasing levels of physical activity, particularly in groups who are currently less active. 
 
There is overwhelming evidence that regular physical activity is good for your physical and 
mental health and wellbeing and prevents long term health conditions such as heart and lung 
diseases, diabetes, cancers and obesity. 
 
 
 

The strategy will have a positive impact on 
physical and mental health.  It sets out how 
it will help deliver our vision for Health and 
Wellbeing in Gateshead. 
 
 
 
 
 

Socio Economic impact: (e.g. neighbourhood, ward, area of deprivation, household 
group, income, wealth) 

 
The strategy recognises that less affluent people are more likely to be inactive, as well as less 
likely to be active, than those who are better off. The strategy aims to support communities to 
collaborate on developing local opportunities for physical activity that meet their needs and 
interests.  
 

The strategy will have a positive socio-
economic impact. The overall mission is 
about affordability and accessibility: 
‘Working with our communities and 
partners, to get Gateshead moving, to 
improve health and wellbeing. We want to 
make Gateshead a borough where every 
resident has access to a range of 
appropriate and affordable opportunities for 
physical activity that become part of their 
everyday life. ‘ 
 
 
Identified outcomes include by 2032:  

• We will have provided more 
opportunities and support for people in 
Gateshead to be physically active in the 
places where they live, using 
community facilities and the local green 
environment. 

• We will have increased physical activity 
levels and reduced inactivity levels for: 

P
age 200



 

o People who live in areas that 
are in the10% most deprived in 
England.  

 

 
 

P
age 201



 

Environmental impact: (does the proposal impact on climate change and 
the Council’s commitment to be carbon neutral by 2030?) 
The strategy supports giving people the opportunity to walk and cycle which will be key in 
reducing carbon emissions and levels of Nitrous Oxide (NO2) as well as increasing physical 
activity levels.  

The strategy will have a positive 
environmental impact. 
 
Outcomes identified include: 
 
• More people in Gateshead will be using 

our parks, green and open spaces and 
countryside sites. 

• More journeys will be made by walking 
and cycling and will be supported by 
more walking and cycle routes. 

• Increased active travel will be reducing 
the environmental impact of transport 
and supporting Gateshead’s climate 
strategy. 

 
Cumulative impact: (consider impact based on successive budgetary decisions 
relating to the proposal or is the proposal part of wider budgetary considerations 
that may collectively have an impact on service users, and is potentially at odds 
with the Thrive agenda) 
 
The overall impact of the strategy is considered to be positive and supports the Thrive 
agenda. The mission and strategic objectives will shape the future provision of physical 
activity in the borough. 

 

P
age 202



 

 

Summary of consultation/data/research undertaken to inform the assessment: 
(e.g. feedback and engagement with service users, trade unions, employees, partners, public, benchmarking, case studies) 

 
The following engagement activities were undertaken to inform the strategy:  

• Desk-top research including evidence and best practice from Sport England, Office for Health Improvement & Disparities/Public 
Health England, UK Chief Medical Officers, 

• Council Health and Wellbeing Survey March 2021  
• Consultation has taken place through the Council’s consultation portal. 
• Feedback was invited from local physical activity/sports organisations and clubs. 

 
 
Feedback from these activities is incorporated in the Cabinet Report (Appendix 1).  
 
Amendments to the strategy were made to reflect these comments.  
 
 
Signed: (completing officer)  Helen Bell   
Date: 24/08/22 

 
Strategic Director: (approved) Andy Graham 
Date: 24/08/22 

P
age 203



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  COUNCIL MEETING 

13 October 2022 

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 

NOTICE OF MOTION 

Councillor Ron Beadle will move the following motion: 

Council notes that: 
 

1. Polling from the Institute for Business Ethics finds that “corporate tax 
avoidance” has, since 2013, been the clear number one concern of the British 
public when it comes to business conduct. 

2. Around 17.5% of public contracts in the UK have been won by companies 
with links to tax havens. 

3. It has been conservatively estimated that losses from multinational profit-
shifting (just one form of tax avoidance) could be costing the UK some £17bn 
per annum in lost corporation tax revenues. 

4. The Fair Tax Mark offers a means for business to demonstrate good tax 
conduct, and has been secured by a wide range of businesses across the UK, 
including FTSE-listed PLCs, co-operatives, social enterprises and large 
private businesses. 

 
Council believes that: 
 

1. As recipients of significant public funding, local authorities should take the 
lead in the promotion of exemplary tax conduct; be that by ensuring 
contractors are paying their proper share of tax, or by refusing to go along 
with offshore tax dodging when buying land and property. 

2. Where councils hold substantive stakes in private enterprises, influence 
should be wielded to ensure that such businesses are exemplars of tax 
transparency and tax avoidance is shunned. 

3. More action is needed, however, as current and proposed new UK 
procurement law significantly restricts councils’ ability to either penalise poor 
tax conduct (as exclusion grounds are rarely triggered) or reward good tax 
conduct, when buying goods or service. 

4. UK cities, counties and towns can and should stand up for responsible tax 
conduct – doing what they can when existing frameworks and pledging to do 
more given the opportunity, as active supporters of international tax justice. 

 
Council resolves to: 
 

1. Approve the ‘Councils for Fair Tax’ Declaration. 
2. Lead by example and demonstrate good practice in our tax conduct, right 

across our activities. 
3. Ensure IR35 is implemented robustly and contract workers pay a fair share of 

employment taxes. 

Page 205

Agenda Item 10a



4. Undertake due diligence to ensure that not-for-profit structures are not being 
used inappropriately by suppliers as an artificial device to reduce the payment 
of tax and business rates. 

5. Demand clarity on the ultimate beneficial ownership of suppliers UK and 
overseas and their consolidated profit and loss position, given lack of clarity 
could be strong indicators of poor financial probity and weak financial 
standing. 

6. Promote Fair Tax Mark certification especially for any business in which we 
have a significant stake and where corporation tax is due. 

7. Support Fair Tax Week events in the area, and celebrate the tax contribution 
made by responsible businesses are proud to promote responsible tax 
conduct and pay their fair share of corporation tax. 

8. Support calls for urgent reform of UK procurement law to enable local 
authorities to better penalise poor tax conduct and reward good tax conduct 
through their procurement policies. 
 

 
Proposed by:  Councillor R Beadle 
Seconded by: Councillor J Wallace 
Supported by: Councillor P Diston 

Councillor J Mohammed  
   Councillor M Ord  

Councillor I Patterson  
   Councillor D Welsh 
   Councillor A Wintcher 
 

Page 206



  COUNCIL MEETING 

13 October 2022 

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 

NOTICE OF MOTION 

Councillor Dawn Welsh will move the following motion: 

Council welcomes the recent decision of the Labour Party Conference to support 
Proportional Representation. 

Council believes that Proportional Representation in local elections would enable this 
Council to be more representative of the people it serves and therefore would benefit 
the people of Gateshead. 

Council calls on the Chief Executive to write to ‘Councils for PR’ to confirm our 
support for Proportional Representation for Westminster and local elections. 
 
 
Proposed by:  Councillor D Welsh 
Seconded by: Councillor J Wallace 
Supported by: Councillor R Beadle 
   Councillor P Craig 

Councillor P Diston  
Councillor D Duggan 

   Councillor J Mohammed 
Councillor C Ord 
Councillor M Ord 
Councillor I Patterson 

   Councillor A Wintcher 
 

Page 207

Agenda Item 10b



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held 21 July 2022
	4 Questions from Members of the Public
	13 October 2022
	GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

	5 Annual Report of the Audit and Standards Committee 2021/22
	13 October 2022
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION
	Annual Aud Stds Report 2122 ckd
	Purpose of the Report
	Policy Context
	Consultation
	Alternative Options
	Implications of Recommended Option

	Internal Audit planning, performance and activity


	6 Review of the Constitution
	13 October 2022
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION
	Review of the Constitution Report
	REPORT TO CABINET
	Purpose of the Report
	Background
	Proposal
	Policy Context
	Background
	Consultation
	4.	No external consultation has been carried out.
	Alternative Options
	Implications of Recommended Option

	14.	Background Information - The current version of the Constitution.

	Review of the Constitution Appendix 2

	7 Tenancy Strategy and Allocations Policy
	13 October 2022
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION
	Cabinet Report - Tenancy Strategy and Allocations Policy
	REPORT TO CABINET
	11 October 2022
	Purpose of the Report
	Background
	Proposal
	Recommendations
	Policy Context
	Background
	Alternative Options


	Tenancy Strategy and Allocations Policy - Appendices 2-6
	Appendix 4 Formal Stakeholder Consultation Report.pdf
	Purpose of the Report
	Consultation Methodology
	Analysis of the Results

	Appendix 4 Formal Stakeholder Consultation Report.pdf
	Purpose of the Report
	Consultation Methodology
	Analysis of the Results

	Appendix 4 Formal Stakeholder Consultation Report.pdf
	Purpose of the Report
	Consultation Methodology
	Analysis of the Results

	Appendix 4 Formal Stakeholder Consultation Report.pdf
	Purpose of the Report
	Consultation Methodology
	Analysis of the Results

	Appendix 4 Formal Stakeholder Consultation Report.pdf
	Purpose of the Report
	Consultation Methodology
	Analysis of the Results



	8 Appointment of Public Analysts
	13 October 2022
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION
	Cabinet Report 13 Sept Public Analyst
	REPORT TO CABINET
	Purpose of the Report
	Background
	Proposal
	Recommendations
	Policy Context
	Background
	Consultation
	Alternative Options
	Implications of Recommended Option

	Background Information


	9 Physical Activity Strategy 2022 - 2032
	13 October 2022
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION
	Physical Activity Strategy report ckd
	REPORT TO CABINET
	Purpose of the Report
	Background
	Proposals
	Recommendations
	Policy Context
	Background
	Consultation
	Alternative Options
	Implications of Recommended Option


	Appendix 2 Physical activity strategy for Cabinet
	Appendix 2: Summary of UK Chief Medical Officers' Physical Activity Guidelines (2019 and 2022)

	Appendix 3-IIA
	REPORT TO CABINET


	10a Notice of Motion - Fair Tax
	13 October 2022
	GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

	10b Notice of Motion - Proportional Representation
	13 October 2022
	GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL




